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After its successful business recognition since
1962, Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public
Company Limited became the top leading construction
company that serves both civil work and mechanical
work, our services InCludE__ Infrastructure, Buildings,
Energy and Power Cﬁnemhon Plants, Industrial, and
Environment. Jr.ﬁ*-""'#

The construction  projects and  ofher e

outstanding records of the compan

in the country and the overseas. The ¢

emphasizes op_besf and high quality con

where iTs rhl'ghTast gook is ‘ro[;ndér‘rake the engineering'
and construction buswwess every aspect to meet

f
b cusTomers tringent ;'eqqu‘emen’rs regarding quality,

’—,,; f';on—ﬂme delivery, fair prices, with high health, safety

gnd environmental standard.
{.j Sino-Thai continues to move forward and
bec;ome the leading Engineering and Construction firm
in Thailand by handing over quality projects with all
experts and experiences for more than 53 years of

reputation.
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2015 Highlights VoladiAny

+11%

Increase in Book Value per Share

o Gross Profit o
2014 : Bt 21,944 mn 2014 : Bt 2,176 mn +1 /o

4 — Increase in Net Profit

2015: Bt 18910 mn  2015: Bt 1,688 mn

+1%

Increase in Backlog Order

0
4 Net Profit Book Value Backlog Order
per Share
88— 2014 : Bt 1,530 mn 9014 Bt 5.61 mn 2014 : Bt 49,821 mn
_12 o 2015 : Bt 1,545 mn #share = 1‘525 mn 2015 : Bt 50,336 mn

2015: Bt 6.23 mn
#share = 1,525 mn

Decrease in Total Revenue
-16 —

_20 -—
-24 — Decrease in Gross Profit
-22%
Construction Revenue Structure by Construction Revenue Structure by
Type of Works 0% Type of Customers

‘ Infrastructure
bl suilding

- Power & Energy
- Industrial

‘ Environment

‘ Private Sector
H Public Sector

(Including State
Enterprise)

Company Credit Rating (2015) : “A-" by TRIS Rating Co.,Ltd.

Market Share : 8% (4th Rank) CG Ranking by Thai Institute of

Comparing to 24 construction companies listed Directors (IOD) 2015 : Very GOOd
in SET as of 3Q 2015

MRT - Blue Line (Tha Plura-Laksong) Contract 4 GJP-GNS and GUT combined Cycle Power Plants
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Financial Highlights

JuUAa (41uun) Balance Sheet (Bt mn)
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Current Assets
Total Assets
Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Construction Income
Total Revenue

Cost of Construction
Selling & Administrative
Intferest Expense

Gross Profit

Net Profit

Current Ratio (Times)
Collection Period (Days)
Payment Period (Days)

Gross Profit Margin (%)

Net Profit Margin (%)

Return on Equities (%)

Return on Asset (%)

Total Assets Turnover (Times)
Debt to Equity Ratio (Times)
Interest Coverage Ratio (Times)
Book Value per Share (Baht)

Earning per Share (Baht)

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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10,208

5,533
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9,361
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1

842

443

1.32
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6.96%

0.92
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76.00
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1.14
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25,004

15,927
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6.12%

0.88

1.92

106.30

5.61
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Bt mn

25000 22,048

21,944

20,000

15,000

10,000
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Total Revenue (Bt mn)

2015

10,000

8,000

6,000

2,500 i : o 2,500
: i 2,176
2,000 el | 10.00%, 2,000
A b -
1,643 1,688 |8.00%
1,500 1,500
1,207 6.00%
1,000 1,000
842 4.00%
500 500
— 2.00% —
0 0.00% 0
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 ' 2015
Gross Profit (Bt mn) and Margin
Ll Il Gross Profit < Gross Profit Margin (%)
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Earning per Share (Bt)

0.00

1.00%

0.00%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 ' 2015
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~—=— Net Profit Margin (%)
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Debt to Equity Ratio (Times)
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Message from the Chairman

Professor Rawat Chamchalerm
Chairman of the Board of Directors

After all these years, many countries around the world
both public and private sectors had to face with the fluctuations
that effect to our living conditions no matter in economic or politic
aspect and such problem was impacted us all, so the leaders in
many organizations had fried to solve and find the best solutions
for their management thus they could operate their business in
long term.

The politic sifuation impact both public and private sectors,
as we may notice that governmental office in every country fried to
overcome the obstacles that effect o each organization, and so fo
private sector. Politic situation impact on economy as it presented
at the world news that many large firms in foreign countries are
declining nowadays.

The declining of economy was also impact to Thailand,
therefore there is no investment in many organizations and it
caused huge impact on business operations.

Sino-Thai was affected as well; the Board of Directors
put their efforts to solve through this situafion by considering new
policies and business strategies in order to suit the situation and
fo prevent other obstacles that might impact to the companu.

In management, Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni; President, and
the employees are recognized and accepted such declining of
economy but they put it as a driving force where this can be called,
“Sino-Thai's Strength”, to pass through all obstacles together. | am
pleased to say that with the harmonizing of all employees, move
Sino-Thai forward.

Nevertheless, “Sino-Thai's Strength” could not be
happened if we do not have the best learning through Mr. Chavarat
Charnvirakul, the founder of Sino-Thai who faught us patience,
endeavor and dare fo make decision for every essential matter
through this situation and moving ahead together successfully.

Best wishes,

Rauat Chamchalimm.

Professor Rawat Chamchalerm
Chairman of the Board of Directors

n I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Vision / Corporate Objective / Long Term Goal / Mission
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» The company continues to move forward and become the leading Engineering and Construction firm in
Thailand and eventually the region, while delivering projects that consistently meet international standards.

» The company intends to move forward as engineering and a turnkey construction
services of the domestic and international markets that meet the international standard and our
objective is “Safety is our first priority” (Loss Time Accident = 0) and long term goal is revenue
growth in 2016 — 2018 is 5% to 10%

» To undertake the engineering and construction business with a focus on becoming the cost leadership
while building excellence in every aspect to meet customers’ stringent requirements regarding quality,
on-time delivery, safety and environmental concerns.

» To develop an effective management that stresses productivity, perpetual development of the organization
and instilling a good work ethics in all personnel.

o To build value for the organization in order to become a unique and distinct firm.

» To remain focused on controlled organizational growth and recognizing those who contribute to this growth.

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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People

Commitment

Integrity

Adaptability & Flexibility
Continuous Learning
Trust

Customer Satisfaction
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Sino-Thai’s strategy is to deliver

sustainable and profitable growth through

Focus on core business in construction.
Delivering the best quality services, on
time with high safety standard to our
valued customers.

Emphasize on cost leadership.
Maintaining healthy financial strength.
Maintaining an operational excellence.
Developing human capital continuously.
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Project Highlights

o

MRT-Blue Line
(Tha Phra-LakSong) Contract 4

The latest Mass Rapid Transit Project which is
currently under construction, elevated structure
10.5 k.m. in length and 7 elevated stations with

tfwo car park buildings and one depot building.

Phuket International Airport Expansion
STECON is proud to be the contractor for development
of Phuket International Airport Expansion, serving for
domestic and international tourists from all over the world
to our Thailand's most famous “Pearl of Andaman”. The

construction project value is THB 5,147 Million Baht.

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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GJP - GNS and GUT Combined Cycle
Power Plants 3,200 MW (IPPs)

STECON is the major player for power plant construction project in
Thailand, the contractor of GJP-GNS and GJP-GUT Combined Cycle
Power Plant projects for on-shore portion of construction works
which including civil & building, steel structure, piping and equipment
installation and related works. We always target fo deliver the
best quality and on time schedule to our client in connection with

international standard.

usEN Blu-Tng 15UTITESY 1DUF ADUARSATU $1AR (UKBU) I
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Investment [JuaJnu
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited

usEn 193 N 01§ 9NA
HTR Corporation Limited

AMNANTUE USENL08

Relationship: Subsidiary Company
a v a o o’

Usziangsia WeU18 ANVNSUNSWE

Type of Business: Real Estate Development

Nuaanzilau (Um)

Registeres Capital 500,000,000
(Baht):

dndrunstionu 60,90

% Share Holding: .
$UIUU

No. of Shares: 40,449,995
anmrasn () 440,090,005

Cost (Baht):

USBn 3anau 15as$ddrsd 91nn
Wisdom Services Co.,Ltd.

ANNANWUS USENe08

Relationship: Subsidiary Company
Tiuaseedng uas

Uszinngsia gunsainedsy Renting

Type of Business: of Machinery and

Construction Equipment

Nuaanzilau (Um)

Registeres Capital 2,211,000,000

(Baht):
dndaunstionu 550
% Share Holding: :
Ui

No. of Shares: 22,110,000
YARISUANNU (UN) 12726,516

Cost (Baht):

AMNAUNUE USuNgoy

Relationship: Subsidiary Company
a g a o/ o

Uszianssia WENUND ANUITUNSWE

Type of Business: Real Estate Development

uaaneideu (Um)

Registeres Capital 800,000,000
(Baht):

dndaunstionu 9999

% Share Holding: .
IUIUU

No. of Shares: 7,999,996
R e 799,999,600

Cost (Baht):

usen AR Blu-Ine IBUFITESY $1R
DKK Sino-Thai Engineering Co., Ltd.

AMNANWUS USENSIN

Relationship: Affiliated Company
NUSEUUANYANUAY

Uszinngsia TnsauuAy

Type of Business: Telecommunications and

Transmission Lines

Nuaaneideu (Um)

Registeres Capital 8,000,000
(Baht):

dndaunstionu 35.00
% Share Holding: ’
U

No. of Shares: 27,997
HAAIUAINY (VN

g W ) 2799700

Cost (Baht):

usEN Blu-Tng 15UTITESY 1DUF ADUARSATU $1AR (UKBU)
S1gvuUS=9U 2558

1
=
o
—
o
—
=
o

| KA



CONSTRUCTION :
) Environment

) Building

EVEY

VTR
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) Infrastructure ) Power & Energy ) Industrial
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Construction Revenue Structure by Type of Works
H Infrastructure - Building - Power & Energy - Industrial H Environment
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Construction Revenue Structure by Type of Customers
H Private Sector

- Public Sector (Including State Enterprise)

41.9% 42.4%

52.4% 40.6%
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Business Overview

The company operates mega project by
focusing on the maintenance of high quality. With
the ultimate goal of the work is the construction
of a fair price, considering the quality, timeliness,
safety, health and to satfisfy customers.

The construction business overview in 2015
grew a liftle caused by the governmental sector that
faces the delaying of new project disbursement
and there was no new investment derived from
government sector especially the mega projects due
to the complexity of its procedures including the
procedure of approval such as the approval of EIA
and the purchasing of new projects that need time.
Therefore, there was few new projects launched
for bidding moreover, the investment from private
sector was stable especially in manufacturing and
real estate sectors though loan interest had been
reduced and the credit approval procedures had
announced. The overview of construction business
in 2015 had

slowdown; purchasing power of consumers were

risks associated with economic

decreased, high living costs efc. that effect to
investment creditability of both foreign investors
and private investors, therefore the new investment
in this sector might delay, and especially fowards
the investment in fransportation.

However, the economy was not grew much
befter in 2015; the performance of the company
was continuing grew. At the end of 2015, the
company had 50,336 Million Baht as its backlog
where consisted of construction projects from
governmental sectors and private sectors. The
construction projects derived from governmental
sectors were the mass rapid transit, roads, and
highways including large buildings. The construction
projects derived from private sectors were energy

and industrial projects.

Type of Customer

The Company is a well diverse construction
company capable of acquiring projects in many
different work fields. For this reason, the Company
has a varied customer base, all depending on the
type of project. The company has the capabilities
fo take on projects in the private, government, or
state enterprise sectors.

In 2016,

projects within the government sector that has

the Company plans to farget

an investment framework for large scale public
the Mass Rapid
Transit Authority and State Railway of Thailand.

fransportation projects with

These large scale infrastructure projects under
government long term development plan will create
a significant foundation to support the economic
growth and increase the competitiveness of the
country.

As for our client base in the private sector
for 2016, the Company is still focusing on three
key areas: Power Plant (SPPs and IPPs), Industrial

Plant (petrochemical plants).

The Target Customer

1. Public Sector (Government and State Enterprise)
consists of the following: Mass Rapid Transit
Authority,
Metropolitan Authority, Electricity Generating
Authority of Thailand,
of Thailand, The Department of Rural Road,

State Railway of Thailand, Bangkok

Expressway Authority

Department of Irrigation, Department of Highway,
Metropolitan Electricity Authority, etc.
2. Private Sector consists of large foreign
multi-national EPC Contractors in the following
areas: Small and Large Power Plants and

Petro chemical process plants.
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Infrastructure

The company is proud to be a part of Thailand's

economic growth through infrastructure projects such
as Mass Rapid Transit, the elevated roads, highways,
roads, bridges, dams, and marine works.
Construction market in infrastructure in 2015
was slowdown. There was few mega projects and
project commencement derived from the government
sector. The construction in infrastructure became
the main revenue from construction tfo the
company. In 2015, the company had its revenue
from construction amounting to 8,486 Million Baht,
or 47% of fotal revenue from construction. The
company focuses on infrastructure construction
confinuously according to long-term infrastructure
plan of the government. The company shall have
a process in the project selection carefully before
bidding in terms of costs and expected profits.
The projects completed in 2015 were Main
highway No.3 (Bangpu) — Baan Klong Krabue (Part
2) MRT Purple Line No.2 and East West Corridor.
The infrastructure construction on hand in
the end of year 2015 were MRT Blue Line No.4,
Fly over Bridge (Charansanitwong - Karnjanapisek),
Red Line Contract 1 ,Srirat Express Way, Ban
Huag (Phayao)-Muang Khob-Muang Xiang Hone
and Muang Khob-Ban Pakkob-Ban
Road Improvement Project, By Pass Construction

Lumphun , Sky Walk , Sky Bridge and Fly Over

Koneteun

Bridge for Central West Gate, “@“ Road Contract
2 Kora, High Way # 3263 Sena-Baansalee Part 2
and MRT Green Line - Contract 3-4.

The direction of infrastructure construction
in 2016 is expected to grow better than the year
2015. It was driven by the investment of government
according to governmental policy through the new
infrastructure construction and mass transit systems
construction projects following to strategic plan
of transport infrastructure investment in Thailand
in 2016-2017, which is expected to result in the
good infrastructure construction in future. However,

the competition in public utilities remains highly

competitive. The company confinues fo improve
cost management to be more efficient.
10,630
9,496
8,528 8,486
3,181
2,572
2015
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The company has various services of
buildings, which are office buildings, condominiums,
aircraft maintenance centers, sport centers, school
buildings, hospitals, museum, convention, cargo, air
ferminals efc.

In 2015, the construction market in buildings
had its growth similar to the previous year. There was
few new project launched by the government, so the
business of real estate in buildings and commercial
buildings were slowdown. Though the governmental
sector announced fo decrease the loan interest
and provide credit indulgent, the investment in new
projects still stable because there were some risks
associated with economic unstable including high
living costs and purchasing power of consumers
were stable, therefore, most of consumers decided
fo remain still and so to other enfrepreneurs, then
there was little investment in real estate.

The company confinuously gained construction
projects in buildings both governmental and private
secfors. In 2015, the company has ifs revenue
from construction in buildings portion amounting to
4,271 Million Baht, or 23% of total revenue from
construction.

Construction projects that completed in
2015 were the Dictionary & Therapy Building
(Somdejprapinklao Hospital 2), Building System for
CPLC MPE Package 2, Bang Sai Royal Folk Arts
and Crafts Center Building.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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At the end of 2015, the company had its
projects on hand which were Medical Services
Building for Mettapracharak Hospital, Development
for Phuket International Airport Project, Supreme
Court Building , Design & Build Works for CAT
Head Office , C.P.Leadership Development Center,
The New National Parliament House, Preliminary
and Structure Works for Main Villa, Raisaeng Dao,
Blu Port Resort Mall at Hua Hin , New Office
Building of the Bureau of the Budget.

The

in 2016 is expected to grow more from 2015.

direction of building construction
According to economic growth, the direction of
governmental and private investment is expanded

along with the overall economy growth.

Building

Bt mn

5,813
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Power and Energy

The power and energy projects are one

of the main construction projects of the company.
The company has played in a major role in power
and energy sector especially power plants. There
was an expansion of using power generation in
the country so there will be lot of power plants
construction plans like power plant project of
Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand, Power
plants of private sector including IPP, SPP and
VSPP.

Power and energy market in 2015 had
continuously grown from the year 2014, especially
SPPs projects and renewable energy such as
solar farm, wind farm, biomass energy, and waste
energy etc. In 2015, the company had its revenue
from constfruction in power and energy portion
amounting to 3,308 Million Baht, or 18% of the
fotal revenue from construction.

The project completed in 2015 was U Thai
Power Plant Project (GUT).

At the end of 2015, the company had its
projects on hand which were Khanom Combined
Cycle Power Plant Project, Vang Ta Pin Power
Plant, Tasit 1-4 Power Plant, Non Si Power Plant,
Ban Lane Power Plant, Ban Pho Power Plant,
Nong La Lok Power Plant, Nong Pla Mo Power
Plant, Nong Ra Viang 1-2 Power Plant.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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The future of construction in power and
energy continues to grow steadily according to
the National Power Development Plan (PDP 2015).
This plan would have the power capacity increased
from 2015 - 2036 ftotaling about 57,459 MW,
which includes the construction of the Electricity
Generating Authority of Thailand Power Plant and
the private Power Plant and including Renewable
Energy. Those caused the construction in power

and energy continuously in the future.

Power & Energy

Bt mn
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Industrial
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Industrial projects are one of the company’s
best constructions and expertise. Sino-Thai as a
leader in construction of industrial plants such as
refineries, petrochemicals, chemical plants, steel
mill, steel fabrication, and erection piping.

The construction market in industrial sector
in 2015 was slowdown from the year 2014. There
was few new projects launched but the company
confinuously gained the construction projects in

industrial portion and in 2015, the company had

its revenue from construction in industrial portion Industrial
amounting to 2,173 Million Baht, or 12% of total 68;;;
revenue from construction.

The construction of industrial projects that . 2099 4,856

were completed in 2015 was Loy Krathong Project.
At the end of 2015, the company had

industrial projects on hand which was Erection

4,000

3,000

and Assembly (Package 3 Ichthys Onshore LNG). 2,000
The direction of industrial construction in
2016 is expected to grow. The new investment -

or investment increasing production capacity will 0

expand to be in line with the economic growth,

which fend to improve from the year 2015.

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Environment

The company becomes a part of environmental

concerns by committing to construct environmental
projects such as waste water freatment project,
water supply project, and piping installation.

The construction in environment sector in
2015 was better than the year of 2014. The company
had its revenue from construction in environment
portion in 2015 from the drainage tunnel project
from Nong-Born swamp to the Chao Praya river.

The direction of environmental projects in
2016 are expecting to be more growth according fo
the water management plan (new version) which
had 10 years execution from 2016 — 2024 and the
projects will be the Forest restoration projects,
the Resolution for water shortage projects, the
Resolution for flooding projects, the Improvement
of water quality projects, and Water management

projects efc.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Industry and Competition

Construction Overview in 2015

The construction overview in 2015 was not
much growth especially in the first half of the year
there was an investment in consecutive projects and
small size projects of the governmental sector, for
example, the improvement of road & highway both
main route and secondary route, and the renovation
of governmental office buildings. The consecutive
projects were mainly focused on mega projects
such as MRT Blue Line (Hualampong-Bangkhae
and Bangsue-Tha Pra) project, and MRT Red Line
(Bangsue—Rangsit). There was only one mega project
that launched for bidding in 2015 named, the MRT
Green Line (Mo-Chit-Saphan Mai-Khu Khot).

The growth of construction in private
sector was stable caused by economic slowdown,
purchasing power of consumers reduced and high
living costs; moreover, the private sector still waiting
for the government to approve any investment in
infrastructure aspect, such delay impact to the
decision in investment from many investors from

private sectors.

For the second half of the year 2015,
the construction overview was better by the
government launched new projects for example, the
Double Track (Chachoengsao—Klong 19-Kaengkoi)
project, the Double Track (Chira-Khon Kaen)
project and the Drainage Tunnel from Nong-Born fo

the Chao Phraya river, efc.

For the second half of the year 2015, the
construction overview in private sector was stable
caused by the delaying of new projects launching

by the government especially in infrastructure.

The construction overview in 2015 can
be summarized that there was few mega project
derived from government sector because some
mega projects had to be approved through many
procedures which including EIA and purchasing
system of the governmental office as well.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Industry and Competition

Competitiveness and Market Share

The growth of construction market in 2015
grew liftle from the year 2014. New bidding projects
were few especially infrastructure projects derived
from the government sector, however, the company
sfill entering to bid various kind of construction
projects in order to have backlog orders as much
as it could be. Our backlog orders at the end
of 2015 ftotally presented at 50,336 Million Baht
where the company could sustainable earn it as
revenue from construction and the company could

be able fo bid new projects in the future.

In 2015 (3™ Quarter), in term of revenue wise,
the company was ranking the 4™ of market share
compared fo other listed construction companies
in the Stock Exchange of Thailand totaling 25

companies.

Trends of the Industry and Competitiveness in
the Future

In 2016, the industry of construction is
expecting to be better than the year 2015 because
there should be more construction projects especially
in infrastructure-transportation aspect that valued
1.79 Trillion Baht. In 2016-2017, there should be new

projects launching of mega projects for example;

The Mass Rapid Transit totaling 4 projects as

the following;

1. MRT Orange Line (Cultural center — Minburi)
110,325 Million Baht

2. MRT Pink Line (Kaerai — Minburi)
56,725 Million Baht

3. MRT Yellow Line (Ladprao — Samrong)
54,768 Million Baht

4. MRT Purple Line - South (Taopoon — Ratburana)
104,116 Million Baht

The Double Track, meter gauge (1.000 meter)

totaling 4 tracks as the following;

1. Double Track (Mapkabao - Chira Road)
29,853 Million Baht

2. Double Track (Nakornpathom — Hua Hin)
20,036 Million Baht

3. Double Track (Prachaubkirikhan — Chumphorn)
17,290 Million Baht

4. Double Track (Lopburi — Paknam Poh)
24,840 Million Baht

The medium speed Double Track, standard
gauge (1.435 meter) totaling 4 tracks as the
following;
1. Double track Bangkok — Nong kai, Kaeng koi -
Map Ta Put 369,148 Million Baht
2. Double track Bangkok - Pitsanulok - Chaing
Mai 449,473 Million Baht
3. Double tfrack Bangkok — Hua Hin
94,673 Million Baht
4. Double track Bangkok - Rayong
155,774 Million Baht

Remark : Data from The Ministry of Transport

In addition, the governmental sector is going
tfo launch more mega projects besides the
development of mass transit for example:

1. Motorway (Pattaya — Map Ta Phut)
Motorway (Bang Pa In — Nakornratchasrima)
Motorway (Bang Yai — Ban Pong — Karnchanaburi)

The expansion of Suvarnabhumi phase 2

o s~ w0

The containers distribution center at

Laemchabang Port

The construction overview in private sector
in 2016 is expecting to grow more than the year of
2015 according to the economic expansion in 2016,
if the government is promptly to approve mega
projects, the confidentiality of investment will be

obviously noticed by private investors eventually.
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Industry and Competition

The competition in construction market
for the last year was normal, for example, the
competition situation in mega projects derived from
the government sector was nonviolent such as
mass rapid transit project where a construction
company needs to have a technical qualification
where there was few construction company
qualified, and therefore, the competition in such
situation was not severe. The competition in
construction of power and industrial projects e.g.
power plants and industrial plants that derived
from private sectors were also nonviolent either
because the clients mostly came from foreign
EPC companies and there were few construction
companies who qualified. On the other hand, the
competition of public construction projects both
small and medium projects were high because
there were many construction companies were
qualified to bid such projects. Another notice from
the real estate last year was condominiums and
large shopping centers where the competition in

such projects was not high as same as last year.

The construction market overview in 2016
is expecting to grow more than last year but the
company shall not regard related risks and to
execute the construction projects professionally
the company shall aware in cases as followed;

1. Man power shortage especially the skilled
labor.

2. Prices of construction material that may
fluctuate in accordance with the demand of
related business especially raw materials.

3. Trend of hiring expenses that may add up
in compliance with the hiring rate of skilled

labors.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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The Board of Directors

AAMNS191STWIABISIR ﬁﬂlaéu
Professor Rawat Chamchalerm
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Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Independent Director
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I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

Shareholding in the company: 12,857 shares or 0.00%

Age 71 years
Appointed date as a Director: April 4, 2010
Education:

>

>

>

>

The National Defence Course for Joint-State-Private College Class
No. 1, National Defence College (Wor.Por.Ror.Or.)

LL.M., Chulalongkorn University (First place in the written test)
Thai Barrister at Law

LL.B., Thammasart University

Experience:

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

Adjunct Professor, Faculty of Law, Chulalongkorn University
Adjunct Professor, Institute of Legal Education of the Thai Barrister
Adjunct Professor, Faculty of Law, Mahidol University
Adjunct Professor, Faculty of Law, Mae Fah Luang University
Lecturer at the Office of Justice Affairs, Ministry of Justice
Lecturer at the Department of Special Investigation,

Ministry of Justice

Lecturer at the Office of The Aftorney General

Other position in listed company in SET:

>

>

>

Vice President, Don Muang Tollway Public Company Limited
Director, TRUE Corporation Public Company Limited
Director, Sermsuk Public Company Limited

Other positions in non-listed companies:

>

>

>

>

Advisor, Bureau of Academic Affairs and Educational Standards
Advisor, Bangkok Airways Company Limited

Advisor, The Office of SMEs Promotion (OSMEP)

Executive Director, National Science and Technology Development
Agency

Advisor, Athletic Association of Thailand

Director, Office of the Council of State

Director, Ministry of Justice

Distinguished Director in Law, Office of the Civil Service
Commission — Ministry of Agriculture and Cooperatives

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (I0D):

>

2004 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 26

Meeting attendance:

>

>

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2015: 1/1
Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2015: 4/4
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Mr. Chamni Janchai
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Chairman of the Audit Committee

nssuN1saas:

Independent Director
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Shareholding in the company: None
Age 59 years
Appointed date as a Director: April 21, 1999

Education:

» Graduate Diploma in Management of Public Economy,
King Prajadhipok’s Institute

> MBA, Thammasat University

» B. Accountf, Thamasat University

Experience:

» Chairman of the Board of Directors, (Acting) CEO, (Acting)
Managing Director, Max Metal Corporation Plc.

» The Advisory of Director, Provincial Electricity Authority

» The Advisory of Committee, National Housing Authority

Other position in listed company in SET:

> Independent Director and a Member of the Audit Committee,
STP & | Ple.

> Director and Member of the Audit Committee, Thai Theparos Food
Products Plc.

Other positions in non-listed companies: None

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (10D):

» 2004 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 30

» 2009 - Role of the Chairman Program Class No. 21

Meeting attendance:

» Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2015: 1/1
» Board of Directors” Meeting in 2015: 4/4

> Audit Committee Meeting in 2015: 5/5
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The Board of Directors
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Police General Jate Mongkulhutthi

Us=sunssunisasskiliaznKuAAINUINU
Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

NsSsSUN1Saas:

Independent Director

NSSUNISMSIvdoU
Member of the Audit Committee
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Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

Shareholding in the company: None

Age 62 years
Appointed date as a Director: April 21, 1999
Education:

>

>

>

>

>

>

Entrepreneurship and Business Skill Class No. 7, NIDA

Police Management for Top Executives Class No. 16, Police College
Justice Management for Top Executives Class No. 6, Office of the
Attorney General

Certificate of The National Defence College Class No. 45

LL.M., Chulalongkorn University

LL.B., Ramkhamhaeng University

Experience:

>

>

Director of the Information Office for the governmental Office
Advisory to the Board of Directors, National Credit Bureau

Other position in listed company in SET:

>

Independent Director and a Member of the Audit Committee,
STP & | Ple.

Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee,
Southeast Insurance Plc.

Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee,
Southeast Life Plc.

Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee,
Lease It Plc.

Other positions in non-listed companies:

>

Board of Directors, Prestige Hotel Management Co., Ltd.

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (10D):

>

>

>

>

2004 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 8
2006 — Audit Committee Program Class No. 14

2006 - Finance for Non-Finance Director Class No. 30
2009 - Director Certificate Program Class No. 117

Meeting attendance:

>

>

>

>

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2015: 1/1

Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2015: 4/4

Audit Committee Meeting in 2015: 5/5

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting in 2015: 3/3
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Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs

nssuN1soas:

Independent Director

NSSUNISNSIVdOU

Member of the Audit Committee
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> ﬂ?sfy:y,’ﬁm MBA Economics, Texas A&M, Commerce, Texas, USA

» USeyey1e5 B.Sc. Marketing, Woodbury University, Los Angeles,
California, USA
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Shareholding in the company: None

Age 68 years

Appointed date as a Director: March 11, 2008

Education:

» MBA Economics, Texas A&M, Commerce, Texas, U.S.A.

» B.Sc. Marketing, Woodbury University, Los Angeles, California,
US.A.

Experience:

» Director, Inspection and Evaluation Bureau (Level 9), Office of the
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance

Other position in listed company in SET: None

Other positions in non-listed companies: None

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (10D):

» 2009 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 78

» 2009 - Audit Committee Program Class No. 26

» 2011 - Monitoring the System of Internal Class No. 11

Meeting attendance:

» Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2015: 1/1

» Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2015: 4/4

> Audit Committee Meeting in 2015: 5/5

» Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting in 2015: 3/3
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The Board of Directors

urgsusd dng=asaun
Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun

e NSSUN1SOAS:

Independent Director

andounmstioruluusin : 12,857 vu Aaduiesay 0.00
019 49 U

AURFSIAIALINSSUNISUSEN © 28 quAWuE 2544
Us=3RMsFnu

@

Shareholding in the company: 12,857 shares or 0.00%
Age 49 years
Appointed date as a Director: February 28, 2001

Education:

> UANgasHUSISIEAUGIAUNISAMLaTNISWIdrEIeN dndidneinis » Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade (TEPCOT 6),

u

N5 (TEPCOT 6)
> UsemailUasvandasiudnissyiuguuavaniuinginswasauy
(W.4)

Commerce Academy
» Energy Literacy Class No. 4, Thailand Energy Academy
» Training Course on Capital Market for Executives Class No. 15,

» UsenmiatlpUnsuangasgusmsseaugy vaeanduinginisaaianu Capital Market Academy

(1en.15)

» USeyauSmsgsiaunndnudio Cornell University, USA

» USyanidnssuAdasuvndosia da1walwin Comell University,
USA

Us=dmnsrinviu

> Usgsnudmihiusms ven. wanaulaea

> NSUNTUSINS avAnnsgadvnssutild

sintduUSENeAN:deudU

» nssunsddsy USn Inglwyadusedude $1ia (uvnww)

simtduuSENau RlTEUSBNaAN:ITeu

» N$54N1S Alliance of International Corporate Advisors

Us:5ﬁmsausuha‘nqmsﬁv’mﬂsatmué\l\a§uamﬂunssumsué&nlna (10D)

» U 2544 Director Cerfificate Program S;uﬁ' 7

Us=dmn1ssouus:y

> Useyailngiansiogioviu Usesnt 2558 $uau 1/1

> UsyyuAnensSUNISUSEN Usednl 2558 31w 2/4

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

» MBA Finance, Cornell University - U.S.A.

» M.S. Electrical Engineering, Cornell University — U.S.A.
Experience:

» Managing Director, Sage Capital Co., Ltd.

» Executive Director, Forest Industry Organization

Other position in listed company in SET:

» Independent Director, Thai Paiboon Public Company Limited
Other positions in non-listed companies:

» Director, Alliance of International Corporate Advisors
Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (10D):

» 2001 - Director Certificate Program Class No. 7
Meeting attendance:

» Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2015: 1/1

» Board of Directors” Meeting in 2015: 2/4



AU=NSSIUNISUSHN

As. ogdA d99wauun
Dr. Chaiyong Satjipanon

e NSSUN1SOAs:
Independent Director
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andoumsiionuluusen - lifinstievu Shareholding in the company: None
919 63 i Age 63 years
JURAASIFIALINSSUNISUSEN - 22 wwneu 2557 Appointed date as a Director: April 22, 2014
Us:=amnIsAnuy Education:
> UsemdileUas Bgﬂ'leluﬂ’liu%wﬁmu a0y IMD @dsisasuaus » Diploma of Leadership development program, IMD, Switzerland
(nuﬂssmq\m’mﬁwﬂsxmﬁ) » Diploma of Senior Executive Fellows program, Havard Kenedy
» UsemdileUas nangasinuSmsseiugs umingndeaniinsa School
(MU N.w) » Doctor of Philosophy, The Fletcher School of Law and Diplomacy,
> USquyen @nguaneuasn1sye The Flefcher School of Law Tufts University, U.S.A.
and Diplomacy ¥ gndy Tufts Useindansgaiusni » Master of Arts in Law and Diplomacy, The Fletcher School of
> U%:y:y”ﬁ,vn #1nggunignazni1sye The Fletcher School of Law and Law and Diplomacy, Tufts University, U.S.A. (Fulbright-Purify
Diplomacy svinngnas Tufts UseimAdnsgamsni Scholarship)
(nu Fullbright-Peurifoy) » Bachelor of Arts (Honors), Faculty of Political Science,
» USueed (fesdtion) wasdSgqiln anesaaans Wnawnsal Chulalongkorn University
NAANEAY Experience:
Us:=amnasriau » Director and Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee &
> neTINSHATUSESUANENSTINSIRULATQUAT AN SR NAZUS S Risk Management Committee, Bliss-Tel Plc.
m’lmgm UN9. URA-INA » Director and Chairman of Risk Management Committee, G Capital Plc.
> nisumiLLazﬂsssmnssumw%msmﬂuLﬁ'm U9, 3 uAUUnoa > Director and Chairman of Risk Management Committee, Pacific Pipe Plc.
> nii&m'ﬁLLa3U$361uniiuﬂ’ﬁv%mimmLﬁﬂﬂ un.uUBAN I » Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of Thailand to the US.A.
> Lané“mswiqmvlm UszdUseimaansgosni » Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of Thailand to the
» 1endATTIYeve Useinlsuimaansisusginvg Republic of Korea
> ndAsTYyeine Useinusumaaiamosuaud Anaudled uas » Ambassador Extraordinary and Plenipotentiary of Thailand to
UATSFIAMU Swiss Confederation, Liechtenstein and the Holy See
FInUGIUUSENaAN:ITEUBU - Taifi Other position in listed company in SET: None
sikusluUsENdU AlUTEUSBNoAN:ITeU : Tufl Other positions in non-listed companies: None
Us:ﬁﬁnwsausuha‘néjmsﬁo’mﬂsammuaﬂ\a§uamﬂunssumsu§6n1na (I0D) Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (I0D):
» T 2557 Director Accreditation Program S;uﬁl 12 > 2014 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 112
» 1 2558 Directors Certification Program 'véu‘ﬁ 212 » 2015 - Directors Certification Program Class No. 212
Us=dmn1ssouls:sy Meeting attendance:
> UsyyuAnensSUNISUSEN UsednU 2558 31uiu 4/4 » Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2015: 4/4

usEN Blu-Tng 15UTITESY 1DUF ADUARSATU $1AR (UKBU)
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The Board of Directors

walan As. gSWus wunno
General Dr. Surapan Poomkaew

nssuUN1Sods:

Independent Director

andoumsiionuluusin - lifinstievu

019 68 U

SUNFISIFNIKLINSSUMSUSEN : 22 wwneu 2557
Us=3RMsFnun

» fuivnssedugeantuinenisaaenu (6m) Suil 9

» PhD $gUseandudansqufiiorin uniinendosiudiume U 2549

> WanuSsAdasuundudis (Hosiioudiunn)dadududin
WauuSvnsadas (NDA) U 2538

» USuanesinendrdasiosie mu. (nu.)
TsuSsunesoawsyaasoundr U 2516

Us=ammsrinviu

> 9195TRAY AUESTANERS NATINENABS AU

» gnsdinde Ingrdudeasmaiion wninerdeinin

> 9191sERAY AnTusgUsSEANAUAARS N Inedasidn

» sy

sIrWuUSBNaAN:IDoudu

> nSSUMS UNA. wuuua e dwwans

> UsEsUNSSUNMSATIvABY UNA. MEUUAITR AosUpisT

sIrWILUSBNAU AlUTSUSENAN:ITeU

» i

Us:5ﬁmsausuha‘nqmsﬁv’ﬂfﬂsaumuem\aﬁuamﬂunssumsuﬁﬁnlnﬂ (10D)

» U 2553 Director Accreditation Program éuﬁ 84

Us=dmn1ssouUs:sy

> UsyyuAnensSUNISUSEN UsednU 2558 31U 4/4

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

Shareholding in the company: None

Age 68 years

Appointed date as a Director: April 22, 2014

Education:

» Capital Market Academy Leadership Program (CMA9), Capital
Market Academy

» Doctor of Philosophy in Public Administration, Ramkhamhaeng
University

> Master Degree in Public Administration (First Honor), The National

Institute of Development Administration (NIDA)
» Bachelor of Science, Chulachomklao Royal Military Academy

Experience:

» Special Instructor at Faculty of Political Science, Ramkhamheang

University

» Special Instructor at Political Communication College,
Krirk University

» Special Instructor at Public Administration Institute,
Rangsit University

» Defense Inspector General

Other position in listed company in SET:

» Director, National Power Supply Plc.

» Chairman of the Audit Committee, TWZ Corporation Plc.

Other positions in non-listed companies: None

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (I0D):

» 2010 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 84

Meeting attendance:

» Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2015: 4/4



ANU=NSSUNISUSHN

u18IANIU Brydsna
Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul

NSSUNS

Director

andoumsiioAuluusin - 25,457142 vu Aaluiowas 1.67

019 44 9

FUARASIFIKLINSSUNISUSEN - 19 §winAn 2539

Us=anmseAny

> UsemadlaUnsvangasudmisseauge aonduinginiseatanu gui
1172010 log @onudnginseaiany
» MBA (International Business) University of Southern California

USA

» Byges auswidveddasuaznistnd ginamsainning dy

Us=annisringau

> ﬂiiﬂﬂ"l‘iLLﬂaﬁﬂiiNﬂ’l‘iN:/‘alﬁlﬂ']i V9.
> nssm’maznssun’ns@%’mms uan.

FIRUSIUUSEN9AN:ITEUBU

> nssun’masnssun’ns@%’mms UHNI.

FInUgiuUSENdU ATLTEUSBNeAN:Tau

> nssun’ﬁuasnssunﬁ@’%’mms uan.

an
L0a7i woud lo
04 7 lo #

aa o
Loa7n woud lo

0d 7 lo #

Us:a‘ﬁmsaUsum'ﬂzjmsr‘iv'ﬂ[maamﬂua\]|a§uamﬂunssumsu§gmna (I0D)
» U 2546 Director Accredifation Program §ui 1

Us=3RAnssouus:su

> UseuAnenssuNISUSEN Usednl 2558 91w 4/4

Shareholding in the company: 25,457,142 shares or 1.67%

Age 44 years

Appointed date as a Director: December 19, 1996

Education:

» Capital Market Academy Leadership Program (CMA11), Capital
Market Academy

» MBA (International Business) University of Southern California
US.A.

» B. Business Administration, Chulalongkorn University

Experience:

» Director and Managing Director, STP & | Plc.

» Director and Managing Director, STIT Co., Ltd.

Other position in listed company in SET:

» Director, STP & | Plc.

Other positions in non-listed companies:

> Director, STIT Co., Ltd.

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (I0D):

» 2003 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 1

Meeting attendance:

» Board of Directors” Meeting in 2015: 4/4

usEN Blu-Tng 15UTITESY 1DUF ADUARSATU $1AR (UKBU)
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The Board of Directors

unvadasnu dnanlseu
Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj

e NSSUNTS
Director

e NSSUNISUSKHIS
Executive Director

25,457142 v dawdusouas 167 25,457,142 shares or 1.67%
39 1 39 years
23 iluAn 2552 March 23, 2009
» MBA Finance & Strategy Sloan School of Management » MBA Finance & Strategy Sloan School of Management,
Massachusetts Institute of Technology USA Massachusetts Institute of Technology, U.S.A.
» Unidvude Hesdtousudu 1 anewidivemansiasnisUyd » B. Business Administration (1% Honor), Chulalongkorn University
Phasnsaiininede

» Business Development & Legal Department Manager, STP & | Plc.

» Business Development & Legal Department Manager » Commercial Manager, STP & | Plc.
UNA. AT Waud o » Commercial Manager, Clough Sino-Thai Co., Ltd.
» Commercial Manager UN3. Lo@iiW woug 1o
» Commercial Manager Clough Sino-Thai Co., Ltd. » Business Development & Legal Department Manager, STP & | Plc.

» Commercial Manager, STP & | Plc.
> Business Development & Legal Department Manager None
Uua. did woud lo
> Gommercial Manager ux3. 10a#il uoud 1o » 2009 - Director Certification Program Class No. 121
> il » Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2015: 1/1

! » Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2015: 4/4
» U 2552 Director Certification Program §ui 121

» Useapilugianiinydfieviu Usesnl 2558 suau 1/1
> UsyyuAnensSUNISUSEN Usednl 2558 91w 4/4



ANU=NSSUNISUSHN

urgdaan SunvdsIanes
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

NSSUNS

Director

Us=81UNSSUNISUSKIS

Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors

andoumsiioruluusen - lifinstievu

019 64 U

SURFSIFIALINSSUNISUSEN : 3 1wngu 2538

Us=dRmsAnu

> ANgASINEINISWANIY (3Wik) SUAl 4 donduinenniswaeey

> wdngesiinuSmsnsyiisssimanasessedugs (Uev.) Jui 4
AinvuAtalnasas

» nsUiwsTansduanuiuasiuge quit 3 annmingrdsilovtius
21U19NS

» UsemiatloUns wAndesgusunssdugy andiingniseaiany gu
A 8 (2n.8)

» USgadas wdngesnisesiusiserandnsniasy envu uae
msiiiee Ingndsiloeius1venandng (1We.2549)

» dsemafiodasduge msuSmsenuniasguasngineiTg (Usi. 2)
antuwszlnindn

» USgaudwisgsiauvntudie nasnsaiivning ay

» USggnidinssuAdastingin awnidnssilust uininende
Berdlvad

Us=aan1srinvu

> nssumsgaants vue. Flulng 1Budified weud Aeuansatuy

sintiduUSEneAN=ITsudU

» d

sintiduUSENau AllTEUSBNIAN:ITeu

» dsesrunssums van. diaa Alilne Budified

> NSINNNS dunaugadwinssuneadeineluwssususyuius

» wgndunAuindnuiin Aneddinssumaasuinendedadn

Us:o’ﬁmsausuha’nqmsﬁv’mﬂsamﬂuem\a§uamﬁunssumsu§l§|ﬂnﬁ (10D)

» U 2549 Director Accreditation Program Siu‘ﬁl 52

» U 2557 Role of the Chairman Program ﬁiuﬁ 34

Us=amnssouus:sy

» Usepilugiansioydfioviu Usesnl 2558 1w 1/1

» UsequAnienssuNIsUSEn Usednl 2558 9uiu 4/4

> UsyguanienssunIsassiasiansanAmouuny Usednl 2558
U 3/3

Shareholding in the company: None

Age 64 years

Appointed date as a Director: April 3, 1995

Education:

» Energy Literacy Class No. 4, Thailand Energy Academy

» Training Course on Administrative Justice for Executives Class No.
4, The Administrative Court

» Advanced Security Management Program Class No. 3 (ASMP 3),
The National Defence College Association of Thailand

» Capital Market for Executives Class No. 8 (CMAS8), Capital Market
Academy

» SPP Certificate Class. 2549, National Defence College of Thailand

» Graduate Diploma in Management of Government and Private
Sectors, King Prajadhipok’s Institute Certificate, National Defence
College of Thailand

» Executive MBA, Chulalongkorn University

» B.S. Engineering, Chiang Mai University

Experience:

» President, Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Plc.

Other position in listed company in SET: None

Other positions in non-listed companies:

» Chairman of the Board of Directors, DKK Sino-Thai Co., Ltd.

» Director, Thai Contractors Association Under H.M. The King's
Patronage

» Director and Chairman, Chiang Mai University Alumni Association,
Chiang Mai University

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (10D):

» 2006 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 52

» 2014 - Role of the Chairman Program Class No. 34

Meeting attendance:

» Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2015: 1/1

» Board of Directors” Meeting in 2015: 4/4

» Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting in 2015: 3/3

usEN Blu-Tng 15UTITESY 1DUF ADUARSATU $1AR (UKBU)
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The Board of Directors

urgn1AND ASEIU
Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni

NSsuUNIs
Director
NSSUNISUSKHIS
Executive Director
NSSUNSWIANTS l1a:Us=s1UNSSUNISIANTS
President and Chairman of the Management Committee

andoumsiionuluusen - lifinstievu

019 54 U

AURFSIAIALINSSUNISUSEN © 26 Wwen 2555

Us=AMSANu

> ndngmsHusmsnssuunmsysssuseduge Juil 19
Ingdunsedsssy dlineuAagEsssy

> UANGESHUSINSSEAUAY (h0m.5u 18) anTuingniseatanu

» PSaydes wangasnisiesiusworaninsnasy onvu uay
nsiiied Inendsiesiusworandns (1we.qu 54)

» dsemafiodasfugensudmsenuniasguaengvingminty Jui 5
anduwszunindn

» USyanuswisgstanmiudin umingdesssuddas

» USgqnidinssuAdastinien a1mnidnssilust uininende

NuASAERS

RSN

> NSSUNMSUSUISUAYSaNNSSUNISEIaNsaneaulianis
v, Flwlvy BuFiileds woud rouansaduy

> NSSUMSUSUSUARRIEnssuNISEIansdmauUidnis
v, Flulne Hudidiese uoud rouassadu

sikUGUUSBNeAN:ITeudU

> laid

sklvluusendu AlUTEUSENeAN:ideu

>l

Us:o‘ﬁmsausuma‘nqmsr‘i:?m[maamﬂudd\aéuamﬂunssumsu?,@ﬂna (I0D)

» U 2555 Director Certification Program %‘;uﬁl 161

» U 2549 Director Accreditation Program éuﬁl 52

Us=aRmssouus:su

» Usepilugianiioydfioviu Usesnl 2558 1w 1/1

> UsyyuAnenssuNISUSEn Usdnl 2558 9w 4/4

.
%)

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

Shareholding in the company: None
Age 54 years
Appointed date as a Director: April 26, 2012

Education:

» The Program for Senior Executives on Justice Administration
Class 19, National Justice Academy

> Capital Market for Executives Class No. 18 (CMA18), Capital
Market Academy

» SPP Certificate Class. 2554, National Defence College of Thailand

» Certificate, Management of Government and Private Sectors, King
Prgjadhipok’s Institute

» MBA Thammasat University

» Bachelor of Engineering (Civil Engineering), Kasetsart University

Experience:

» Director, Senior Executive Vice President Operation Division,
Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Plc.

» Director, Senior Vice President Operation Division, Sino-Thai
Engineering and Construction Plc.

Other position in listed company in SET: None
Other positions in non-listed companies: None

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (I0D):

» 2012 - Director Certification Program Class No. 161
» 2006 - Director Accreditation Program Class No. 52
Meeting attendance:

> Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2015: 1/1

» Board of Directors” Meeting in 2015: 4/4



ANU=NSSUNISUSHN

U1899SWuUs dounav
Mr. Woraphant Chontong

NSSUN1s

Director

NSSUNISUSKIS

Executive Director

NSsSUNISYANIS II8ZI'ISSUIT]SSO\]@56]ﬂ'lSHWEJx]']UﬂWSIGUIIa:Ugh’IS

Member of the Management Committee and
SEVP. Financial and Administration Division

andounstioduluusin : 1,973,500 vu Aedlufesas 013

919 61 U

AURFSIAIALINSSUNISUSEN © 28 quAWus 2544

Us=dAMSANY

» Jsemafiodnsduge msudsiasvgivassaudmsuinuimssedy
49 Juit 5 an1tuwseUning

» USanssuseanduddasiniudia dovuduiawauusmsdaidans

» USgwidveransiudin @4191n1518un1sswANg Nininends
5ISUANART

.
%)

SAMsinu

> NUNSIENRIANSANENIUNNSRULAzUSMS Lua. Blung
BuAidiese woud mouassatu

> frenssunisianmsdnautnFuasnisidu v, Flwlne
Buiiliese uoud mouaaiadu .

> FiansthavnBuasnisiiu une. Flulne BuidleSe woud
AauARSATY

shikUdTuUSBneAN:ITeudU

» lafl

shikudTuUSBnAU ATUtSUSBNoAN:ideu

> NSSUNTS UAN. 0% A 915

> nssums van. diaa Slilne Budidede

> N55UNNS UIN. Fleme (Ussindlng)

> nssuns van. UyniuSeaediend

> NSSUNS Uan. fausersnil

Us:5ﬁmsausuhénzjmsﬁ'v'mmaamﬂua'dm§uamﬂunssumsu§t§nlna (I0D)

» U 2546 Director Certification Program ﬁ;uﬁl 27

» T 2550 DCP Refreshment §ufl 4

» 1 2546 Risk Management Committee Program iuﬁ 1

Us=dmn1ssouus:yu

> Useilunjanoygfioviu Usesnd 2558 $ruau 1/1

> UsyyuAnensSUNISUSEN UsednU 2558 31w 4/4

» Useguanienssun1sas1vday Usednl 2558 91w 5/5

Shareholding in the company: 1,973,500 shares or 0.13%
Age 61 years
Appointed date as a Director: February 28, 2001

Education:

» Certificate in Management of Public Economy for High-Level
Management, King Prajadhipok’s Institute (Class No.5)

» MPA. Public Policy & Project Management, NIDA

» BBA. Finance & Banking, Thammasat University

Experience:

» SEVP. Financial and Administrative Division, Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Plc.

» SVP. Accounting and Financial Division, Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Plc.

» Accounting and Financial Division Manager, Sino-Thai Engineering
and Construction Plc.

Other position in listed company in SET: None

Other positions in non-listed companies:

» Director, HTR Co., Ltd.

» Director, DKK Sino-Thai Co., Ltd.

» Director, Chiyoda (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

» Director, Patumwan Real Estate Co., Lid.

» Director, Kijpracha Tanee Co., Lid.

Completed programs by Thai Institute of Directors (10D):

» 2007 - DCP Refreshment Class No. 4

» 2003 - Director Certification Program Class No. 27

» 2003 - Risk Management Committee Program Class No. 1

Meeting attendance:

» Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2015: 1/1

» Board of Directors” Meeting in 2015: 4/4

> Audit Committee Meeting in 2015: 5/5

— @
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The Board of Executive Directors Anu:-nssiUN1SUSKHAS

u1gdaan Suneasianos uenA ASEID
Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni

UgISWUS Founay uwouasau tnanlsau
Mr. Woraphant Chontong Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj

52 |
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ugB1l Junsang wassof1oNnIvnU Uunakni ugg6e NWBRywid
Mr. Chamni Janchai Police General Jate Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs
Mongkolhutthi

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
ACU=NSSUNISASSHllazNKnuUAAINoUINU

wari1sa919n1I9nU LIAARRD U188y NWorgway urgdaan sungasianes
Police General Jate Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs  Mr. Vallop
Mongkolhutthi Rungkijvorasathien




Management Committee ANU=NSSUNISIANIS

uwemAni ASEIT U1gISWUs gounav U195y nAauludy
Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Mr. Woraphant Chontong Mr. Varatt Kusolmanomai

U189Sans oAU U1g¥Iry8ey s1sSnuUs:1asy u1gsNG NIGY
Mr. Worachat Suwasin Mr. Chanchai Thanrukprasert Mr. Rakesh Kalia

UNEWS: UlAdua UNgUS:IaSYT AVIANSWSSSU ugSswar a8suun
Mr. Pheera Nakwimo Mr. Prasert Kongkauroptham Mr. Teeraphong Wichiranon

I |



Assistant to President AruzNUSN
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UN8auB18g JpUU=IS:5E Mr.Robert L.De Sonier Special Mr. Robin Mullin
Mr.Somchai Wattanaweerachai

Company Secretary aV1UN1SUSHN

welsews dukStyna
Mr.Chaiyaporn Imcharoenkul
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Management Team ACU=KUSKOS

UNgALAU ASASHWA Ug9sSIug IsSmuann  unganswa wosunua ugauAn Asendur
Mr. Comsin Mr. Jarunat Jiraratsatit ~ Mr. Sutthipol Mr. Somkid Siriapinun
Srisonkompon Patcharanaruemol

ugUs=ans Us:v uedNSWus aaws weinwins Juvu uednsed daaonlw
Mr. Prasit Prawang Mr. Charkphan Mr. Thepnikorn Mr. Vitoon Salilampai
Leelaporn Junkhun



Management Team ACU=KUSKOS
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As of the latest registration book closing on March 12, 2015, the 10 largest shareholders are:

ugIASEU g1rydsna Mr.Seranee Charnvirakul 117,043,394 7.674
2 uwaUelna sIryIsna Miss.Naiyapak Charnvirakul 117,043,394 7.674
3 UBS AG SINGAPORE BRANCH UBS AG SINGAPORE BRANCH 76,966,500 5.047
4 ugaunu sIrydsna Mr.Anutin Charnvirakul 71,550,128 4.691
5 UWBS AsShUanm Mrs.Patchara Jiraratsatit 63,479,596 4.162
6 u3Bn 3A3R wad A Equity Plus Company Limited 45,902,841 3.010
7 naunu Uinbaununryinsisms Government Pension Fund 38,439,671 2.520
8 STATE STREET BANK EUROPE LIMITED STATE STREET BANK EUROPE LIMITED 38,026,699 2.493
9 UNUAUIN dUURABY Mrs.Nitsanart Anantachai 29,632,242 1.943
10 uwaadsad Wsg:=ulana Miss.Pranee Piriyamasakul 28,780,971 1.887

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Internal Audit Section
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Management Structure |ASUaS1INISVANIS

company’s management structure can be
follows:

The Board of Directors

The Board of Executive Directors
The Audit Committee

The Nomination and

Remuneration Committee

The Management Committee

The President

The Executive

AMU=NSSUN1SASSHI
laziMMuAAINOUINU

ACU=NSSUNISUSHIS

The Board of Executive
Directors

NSSUNISWIANTS
The President

The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

laviun1susen
Company Secretary

Ar:AUSNBINSSUMSEIAMS

Assistant to President J

AINUEUSHISARUNW

Safety Section )

Quality Management
Representative

drannssumswians J

Executive Office

$OUNSSUNISWIANTS
anguudinns

Senior Executive Vice President

Operation Division

NSSUN1SSOVLIIANTS
d1ed1uNISUNAzUSHIS
Senior Executive Vice
President Financial &
Administration Division
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Management Structure

1. The Board of Directors
There are 12 Directors in the Board of Directors:
First — Last Name Title
1. Professor Rawat Chamchalerm Chairman of The Board of Directors and

Independent Director

2. Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director
3. Pol. Gen. Jate Mongkulhutthi Independent Director
4. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director
5. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director
6. Gen. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director
7. Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon Independent Director
8. Mr. Masthawin  Charnvirakul Director
9. Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj Director
10. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director
11. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Director
12. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director

Term of the Board of Directors

The company has 7 Independent Directors or 58% of the Board of Directors. The company has
2 Directors as a representative of shareholders who are Charnvirakuls or 16% of the Board of Directors.
The company has 3 Directors came from Management team or 25% of the Board of Directors.

For further information about ferm and qualifications, the appointment of the Board, the authorities
and duties, meetings, nomination, remuneration and evaluation of the Board of Directors are also presented

in the item of good corporate governance number 2.3

Authorized Directors
Mr. Pakpoom  Srichamni, the President, has been authorized to sign and stamp, with the company’s
seal, or Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien, Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul, Mr. Woraphant Chontong, 2 of 3

Directors have been authorized to sign and stamp, with the company’s seal.

2. The Board of Executive Directors
According to the Board of Directors of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company
Limited, or the company, held the Board of Directors Meefing No. 3/2012 on August 28, 2012 and

resolved that the Board of Executive of Directors was consisting of 4 Directors as followed:;

First — Last Name Title
1. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors
2. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Executive Director
3. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Executive Director
4. Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj Executive Director

For further information about term and qualification, authorities and duties, evaluation of the Board

of Executive Directors are also presented in the item of good corporate governance number 2.3
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Management Structure

3. The Audit Committee
The Annual General Meetfing of Shareholders No. 6/1999 resolved the appointment of Audit
Committee and three Independent Directors who are qualified under the rules and regulations of the Stock

Exchange of Thailand, to perform as a member of the Audit Committee as the followings:

First — Last Name Title
1. Mr. Chamni Janchai Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Pol. Gen. Jate Mongkulhutthi Member of the Audit Committee
3. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Member of the Audit Committee

All of three Audit Committees are Independent Directors. Mr.Chamni Janchai is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee who has good knowledge in Account and Finance, including the great experience in
Financial field. Therefore, Mr.Chamni Janchai has ability to audit the Company’s Financial Statement.

For Further information about term and qualifications, authorities and duties, evaluation of the

Audit Committee are also presented in the item of good corporate governance number 2.3

4. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
According fo the Board of Directors of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company
Limited, or the company, held the Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2013 on February 27, 2014 and

resolved that the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was consisting of 4 persons as follows:

First - Last Name Title
1. Pol. Gen. Jate Mongkulhutthi Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
2. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Nomination and Remuneration Committee

For Further information about term and qualifications, authorities and duties, evaluation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee are also presented in the item of good corporate governance

number 2.3

Details on the meeting attendance of each Directors of the Board of Directors in 2015

Professor Rawat Chairman of the Board 1/1 4/4 - -
Chamchalerm of Directors / |
ndependent Director

Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director / 11 4/4 - 5/5

Chairman of the Audit

Committee
Police General Jate Independent Director / 11 4/4 - 5/5 3/3
Mongkulhutthi Chairman of The

Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
/ Member of the Audit
Committee

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Management Structure

Mr.Suchai Independent Director / 11 4/4 - 5/5 3/3
Poopichayapongs Member of the Audit

Committee / Member of

The Remuneration and

Nomination Committee

Mr. Thanathip Independent Director 11 2/4 - - -

Vidhayasirinun

Gen. Surapan Independent Director - 4/4 - - -

Poomkaew

Mr. Chaiyong Independent Director - 4/4 - - -

Satjipanon

Mr. Masthawin Director - 4/4 - - -

Charnvirakul

Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj — Director/Executive 11 4/4 12/12 - -
Director

Mr. Vallop Director / Chairman of 11 4/4 12/12 - 3/3

Rungkijvorasathien the Board of Executive

Directors / Member of
The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee

Mr. Pakpoom Director / Executive 11 4/4 12/12 - -
Srichamni Director / President

Mr. Woraphant Director / Executive 11 4/4 12/12 5/5 -
Chontong Director

Details on shares holding of each Director as of December 31, 2015

1. Professor Rawat Chamchalerm  Chairman of the Board 38,571 12,857 (25,714) 0.00%
of Directors / Indepen-
dent Director

Spouse - - - -

Minor Children - - - -

2. Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director / - - - -
Chairman of the Audit
Committee
Spouse - - - -

Minor Children - - - -

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Management Structure

3. Pol. Gen. Jate Mongkulhutthi Independent Director - - - -
/ Chairman of The
Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
/ Member of the Audit
Committee
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
4.  Mr.Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director / - - - -
Member of the Audit
Committee /Member of
The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
5. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director 12,857 12,857 - 0.00%
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
6. Gen. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director - - - -
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
7. Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon Independent Director - - - -
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
8.  Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul Director 25,457142  25,457142 - 1.67%
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
9. Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj Director / Executive 25,457142  25,457142 - 1.67%
Director
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
10. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien Director / Chairman of - - - -

the Board of Executive
Directors / Member of
The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee

Spouse

Minor Children

m I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Management Structure

1. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Director / Executive
Director / President

Spouse

Minor Children

12. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director / Executive 1,973,500 1,973,500 -

*acquisition through Mr. Kittisak  Director
Chontong’s Account as a
nominee of the Director

0.13%

Spouse

Minor Children

5. The Management Committee

The Company issued the order Sor Tor-Kor Sor 1/2015 in the topic of Appointment Management

Committee, which is effective on February 1, 2015. The Member of the Management Committee was

consisting of 9 persons as follows:

First — Last Name

Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni Chairman of the Management Committee

Mr. Woraphant Chontong Member
Mr. Varatt Kusolmanomai Member
Mr. Worachat Suwasin Member
. Chanchai Thanrukprasert Member
Mr. Rakesh Kalia Member
Mr. Pheera Nakwimol Member

Mr. Prasert Kongkauroptham Member

©W®NOU AN
<
-

Mr. Teeraphong Wichiranon Member

Authorities and Duties of the Management Committee

Title

of the Management Committee
of the Management Committee
of the Management Committee
of the Management Committee
of the Management Committee
of the Management Committee
of the Management Committee

of the Management Committee

1. To plan, set up regulations, and manage the company according to the Board of Directors’ policies;

2. To monitor the performance of all company’s departments by arranging the Executive

Committee meeting at least 1-2 times a month, sefting the executive committee secretary to

record the minute of meeting, and proposing the minute of meeting to the Board of Directors

meeting.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Mr. Pakpoom  Srichamni

Management Structure

President

Details on shares holding of each Management Committee as of December 31, 2015

Spouse

Minor Children

Mr. Woraphant Chontong Senior Executive Vice 1,973,500 1,973,500 - 0.13%
*acquisition through President — Financial and
Mr. Kittisak Chontong's Administration Division
Account as a nominee of
the Director
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
Mr. Varaft Kusolmanomai Senior Executive Vice - - - -
President — Operation
Division
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
Mr. Worachat  Suwasin Senior Vice President — - - - -
Operation Division 1
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
Mr.Chanchai Thanrukprasert  Senior Vice President — - - - -
Operation Division 2
Spouse - - - -
Minor Children - - - -
Mr. Rakesh Kalia Senior Vice President — - 8,500 8,500 0.00%

Operation Division 3

Spouse

Minor Children

Mr. Pheera Nakwimol

Senior Vice President —
Technical & Development
Division

Spouse

Minor Children

Mr. Prasert Kongkauroptham

Senior Vice President —
Marketing Division

Spouse

Minor Children

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Management Structure

9. M. Teeraphong Wichiranon Senior Vice President — - - - -
Administration Division

Spouse - - - -

Minor Children - - - -

6. The President

Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni is the President.

Authorities and Duties of the President

The authorities and duties of the President were defined in Board of Directors meeting no. 3/2002
on May 10, 2002 which resolved that the President shall be responsible for conducting and supervising
the company’s business operations in accordance with the policy approved by the Board of Directors.
Furthermore, the President shall fulfill when such actions are required by the laws, rules and regulations
of the governing agencies to get approval from Board of Directors” meeting and/or Shareholders’ meetings.
The President shall have a power to appoint other person(s) as a proxy to act on his behalf fo manage
and conduct company’s business. President and his proxy have no right to approve any business activities

with any persons who have conflicts of interests with the company and its subsidiary.
7. The Management Committee

The management Committee structure

4 5 6 8 9
SVP SVP SVP SVP SVP SVP
Operation Operation Operation Technical & Marketing Administration
Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Development Division Division

Division

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015



[ASJasS1INISIANAS

<
Dl

YIUNTSUNS - - - -

{90N15AIUU
Usus

9. wieSswad A5 uui

§
i

AANSA - - - -

yasndvliussqlifinie - . - .

q

6. NSSUNISWIANS
ﬂ?%’ﬂﬂ’ﬁf«l’?ﬂ@ﬂ’]% ﬂE] u’]ilﬂ’]ﬂﬂfl AS °ﬁ”1

(<}
o
c
©
c
|
)
>
)
S
©
c
©
c
)
=
©
i
c
©
=
L
o
L
=
o

VouIvallazgUKtAVeINsSUNSEIANIS

punBiUszuAnEnsTINISUIEN SRl 3/2545 (latufi 10 wauanau 2545 1éfinGeyiBveuauas
snavthiivesnssunsgdansdell  nssunsgianisiduduimsausanisuazguamuaunisdniiugsiaves
U3t uudnisdniiunislafinmdninaeiveenguinevieudninaeie s enuiinIuANgUAUSET  fviug
TigodldSuanuitiureuaniilsequanenssunisuIonUsegudiofu  Wnssunsgianisaniiunisanauman
NN saeaaLlisanssunsEianislunsueumneliuanaduinssunisgaanisiiuanaisinuig
Fanisuazdniunisunuuazivuaiuilinssunisgianisuseyanafinssunisgsanisuounaneliinuiing
Wi ewiBn1sinsensla sewinssunisgaanisvdoyaaai ldsunouninadinann wieyanafienafinina
Faudifidnldidsvioorafinnutuiaudionalsslomiludnunedilafuusimvioisnees

7. WUSKS

TAseasNEUSSIBIUTIN

3 2
SOUNSSUMSWIANTS NSSUNSSAVLIANTS
anguulninnis d199IUMSITUNAzUSHIS
4 5 7 8 9
Wdosnssums Wyosnssums Wgosnssums Wg28nssuMs @u’oanssums Wgoenssums
wInmsdoudu wIRMsdoudu wnnIsdouu wnnsdoudu wnmsdoudu WIRNSAIUNUUSHIS
unomnis 1 unoanis 2 Unoams 3 InATANAzWERIL nsmAan

usEN Blu-Tne 15URITESY 1DUF ADUARSABU FNA (UKIBU) I
S1gvuUS=9U 2558



Management Structure

The Management Committee
1. Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni President
2. Mr. Woraphant Chontong Senior Executive Vice President - Financial and

Administration Division

3. Mr. Varatt Kusolmanomai Senior Executive Vice President — Operation Division

4. Mr. Worachat Suwasin Senior Vice President — Operation Division 1

5. Mr. Chanchai Thanrukprasert Senior Vice President — Operation Division 2

6. Mr. Rakesh Kalia Senior Vice President — Operation Division 3

7. Mr. Pheera Nakwimol Senior Vice President - Technical & Development
Division

8. Mr. Prasert Kongkauroptham Senior Vice President - Marketing Division

9. Mr. Teeraphong Wichiranon Senior Vice President — Administration Division

Remark : Number 1-9 are the Executives who are qualified under the rules and regulations of the

Securities and Exchange Commission

8. The Corporate Secretary

The Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2007 dated March 4, 2008 resolved that the Board of
Directors appointed Mr. Chaiyaporn Imcharoenkul as a Company Secretary, please find for further information
about qualifications, authorities and duties of the Corporate Secretary in sub item of good corporate

governance-Corporate Secretary

9. The Auditor
» The company Independent Auditor : EY Company Limited
» Other relationship towards the company: None

» Number of years of being the Auditor for the company: 15 years

10. Independent Director

The list of Independent Directors is as follows:

1. Professor Rawat Chamchalerm Independent Director
2. Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director
3. Pol. Gen. Jate Mongkulhutthi Independent Director
4. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs Independent Director
5. Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun Independent Director
6. Gen. Surapan Poomkaew Independent Director
7. Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon Independent Director

The Definition and Qualification of Independent Director
The Board of Directors reviews the definition and qualifications of Independent Directors, the
regulations of which are more stringent than those of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)

and Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), as committed to good corporate governance as follows:
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Management Structure

Holding shares no more than 0.5% of the total voting shares of the Company, its parent
company, its subsidiaries, its associated companies, or a related juristic entfity with potential
conflicts, including of shares held by related persons’.

Not being an executive director®, an employee, or a company consultant who receives a regular
salary or a controlling person of the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, its same-level subsidiaries’, or a related juristic entity with potential
conflict of interest during the period of 2 years before the appointment.

Not being a person who has a blood or a legal relationship of a parent, spouse, sibling, and
child including a child’ spouse, to any executive management, major shareholder, a controlling
person, or a person whom has been proposed to be an executive management or a controlling
person of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Not having a business relationship and a vested interest , whether directly or indirectly,
financially or administratively, including not being a professional advisor to the company
such as an auditor, a client, partner, supplier, creditor, or debtor of the parent company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its same-level subsidiaries’, or a related juristic entity
with potential conflict of interest during the period of 2 years before the appointment.

Not being a director who has been appointed as the representative of the Company’s director,
major shareholder, or shareholder who is related to a major shareholder of the Company.
Not having any other characteristics that may potentially prevent from giving independent
opinions.

An independent director, with qualification under Clauses 1- 6, may be assigned by the Board
of Directors to make the collective decisions on the operation of the Company, its parent
company, its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its same-level subsidiaries’, or a related

juristic entity with potential conflicts

11. The remuneration of the Directors and the Executives

The remuneration of the Directors was transparent defined by the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee and it was considered on the authorities and duties of the committee along with the

circumstances at the present basis. The remuneration of the Directors was set in comparison with other

business in the same industry.

According to the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 21/2015, held on

April 21, 2015 had approved the remuneration of the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination and

Remuneration Committee of the year 2014 as the following details;

Footnote:

1

2

3

“Related Person” means a person defined under the Section 258 of Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.

“Executive director” means any director who holds an executive position, or any director who is in charge of any actions deemed
to be taken by executives, and shall include any authorized director except where it can be demonstrated that such authorized
director, jointly with other directors, signs on transactions which have already passed board's approval.

“same-level subsidiary” means any two or more subsidiaries under the same parent company.
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Management Structure

® Directors’ Meeting Fee

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

The Board of Directors Meeting

For the Chairman of the Board of Directors amounted to 40,000 Baht/meeting
For each Director amounted to 20,000 Baht/meeting
The Audit Committee Meeting

For the Chairman of the Audit Committee amounted fo 40,000 Baht/meeting
For each Audit Committee amounted fo 20,000 Baht/meeting
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee

For the Chairman of the Nominafion and  amounted to 40,000 Baht/meeting
Remuneration Committee

For each Nomination and Remuneration amounted to 20,000 Baht/meeting

Committee

Annual Remuneration

The Chairman of the Board of Directors amounted to 500,000 Baht/year

The Chairman of the Audit Committee amounted tfo 500,000 Baht/year

The Chairman of the Nomination and amounted to 400,000 Baht/year
Remuneration Committee

For each Director amounted to 300,000 Baht/year

For each of the other Directors amounted to 300,000 Baht/year

The remuneration of the Board of Directors, Executfive Directors, and top Executfives of the

Company and its subsidiary companies are consisted of;

11.1 Money Remuneration;

>

>

>

>

Aggregated remuneration for 12 directors in 2015

The amount of 5,820,000 Baht was the meeting allowance and remuneration
Aggregated remuneration for 10 executives in 2015

The amount of 49,500,000 Baht was the salary and bonus

11.2 Other Remuneration;

>

>

Other remuneration for Directors: None

Other remuneration for Execufives of the company: Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited provided and contributed the Provident Fund tfo
the Executive Directors and Executive for 10 persons in the amount of 1,980,000 Baht
in 2015.
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Management Structure

Details on Money Remuneration for each Director in 2015

Unit : Baht

Professor Rawat Chairman of the Board 160,000 - - 500,000 660,000
Chamchalerm of Directors /
Independent Director
Mr. Chamni Janchai Independent Director / 80,000 200,000 - 500,000 780,000
Chairman of the Audit
Committee
Police General Jate Independent Director / 80,000 100,000 160,000 400,000 740,000
Mongkulhutthi Chairman of The
Remuneration and
Nomination Committee /
Member of the Audit
Committee
Mr.Suchai Independent Director / 80,000 100,000 80,000 300,000 560,000
Poopichayapongs Member of the Audit
Committee / Member of
The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
Mr. Thanathip Independent Director 40,000 - - 300,000 340,000
Vidhayasirinun
Gen. Surapan Independent Director 80,000 - - 300,000 380,000
Poomkaew
Mr. Chaiyong Independent Director 80,000 - - 300,000 380,000
Satjipanon
Mr. Masthawin Director 80,000 - - 300,000 380,000
Charnvirakul
Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj  Director / Executive 80,000 - - 300,000 380,000
Director
Mr. Vallop Director / Chairman of 80,000 - 80,000 300,000 460,000
Rungkijvorasathien the Board of Executive
Directors / Member of
The Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
Mr. Pakpoom Director / Executive 80,000 - - 300,000 380,000
Srichamni Director / President
Mr. Woraphant Director / Executive 80,000 - - 300,000 380,000
Chontong Director
Total 1,000,000 400,000 320,000 4,100,000 5,820,000

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Management Structure

Details on the meeting attendance of the Board of Subsidiary in 2015

Mr.Woraphant Chontong Director

11

Notice: the subsidiary is HTR Company Limited where the company holds 80.90% of its shares.

Money Remuneration of Subsidiary;

Aggregated remuneration for 1 Executives of the company’s subsidiary in 2015

The amount of 5,000 Baht was the meeting allowance

Details on Money Remuneration for Executives of the Company’s Subsidiary in 2015

Unit : Baht

Mr. Woraphant Chontong Director

5,000

Total

5,000

Notice: the subsidiary is HTR Company Limited where the company holds 80.90% of its shares.

12. Employee Structure
The company has 1,287 employee as of
December 31, 2015 and it can be divided into 2
groups, which are the operation division 1,002
people and the administration division 285 people
The
resources management, therefore, it has its plans

company concerns about human

fo manage human resources in case of the
adequate manpower in compliance with workload

and project that added up every year.

Employee Structure
In 2015, the Company gave the compensation
the amount of 633,747,981

which composed of salary and bonus

fo employees in
Baht,
equal 617,741,120 Baht, and provident fund equal
21,175,900 Baht.

The Subsidiary gave the compensation to
employees in the amount of 8,015,570 Baht, which
composed of salary and bonus equal 7,718,818
Baht, and provident fund equal 296,752 Baht.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

A change in the number of employees with
significant implication or labor dispute (during the
past 3 years)

During the past 3 years there was neither
a change in the number of the company employees
with significant implication nor labor dispute.

Human Resources Management Policy

Human Resources Management Policy of
the company is obviously stated that the company
shall take good care of its employee including
as salaries and welfare
with Labor Market and
company shall treat its
the

Company of Association, Labor Act and Social

employee benefits such
facilities in  accordance
other competitors. The
employee with justice and equality under
Morality. In addition, the company shall not only take
responsibility for its employee safety and harmonic
working atmosphere but also create teamwork
amongst them. Besides, it has the training roadmap
for supporting its employee both by individual and

by type of career paths in order to improve their
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Management Structure

working efficiency and working proficiency thus
the company can be added up into another level of

learning organization eventually.

Personnel Planning

Each year, the company shall estimate the
required quantity of employees for supporting current
projects and other projects that might occur in the
future. The main purpose of this is to obtain potential

gualified personnel in the appropriate fime.

Personnel Recruitment and Selection
Recruiting knowledgeable, capable, and
qualified people to join with the Company is the goal
of personnel recruitment. The company has various
channels of recruiting, such as newspapers, Infernet,
and government organization like the Department of
Employment, Department of Manpower and Human
Resources, and job opportunities’ booths arranged
by Universities. The Company recruits people by
conducting examinations and having Competency
Board interview candidates in order to have a
qualified people whom have the positive personality
fraits that we require. Traits that include vision,

teamwork, and creative thinking.

Performance Evaluation and Remuneration
Management.

The company creates the performance
evaluation system by combining the individual
performance along with team working performance
to be in accordance with the company performance,
and it is also the combination of the company
performance and the appropriate and fair salary.
This management shall always be developed since
the Labor Market and other competitors are usually
change by the fime by using human resources
tools like competency and KPI etc. The company
managed the

salary payment to employees

appropriately including welfares by mainly focus on
the situation at the present, short-term and long
term company performance, and other information

from the same business industry basis.

Employees Welfare
The Company has many beneficial welfare
programs for its employees as follows;
»  Welfare programs complying with Labor
Law such as Social Security Fund,
Workmen's Compensation Fund.
» Voluntary Welfare programs such as
Provident Fund, Life, and Accident
Insurance, Loyalty Reward, Sino-Thai
Scholarship, Annual Health Check-Up,
Uniforms, Funeral Assistance Fund,
Leaves i.e.; holiday leave and personal
leave, and Performance bonus.
Additionally,

free drinking water, Fitness Center,

the Company provides

restrooms, and basic over the counter

medication.

Learning and Personnel Development Policy
The company has always concerned about
fraining roadmap and supported the employee in
every level on providing the fraining course in
which they are infterest or the most useful for
their career. Therefore, the employee will have skKill,
knowledge and expertise to perform their potential
as the aim of the company business plan. With
learning and personnel development policy, it will
perform us well in both at the present and lasting
in the future. The development emphasized on 3
categories as followed;
1. Individual and Group Training &
Development
Career Path

Organizational Development
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Management Structure

Individual and Group Training & Development

The company is truly concerning upon
the individual training and development by using
competency, personal skill, and technical knowledge
& technology. The company defined the Training
Road Map to each position for being their training
and development frame. This method is cooperated
by Human Resources Development and the first
part of the department and the employee to evaluate
skill and knowledge that the employee should have.
There are in house training and outsource training
where arranged by top training centfer including
the expertise in variety careers, i.e. training with
the Council of Engineers, taking fraining course of
The Engineering Institute of Thailand: Technical of
Mega Construction, Geotechnical Engineering and
other courses such as Green Construction.

The company arranges In-House training
especially for the group of similar positions both in
operation division and administration division every
year. Such fraining courses will improve working
potential for the employee, for example, Construction
Management program, English for Engineers program,
Skill

program, Environment program, Leadership program

Presentation program, Safety Workshop
and How to perform as a Teamwork program. In
addition, the company also set up a short ferm
course like Mini-MBA for employee in level of
their

management skill by cooperating with Thammasat

Junior Management team 1o develop
University and Chulalongkorn University
Skill labors in lay bricks, plaster cement,
and welders need more skill both in theory and
in performing for their neat working performance.
The company contacted with the Department of
Skill

development through many classes arranged by the

Development for providing theory of skill

company of each year. The Students Recruitment
from universities Internship and prepare for future
career based learning, virtual reality work under

the close guidance from experienced players.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

Training Statistic in 2015

Staff 2,550 29,963

Career Path

The company has made a career plan for
each type of work as a guideline in personnel
development. Employees shall be advanced by
proper skills and knowledge in accordance with

their job titles and duties.

Organizational Development

In order to keep steady growth, abilities
in long-term competition, and increasing of the
capabilities of overall execution, the company has
in both

operations and administration. The Company aims

its policy on organization development
on improving the organization into a constant
learning organization to create the excellence in
operations, and to build up core values of
understanding, acquiring, and sharing knowledge.
The company supports these ideas by making
the the

Internet, and work shop fo search out valuable and

available 1o employees a library,

perfinent information, and seminars. Hopefully,
information gained from these venues can be passed
on to the job sites. In addition, the Company has

created Knowledge Management Center fo
encourage employees fto use the Infranet as a
channel for exchanging knowledge between internal
departments and job sites. Suggestions and
feedbacks are also encouraged and welcomed by

the administrators. We will strive for it consistently

13. The Development of Board Director and
Executives
The Board of Director has policy to support
the improvement of knowledge and skills, including
enhance the point of view of the Directors

continuously, which can bring the organization
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Management Structure

achieve the company’s objective. Moreover, the Company organizes the orientation to new Director in order
to understand the roles, responsibility, purposes, regulation, policy, and type of business so that the new
Director can perform their duties consecutively and effectively for the company.

For the Executive, the Company has a clear policy to support the knowledge development and
skills of the Executives in various fields, such as, training course, seminar, educatfion in Business
Management. Thus, the Executive can apply this knowledge to develop the organization and achieve the
knowledge has been set.

In 2015, there were 1 Director had taken courses for Director — Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon in

Directors Certification Program accordingly that arranged by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD).

The name list of the Directors who passes through Thai Institute of Director (IOD) as follows:

DAP 26/2004

1 Professor Rawat Chamchalerm

2 Mr. Chamni Janchai DAP 30/2004

RCP 21/2009

3 Police General Jate Mongkulhutthi DAP 8/2004
- ACP 14/2006
FND 30/2006

DCP 117/2009

DAP 78/2009
- ACP 26/2009
MIR 11/2011

4 Mr.Suchai Poopichayapongs

5 Mr. Thanathip Vidhayasirinun

DCP 7/2001

6 Gen. Surapan Poomkaew DAP 84/2010

DAP 112/2014
- DCP 212/2015

7 Mr. Chaiyong Satjipanon

8 Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul DAP 1/2003

9 Mrs. Anilrat Nitisaroj DCP 121/2009

DAP 52/2006
RCP 34/2014

Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

DAP 52/2006
DCP 161/2012

1 Mr.Pakpoom  Srichamni

DCP 27/2003
- DCP Refreshment 4/2007
RMP 1/2013

Mr.Woraphant Chontong

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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1 AABTINSINAMSTA  S110au - DAP 26/2004

2 w1l Funsane - DAP 30/2004
- RCP 21/2009

3 WARNSI3LONLAAT  NIARWRAG - DAP 8/2004
- ACP 14/2006
- FND 30/2006
- DCP 117/2009

4 wegty  givwey - DAP 78/2009
- ACP 26/2009
- MIR 11/2011

5 WLsUsY  InsedSiud - DCP 7/2001

6 WALONASWUS  Wiufid - DAP 84/2010

7 WeTued  da3wiuui - DAP 112/2014

DCP 212/2015

8 WPNIANIU  ¥1eY3sNA - DAP 1/2003
9 wweollased ddanlsad - DCP 121/2009
10 wigdaan uiIsiafies - DAP 52/2006
- RCP 34/2014
1 wenAgi - A3l - DAP 52/2006
- DCP 161/2012
12 WISWUS  Founey - DCP 27/2003

DCP Refreshment 4/2007
RMP 1/2013
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Health, Safety and Environmental Concerns

Health, Safety and Environmental Concerns

The company always holds to policy for work
achievements go along with the safety of the employees
and the surrounding communities. Our safety awareness
is about virtue and humanity, not just followed by
law and regulation and all workers have equally right

in safety policy. Therefore, safety is continuously one

of the company’s values. Management and employees

have mission to be responsible for the safety of their

ey |
= D 5 5

subordinates level, which is not the adding work but

safety is the first priority work to be accomplished and

5 i

always concern.

Safety Policy:

1. The company will promote and create safety
and environmental awareness at work.

2. The company recognizes that all workers are
valuable resources of the company. Thus safety
for worker is one of our most important policies.

3. The company will support the creation of
safety at work by providing safe tools and a
safe work environment, by promoting safety
knowledge among workers and motivating
them to practice safety at work.

4. The company has appointed the committee for
safety, occupational health, and surrounding
condition in work performance to create
plans and projects about safety, as well as
administer and develop these projects in order
fo bring about efficient results.

5. The company requires all supervisors to be
responsible for the safety of their subordinates
at work, ensuring that they strictly follow the
procedures and rules of safety established by
the company.

6. The company requires all workers to be
responsible for creating safety for themselves

and their colleagues; and to follow all safety

rules established by the company.

m I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Health, Safety and Environmental Concerns

7. The company requires all employees tfo
be responsible for preventing damage
and protection for the environment. In
addition, all employees must stay alert
and identify any hazardous acts that
could possibly effect the environment
as stated in the relative laws. The

company will be responsible for creating

environmental awareness in accordance

with the National Environmental Policy.

Key elements of safety plan

Safety, health and Environmental Standard
(Company HSE manual)

1. Safety training programs for all staff
position

2. New employee orientation and training
program

3. Safety promotion and incentive program

4. Job sdafety analysis (JSA) program for all
major and high risk work

5. Accident

system with follow up corrective measures

investigation and  reporting
Accident stdtistic and analysis

7. Preparing work method statement and
accident prevention method

8. Safety audit and inspection

The company has many solutions and
regulations on safety and environmental concerns
besides the safety management can be divided info
2 groups as followed:

1. Safety Plan represents how Sino-Thai
manages safety. It is consisting of safety
orientation for the new safety officers,
training course for chief officers / foreman,
appointment of Safety Committee, tools
and equipments verification, machinery
verification, indicate hazardous and risk
evaluation,

make a safety regulations

manual, safety talk/toolbox talk, operating

area verification, emergency plan and

firefighting plan, and safety activities etc.
2. Safety Procedure controls safety
operating system fo perform as defined
by the company. It consisting of making
the construction area, making the warning
board and signal alarm, wearing individual
safety suit, working in the high areq,
falling down prevention, working with
scaffolding, working with excavating /
a deep hole, working with machinery,
working in an unventilated area, operating
with electrical, working with the hard fools,
fraffic  management, work permission

system, and housekeeping efc.

However, the company has always verified
and evaluated safety procedures in order to develop
such results and the safety procedures to become
more potential and safe, so the company can
deliver all projects with care and safety that meet

the customers’ needs.

Safety Execution in 2015

The company contfinued on activities named
“Safety by Leaders” from the previous year. There
were Project Managers, Project Engineers, and
Senior Engineers aftended in monthly meeting
of safety, health and environmental committee to
review safety policy of each jobsite.

Safety Award in 2015 was annually arranged
in order to create safety awareness to all levels
of workers and create safety enthusiastic to every
jobsite. The safety committee will evaluate safety
management of the jobsite in every month and
finally best safety score shown in whose jobsite,
they will deserve to won the prize.

In addition, the company continues supporting
its motto of safety is the first priority by granting
awards  for

employees both temporary and
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Health, Safety and Environmental Concerns

permanent in case of working without fatal accident
by arranging a celebrating 60,000,000 work hours
without fatal accident at Ichthys Onshore LNG
Facilities jobsite and another celebrating 5,000,000
work hours without fatal accident of Kanom
Power Plant project. The celebration would bring
encouragement and motivation to our employees

and also create safety awareness as well.

Safety Training Program

1. The company provided safety training
program named, “Safety Leadership for
Management” in 3 classes for Project
Manager and upper levels.

2. The company has featured on the accident
that could happen to a worker who
works with elecftricity, so the company
define a policy for all construction units
fo try to prevent an accident happens
fo a worker who works with electricity
by co-partner with the Department of
Labor and provided a training course
named, “Electricians Basic Feature”
in 8 classes totaling 90 people for
Electricians and Safety Officers.

3. The company has featured on the
accidents that may occur to workers

work

whose involves working on

scaffolding and higher area, so the
company define a policy for every jobsite
fo prevent any accident that might injure
to workers whose work are involved
with working on scaffolding and higher
area by co-partner with the Department
of Skill

training course named, “Controller and

Development providing a
Inspector of Scaffolding” in 10 classes
for Foreman, Supervisors, Engineer and
Safety Officers.

4. The company has featured on risk
associated with crane by providing
a ftraining course to make a good
understanding of using crane as set by
related law and regulation for example,
“Safety on Working with Crane Using”
for workers who have to use crane in 7
classes for Crane Operatfor, Signalman,
Rigger, and Lifting Supervisor.

5. The company provided a fraining course
named, “Working Safely in Confined

Space” in 24 classes for Supervisors,

Assistants, and Operators.

The company concerns about safety by
supporting safety programs that especially adhere
to the narcotics control policy of the Office of the
Narcotics Control Board by creating a project named,
“White Plant” at Precast Concrete Complex in
Nonthaburi province and Fabrication Plant in Rayong
province. In addition, the company arranged the urine
test strip of the workers to find the narcotics like
amphetamine and to prevent all behaviors that might
harm to our workers’ life. Furthermore, some jobsites
random its workers for the alcohol breathe before
getting info the working area. The company is also
provided health check program for all workers before

going to work in the confined space.

Environment Concern

All projects of the company may adversely

affect the environment, however, the company
is significantly concentrate on environment. The
Company has prepared the following solutions for
environmental impact, which may occur as a result

of the operations:

Solutions on the environmental impact and
the primary environmental quality check
during the course of construction:
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Health, Safety and Environmental Concerns

Air quality

Noises

Sweeping and cleaning the construction
area to prevent dust from construction
as well as placing various tools and
equipments in order.

Spraying the areas which may spread
the dust with water; such as, the area
where the ground surface is dug opened
or drilled.

Safety nets must be used fo curtain off
the construction area from the adjoining
neighboring community. The nets must
be thick enough to strain the dust
derived from the construction under the
acceptable quantity.

Inspecting engines and machineries
for the construction areas in order to
prevent the releasing of soof and dust
and cleaning vehicles, specifically, the
areas underneath the body and the
wheels when they have to be moved
from the construction areas.

The Company will provide construction
signs for the purpose of versatility and
safety of the fraffic regarding to fraffic
management.

Check and maintenance of the public
fraffic routes in the originally good or
better condition as well as strictly
compiling with the Transport Rules.
Prescribing a speed limitation of trucks
operated in the construction areas not

to exceed 40 kilometers per hour.

Fixing the time for driving in the pilings
not to be correspondingly coincided with
the bed time of the people, particularly,

the construction area located near the

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

community and schools during the day
time.

2. Using engines or machineries that
have regular maintenances fo prevent
excessive noise.

3. Using block fence line to prevent noises
in the case when machineries are near

to the community.
Adjoining Community

1. Having company representative(s) tfo
participate in every Village Committee
or Tambon Administration Council (Or.
Bor.Tor.) to listen to the explanation or
their opinions.

2. Erecting bulletin board to post the
announcements on the details of names
and contacting places for receiving
complaints and recommendations as
well as the reports on the follow up
of environmental condition and fraffic
accidents.

3. Providing reasonable assistance to
the community accordance with the
company policy by giving educational
scholarships and schools supplies and
constructing school and library buildings
for various schools indeed located near

the job site.

The Company has taken steps in accordance
with the solutions to reduce environmental impact
and primary solutions to strict environmental
quality check during the course of construction.
To decrease such impact as much as possible fo
the environment and community. The established
solutions are merely the primary solutions and
there may be additional solutions coming up in
concordance with the recommendations of the

experts and related official organizations.
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Business Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company operates business by
recognizing the business responsibility fowards
society, economy, environment and good
governance; based on the fact that if society is
strengthened, it will lead to a sustainable business
growth. To support the vision and mission,
the Company has to set a policy to conduct
business with corporate social responsibility,
according to international guidelines and accordance
with the Office of The Securities and Exchange
Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

To conduct the business policy on corporate
social responsibility, the Company begins to
identify the stakeholders of the company, including
the assessment of expectation and need of
stakeholders each company through the agency
involved both direct and indirect to each stakeholders
group. After gathering all data, it was evaluated as

the following guidelines.

o Economy The Company is committed
fo be the leading engineering and

construction company which can deliver

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

=3

their work fo clients internationally. The
company’s portfolio is a part of country
development and brings prosperity to

the area around the nation.

Community The Company focuses
on education and supports it through
the “Sino-Thai Payback Program”
and “Sino-Thai return freshness to
Charnvirakul buildings” to encourage
people in the community who lack
of education opportunities can help
themselves. In addition, the Company
supports society in order to alleviate
the suffering of the victims and
supports social development in various

fields continuously.

Environment The Company recognizes
the performance regarding fo safety and
environment. The Company has set policy,
guideline, follow up and improvement

for the safety and environment strictly.
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Business Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility

Moreover, the Company provides
knowledge and ftrainings in order to
perform the process according to working
standard which related fo the safety
and environment, including support the
environment protection in the area of

each project.

o Corporate governance practices The

Company gives importance to the
way to operate business with fair and
verifiability. It concerns all stakeholders of
the company through the good corporate
governance policy and practices relating
to guidelines of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Stock

Exchange of Thailand.

From the practices, the company pushes
and supports the operation involved in order to
conduct business on corporate social responsibility

which leads to sustainable development.

Identify and analyze the stakeholders

The company has undertaken to determine
and analyze the stakeholders of the company by
gathering data from each department of company both
primary stakeholders and secondary stakeholders
as follows;

» Shareholders

» C(Clients
»  Staff
» Partners

» Creditors

» Competitors

» Governmental Organizations

» Community and Society

It would be good to know about the needs
of each stakeholder group and bring it to be as

guidelines in order to set the policies, strategies

and management which meet their needs more

effectively and sustainably.

The implementation of corporate social
responsibility

1. Good Corporate Governance

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction
Public Company Limited has realized the significance
of the good corporate governance policies, which
will improve the excellence of work and management
processes, as well as the Company’s performance
and its reliabilities among investors and the related
parties in 5 categories; Shareholders’ Rights,
Equitable Treatment of Shareholders, Role of
Stakeholders, Disclosure and Transparency, and
Board Responsibilities moreover, it will increase
the maximum value to shareholders; the Company
has thus determined the principle of good corporate
governance policy in accordance with the
guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
(SET). In addition, the company has its con of
conduct for Directors, Executives and employees
to be their guidelines for best practices toward
stakeholders and improve its management to be
fransparent and efficient. Please find more in
details in good corporate governance section and

code of conduct section.

2. Business implementation with fairness

The Company runs business in accordance
with laws, regulation and conditions related tfo
business implementation strictly and define business
ethics to determine the direction of business based
on the principles of morality and justice and do the
right thing, including bidding construction projects,
business procurement in order to have competition
fairly. Moreover, we ensure that there is transparency

in business, accurately disclosure and appropriate
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Business Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility

information, non- infringement of intellectual property.
Furthermore, the Company encourages all employees
to have responsibility for their dufies by defining
code of conducts clearly for the Board of Directors,
Executive Directors and employees, including
operating the business with good sense of corporate
social responsibility and environment. In addition, it
should be concerned the stakeholders whom the
Company has set a clear policy and communicate
to employees to have a better understanding in this
matter with the operation regarding safety, health
and working environment and organizes various
social activities. The Company believes that the
way to be truly sustainable is fo take into account
the economy, society, and environment and respect

human right and treat labor fairly.
3. Anti-Corruption

The Company recognizes the importance
of anti-corruption by launching the written policy
of anti-corrupfion and corruption with giving an
explanation, knowledge and support the Board of
Directors, Executives Directors and employees
understand and recognize the importance of
anti-corrupfion and corruption together with the
practice involved, such as receiving or giving gifts
or other benefits, giving the donation or subsidize
money for governmental and private sectors, risk
assessment of corruption, creating awareness
against corruption and giving explanation about the
policies to those involved.

Please find more in details in Anti-Corruption

Policy

4. Respect for human rights and treat
employees fairly

The Company recognizes the importance of
all employees who is a crucial resource which can

bring the Company meets the goal. Therefore, the

policies and working direction have been defined

as follows;

. Human resources management policy

The Company has determined a clear human
resources management policy which defined how
fo treat employees with fairness, equality and
respect the right of employees under the regulatory
framework of employees, labor legislation, fradition
in society and human rights. The Company
provides compensation and benefits appropriately,
the practice in employment and fair employment
contract. There is knowledge development and
ability in working with multi-tasks. Moreover,
the Company provides the department of sKill
development to determine the career path and
evaluate the performance clearly. In addition,
employees can participate and give their opinion
through channels provided and company’s activities
in order to support the communication with each

other.

° Do not violate the rights of employees

The Company realizes how to treat
employees by respecting for fundamental the
human rights as required by the laws. It should not
do or operate business to violate the human rights
and do not discriminate against any person because
of the similarities or difference in race, religion,
gender, age, education, or any other matter. The
Company defines the policies about not violating
human rights clearly and explicates the code of

conduct for directors, management and employees.

° Policy on Safety, Health and Work Place

Safety policy is a crucial policy of company.
The policy of entire success must go along with the
safety of staff and involved people. The Company
established the Commission of Safety, Health and
Environment to make the project safety plan. There

is project development and follow up the results
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substantially whichis launched the standard of safety,
health and environment. There are assessment
and prevention, including investigation and accident
reports for improvement, regulatory and safety
inspection. In addition, the Company provides training
to educate the good attitude on safety project named
“Safety By Leaders” in order that the manager
of the project can take part in the safety operation
and the project of Outstanding Office in Safety
which has been contested monthly and annually to
encourage everyone concern about safety, health
and working environment.

From the stafistical data on safety, it can

be found the injuries due to the company’s work

as follows;
Year Accidental Ratio
(Unit : Deaths/1,000 Person — Month)
2012 0.66
2013 0.60
2014 0.64
2015 0.53

5. Client Responsibility

. Provide and deliver the quality with

international standard

To provide and delivery projects to client,
the Company is committed to work with quality
along with the international standard and take info
account the implementation of the principles of
engineering and construction, including the usage
of equipment, mechanical machine and modern
fechnology. The effective management is also
essential to sustainable business operation which
realize to society and environment. In addition, the
Company gives client confidence in the operation
and performance of company. It's also developed its

competitiveness and sustainable growth.

. Disclosure of information relating to

clients

In engineering and construction services of
company, the Company discloses related information
properly, accurately and adequately in accordance
with guidelines of owners/clients defined strictly
in each projects including the process of bidding,
during construction process, delivery and warranty

work.

° Agreement between a company and client

fairly

An agreement between the company and
owner/client should process clearly and fairly and
do not commit any act to limit the right of clients
and carry out the agreement strictly. If the Company
is unable to comply with the agreement or condition,
the Company will discuss with clients to find the

way to solve the problem.

. Maintain client confidentiality

The Company will maintain the confidentiality of
client information, not published for business or
marketing, if clients are not allowed to disclose
unless it's the disclosure laws or regulation governing
the company. The Company has fo explain to all
staff/relating department to understand the way fo

keep confidentiality and privacy of clients.

6. Environmental Care

. Measure of construction project

environment conservation

The Company recognizes the importance of
environment conservation in order that the project
construction of company affects environment the
least or stays in the acceptable standard by
organizing the prevention measure and follow up the
effect on environment regarding rules, regulations,

and related law strictly. This should go along with
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the owners or the Office of Natural Resources
and Environmental Policy and Planning suggest
depending on the details of each projects. The
Company provides the clear guidelines to conserve
both physical biological environments, for example,
the construction area should have boundary fence
in the section area, ensure tidiness, show the
details of the construction with the owner’s contact
to receive complaints or suggestions from residents
nearby. Moreover, there are a management to reduce
pollution of air, water, noise, and other relevant matters.
It also should be scheduled the construction
period causing noise and must inform the residents
nearby in advance. In addition, it's better to use the
resources worthily and check engine and machinery
used in good condifion in order to reduce the
pollution. Also, the Company provides the legal
liability insurance to life and property of the third
party by showing a copy of insurance policy in the

construction area, etc.

7. Innovation from the implementation of
corporate social responsibility

. Development of the construction process

to minimize the impact on the community

The construction process, such as a train
or a bridge or road construction projects, may work
on road surface which makes the community and
the traffic may be inconvenient to travel. To reduce
such effects, the Company presents the way in the
construction process named “Prefabrication and
Precast Concrete”, which are created and assembled
equipment from the company’s plant and be
installed in the field. In addition, it can decrease the
working time on a job site and decrease impact on
the community and residences nearby. Moreover,
the Company can use less labors and increases

working efficiency.

8. Social and Community Development

. Sino-Thai Payback Program

The Company recognizes the importance
of education and youth development which is
important foundation to develop society and economy
of the country. The Company starts the project
“Sino-Thai payback to Society” since 2002 by
constructing school buildings, library building,
multi-purpose building, scholarships and educational
materials giving for schools and educational
institfutions in poor areas. At the beginning of this
project, the Company selected schools near the
construction site of the company, and then the
projects are expanded to other areas of the country
by launching policies and guidelines of selection for
schools indeed. This is to encourage people in the
community who lack of educational opportunities
fo help and take care of themselves.

Apart from giving school buildings, library
buildings, multi-purpose buildings, scholarships and
educational materials for schools and educational
institutions, the Company has initiative to preserve
the buildings which have been constructed and given
fo schools. It will focus on repairing the damage;
painting buildings so that the buildings can be
brighten, valuable and usable for the next several
years. Those buildings remain keep the title
“Charnvirakul Building” in the project of “Sino-Thai
return freshness to Charnvirakul Building”

Since the program has begun from now,
the Company has donated the school buildings,
library buildings and multi-purpose buildings more
than 60 schools which the Company continues to
subsidize education and youth development through
this program every year.

By the year 2015, the company constructed
and delivered building for 3 schools as follows;

» Charnvirakul Building 60,

Baan Khoen School, Phuket province.
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»  Charnvirakul Building 61,
Baan Taopoon School, Phrae province.
» Charnvirakul Building 62,
Baan Huak School, Phayao province.
Moreover, the company carries out repairs
the school building for schools in poor areas which
was given to one of the following
» Repairing School building Por 1 Kor
for Baan Khao Hua Chang School,

Nakhonsithammarat province.

Furthermore, in 2015 the company carries
“Happy Lunch for children” project, to provide a
nutritious lunch and snacks for children in poor

areas, in connection with the community service

to support sustainability education. In 2015, the

company provided Lunch for 8 schools as follows;

or support the team with equipment and machinery

» Baan Huay Plu School,
or vehicles in order to alleviate the suffering of the
Chachoengsao province.
» Wat Don Tha Na School,
Chachoengsao
» Baan Chak Nong Mee School,

Ratchburi province.

victims and support social development as follows:
» To help victims of natural disasters,
such as floods, earthquakes, tsunamis,

efc.

» To help the victims of accidents such
» Baan Klauy School,
) ) as the towers collapsed.
Ratchburi province.

» Support religious and temple communit
» Baan Palai School, PP J P J

development
Nakorn Ratfchasima province.

To subsidize and help in various matters,
» Kotan School,

] the Company has a policy in practice and consider
Ayutthaya province.
) the approval clearly.
»  Chumchonborisatnamtaltawanaok
School,
Rayong province.
» Wat Prachetuphon School,

Bangkok

In 2015, the company has undertaken the
following activities to support community as follows;
» To donate new year 2015 gift baskets

to Ban Bang Khae Social Welfare
Development Center for Older Persons.

. oy » Todonate 500 duvets to Channel 3 famil
o Social Activities J

news for Baan Rakthai Community,
In addition to the education and development

) Maehongson province.
of young people, the Company has contributed to

society in a variety of forms including a donation

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Anti-Corruption

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public

Company Limited commit to operate with fair,
and abide by

regulations for business and realize that the company

fransparent, related laws and
should pay attention fo its stakeholders as well.
The company defined a business principle for
countering bribery against corruption as a best
practice for Directors, Executives and employees.
The company disseminated such principles to its

stakeholders.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The Board of Directors, the Executives and
employees must do their duties with integrity and
without any act of bribery; moreover the company
shall prohibit in any form whether direct or indirect,
and must adhere to the company’s policies and

code of conduct.
Procedures

Receiving or Offering Customary Gifts,
or other Benefits
To operate the company’s business that

related fo biddings other projects, procurement,

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

communicafing business, or any other related
company’s business transaction in both public and
private sectors must do with fair, transparent and
verification. The company realized the importance
of any act that might result in improper influence
including receive or offer customary gifts or other
benefits that might cause any corruption.

In 2015,

no new year gifts giving and receiving tfo/from

the company has announced that

customers, business partners, government sectors,
financial institutions, and other related organizations,
to assure the commitments in operafing with
fransparency, justice , fair and equal with moral

principal basis.

Offering Sponsorships or Charitable
Contributions to Public or Private Sectors
Offering sponsorships or charitable
contributions to both public and private sectors must
strictly do with transparent that did not contrary
fo the morality, code of conduct, and abide by
laws and regulations of the company. The offering
sponsorships or charitable contributions as the foresaid
can be done after the approval of the original

affiliation.
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Anti-Corruption

The offering sponsorships or charitable
confributions to public or private sectors must not
be used as a subtferfuge or route for conflict of
interest in both individual benefits and company’s
benefits and must not be used as a subterfuge for
bribery.

The approvals of offering sponsorships or
charitable contributions to public or private sectors
must strictly adhere to the regulations by writing
the report attached with the offering sponsorships
or charitable coniributions payment for approvals
and submit all related papers to the Executives for

considering process.

Political Participation

The company is a politically neutral
organization and does not support any political
parties or politicians including enabling the Board
of Directors, Executfives and employees not to
parficipate in any act under the name of the
company.

The company realizes that it is righteous
of its people according to the liberty and rights in
participating the political activities; therefore the
company encourages its people to exercise their
political rights in compliance with laws but prohibit
using employees’ status or using any company’s
assets as a subterfuge or route for any form to
political participation or political contributions in the
name of the company.

To express and giving political opinion in
the company’s office or job site area is penalty to

the company’s association.

Whistleblowing for Business countering Bribery

The company supports its personnel to
report any misconduct or non-compliance or any
form of action that might result bribery by sending
their enquiries to managers or other channel that

open for this matter. The company has whistleblowing

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

and whistleblower protection policy as stated
in the good governance chapter. The additional

complaints channel for whistleblowing as follows;

Corporate Secretary Office
Address: Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company
Limited

29 FI., Sino-Thai Tower,

32/59 Asok Road,

Bangkok 10110
corporatesecretary@stecon.co.th

02-610-4994

E-mail address:

Telephone:

Evaluation for risk from countering bribery
The Internal Audit of the company has
responsible for doing the evaluation of risk from
countering bribery by evaluate, analyze, follow,
and control risk that might result bribery to be
acceptable and report the evaluation result to the
Audit Committee including follow up the procedures
fo prevent risk from countering bribery with the

Principles for Countering Bribery.

Countering Bribery Awareness

The company creates countering bribery
awareness by communicating to the Board of
Directors, Executives and employees in order to
create the cognitive of countering bribery in the
company. The company enables its people who
might relate fo the stakeholders fo understand and
aware of countering bribery by providing course
frainings, seminars, and through other related
media of the company and disseminate to the

company’s stakeholders as well.

Sanction Procedures for Breaches of the
Principles

To whom it may breach of the Principles
for Countering Bribery must be penalized according

to the company’s regulations and/or related laws.
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Risk Factor

1. Risk in Business

1.1 Risk associated with Mega Projects

and Impact of company’s performance

The company may submit the bidding
document to mega projects and the contract has
to be signed with the related organization including
the government sectors or even the private sectors
who has been received the concession from the
government. Many people are inferested in such
projects and it can be easily verified by the public
and other related organizations of the government.
These projects may cause delay and changes,
which affect to the company’s performance. Hence,
the company tries to reduce these risks by revenue
managing - balancing the governmental and private

projects.

1.2 Risk associated with duration of new
project acquisition
The company had fo face with risk

associated with duration of new project acquisition

because the circle of new project acquisition
cannot be controlled and most of our income was
came from the revenue from construction where
we won the bidding. In addition, bidding process
of some projects are complicated and it takes fime
which depends on source of fund and investment
policy announced by the government, therefore, the
company’s performance is fluctuated by new project
acquisition. To prevent the risk, the company fried
to bid construction projects in many categories
cover both government and private sectors and
keep remaining its backlog that suitable for its

revenue.

1.3 Risk associated with fluctuation in the
economy and politic

Sometimes, an economic fluctuation and

political

instability in country may affect the

Management and Development Policy, especially, the

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

policy regarding the construction of infrastructure,

fransportation  services and  governmental
disbursement. That could affect the construction
The

company ftries to reduce the fluctuation from risks

volume decreased and competition in auction.

which may arise from the mentioned cases. The
company income structure management should
be appropriate for both governmental and private

sectors and go abroad for bidding.

1.4 Risk associated with competition

Construction business is a business with
high competition. Sometimes, there is a limited
amount of work in the market while there are
many construction companies as a result of high
competition. The company may confront with the
competition from domestic and foreign competitors
which may affect the company’s income some
fimes. However, the company can control the risk
by selecting the bid with expert and competitive
companies. Moreover, the company may bid for

projects in foreign countries.

2. Risk in Production

2.1 Risk associated with Construction

Materials Prices

The changes of material prices may affect to
the cost of construction. The company also aware
to this subject, therefore it keeps closely inspecting
the material prices. If the company realized that
material prices trend will be in the uptrend the
company will buy the necessary material in order
fo limit the price risk. In addition, the company has
good relationship with the suppliers, which makes

the negotfiation go well.

2.2 Risk associated with labour
cost raising
Labour cost is one of the important costs

in construction business. According to the policy of

/
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Risk Factor

raising labour costs from the government, it affects
fo company cost increase. However, the company
has measures fo reduce the impact from raising
cost of labour, for example, arrange construction
system for labour, use new technology, equipment,
and machine instead of labour and control expense

costs strictly.

2.3 Risk associated with liability claims

The construction process may result in
a third party to be harmed, the property to be
damaged, or environment impact and pollufion
which may occur during construction. This may
lead to an accusation from those events. However,
the company tries to reduce the risks. If there is
damage, the company will investigate the matter
and resolve the problem as soon as possible. In
addifion, the company has insurance coverage for

the risks with insurance companies.
3. Risk in Management

3.1 Risk associated with Workforce

Shortage

The Company has experienced and
specialized workforce who are a significant
important resources to the Company. Personnel
such as project managers, project engineers,
supervisors, and foremen's. All are integral parts
of the management of a construction project from
its beginning to its completion. Therefore, the
Company has risks regarding the shortage of
the said workforce. Particularly important are the
expert, experienced engineers that the Company
has employed and well trained to be its permanent
employees. The Company, therefore, has its
measures to reduce the risk of workforce shortage
by motivating these personnel fo work for the
Company on a long-term basis, promoting their
career advancement, and giving all employees with

proper remuneration and welfare.

3.2 Risk associated with labour shortage
Labour is one of the most important factors
in construction. The Company has the suitable
workforce management about labour income, safety
health. When the domestic

economy grows, the construction investment also

and occupational

rises. This can generate the problem of labour
shortage; some construction projects might be
delayed. However, the Company has measure to
reduce the mention risks; that is the Company
gives motivation for workers in order fo stay with
the Company as long as they can, provides migrant
workers adequately and increases the proportion of

sub-contractors.

3.3 Risk associated with Unbilled

Receivables

Although the company completes many
projects or delivers work progress on schedule,
in some cases it cannot issue invoice or collect
money as stated in the contract due to the delayed
work certification from the client. In addition, the
Company, sometimes, has to operate its projects
with variation/change orders from the client without
confirmation or approval of the cost estimation of
the variation. The client shall eventually accept all
new costs and conditions that were caused by
the variation order but the company has to face
some delay payment until such order will finally be
approved. Therefore, the company will always be
prudent in closely monitoring and o keep in close

contact with the client or their representatives.

3.4 Risk associated with Joint Venture
Liabilities
To increase the potential of winning high
value projects, the company may enter into joint
venture agreements with appropriate and qualified
partner(s). With this strategy, the company will be
able fo reduce its financial and project execution

risks. However, the concern will be whether these
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Risk Factor

partners can actually deliver what is promised and
stipulated under the contract. To weaken this risk,
the company will effectively analyze each partners’
business profile including their reliability before

making any decision o join fogether.

3.5 Risk associated with delayed work

project

The company receives the large infrastructure
construction project of the government which has
more details and complicated procedure. Sometimes,
the project may impact with some group of people
which result in the protestation towards the projects
or some projects were late submitted. It may cause
construction working process cannot follow the
schedule plan, so the company cannot deliver the
projects on time. The company has to pay fine for the
damage occurred which lead to revenue and profit of
the company. Thus, the company tries to reduce the
risks and accept to get work by estimating working
duration according with the reality, inspection and
control working closely Moreover, the company has
to solve the problem instantly. This could make
management more effectively and reduce the risks

from delayed work project.

4. Risk in Finance

4.1 Risk associated with Financial

Liquidity

In the construction business, adequate
working capital is required for the purposes of
procurement of raw materials and wage payments.
For example, if the liquidity management is not
efficient, the Company may not be able to handle
new construction projects or carry out the existing
construction project to complefion. However, the
Company has realized this risk and has therefore
created careful

its policy for management of

liquidity. Before the Company will handle any

construction project, an advance payment must

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

be received. Despite critical situations that has
affected the construction industry, the Company
still has financial resources o support its business

operations, with proper cost.

4.2 Risk associated with Fluctuation

of Exchange Rates

In some construction projects, the Company
may have to import construction materials and
equipment in foreign currencies; and the fluctuation
of exchange rates may affect the cost of the
Company. Therefore, the Company has reduced the
risk of fluctuation of exchange rates by means of
financial management such as purchasing through

domestic suppliers or hedging with financial

instruments, as may be necessary.
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Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors had resolved that the
good corporate governance was appropriate and
in compliance with the international standard as
defined by The Securities and Exchange Commission,
The Stock Exchange of Thailand, and Thai Institute
of Directors etc.

By the year 2015, the Board reviewed the
good corporate governance in specific sessions as
follows;

1. Disclose the performance assessment
of the Board and the Board Committees
in group and individual
(Self-assessment).

2. Disclose the performance assessment
of President

3. Manage the board of director meetings
at the beginning of the year, then
inform to the Board of Directors
to be acknowledged except other
extraordinary meetings.

4. Disclose the direct and indirect

shareholding of senior management.

5. Disclose the company objectives or
long term goal.

6. Revise the definition and qualification of
Independent Director.

7. Manage that the board of directorsreviews
and approves the vision, mission, and
business strategy every year.

8. Disclose the President and senior
management compensation policy.

9. Disclose risk management policy.

1.  The Principle of Good Corporate
Governance Policy
Sino-Thai

Public Company Limited has realized the significance

Engineering and Construction

of the good -corporate governance policies,
which will improve the excellence of work and
management processes, as well as the Company’s

performance and its reliabilities among investors

and the related parties; moreover, it will increase
the maximum value to shareholders; the Company
has thus determined the principle of good corporate
governance policy in accordance with the
guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand

(SET) and rely on 4 items:

1. “Transparency” is the basementfor trust
amongst stakeholders and the Company.
Transparency create theCompany's effectiveness
and the capital market procedures; it also
helps the Board of Directors solve problems
effectively and gives shareholders and the
related parties an opportunity to scrutinize the

Company more thoroughly.

2. “Integrity”is the wayofundertakingbusiness
with straightforwardly beyond good morale.
The financial statements and other
information have been disseminated fo
public and other investors should fairly
and accurate prepared in compliance with

the company’s financial status.

3.  “Accountability” is

the Board of Directors and shareholders.

essential  toward
The Board of Directors must express the
accountability and have a crucial role in
proposing the reports on the Company’s
performanceto shareholders.The accountability
of the Board of Directors must be based
on suitable rules and regulations; and the
disclosure of the Company’s performance
must be accurate due to the Company’s suc-

cess.

4.  “Competitiveness” aims for

progress and

creating
increasing  shareholders’
value. Corporate governance shall enhance
the inifiation without hinder, efficiency and

the ability of leadership and vision. Therefore,
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Corporate Governance

this will cause the Company advantages in

competitiveness amongst the others.

1.1. Shareholders’ Rights

Principle

The Board of Directors is aware of the
shareholders’ rights to any of the Company’s
operations and will encourage the shareholders to
exercise their rights. The Board of Directors will
refrain from any actions that may violate or limit

the shareholders’ rights.

Best Practices

o Shareholders’ Meeting

The Board of Directors shall be obliged to
supervise the organization of shareholders’ meetings
to ensure strict compliance with applicable laws,
rules and regulations without any prejudice to the
shareholders’ rights. The Board of Directors shall
refrain from any actions, which may limit the rights
of all shareholders, including institutional investors,
as follows:

» Notice of shareholders’ meeting with
details on date and time of the meeting,
agenda of the meeting, and complete
and sufficient information on each
agenda for the shareholders to study
in advance of the meeting

» Disclosure of and access to accurate,
complete, appropriate and sufficient
information for the shareholders

» The

shareholders clear explanations on

Company should give the
how to vote and prepare a person to
verify correctness of vote counting
during the shareholders’ meeting for
transparency of the votes.

» Giving shareholders the right to cast

vote fo elect an individual director

» The Company allocates appropriate
time for the shareholders’ meeting
and encourages the shareholders to
express their opinions and raise
guestions.

» The shareholders should be given an
opportunity to attend the shareholders’

meeting any fime during the meeting.

e Chairman of the Board, Directors

and Top Management’s Attendance

at Shareholders’ Meeting

Chairman of the Board, all directors, company
secretary and top management of the Company
shall attend all shareholders’ meetings unless they
have necessary issues must be cleared. This is
fo allow them to listen to suggestions and answer

guestions from the shareholders.

o Minutes of the Shareholders’ Meeting

The minutes of the shareholders’ meeting
are disclosed to shareholders in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations. Data are
accurately and completely recorded, including
methods of how to vote and count the votes,
names of directors aftending the meeting,
guestions and answers, and the resolutions on
each agenda of the meeting. The minutes of the
shareholders’ meeting both in Thai and English
languages will be disclosed on the Company’s

website (www.stecon.co.th).

o Equitable Rights of Shareholders to
Dividend Payment and Repurchasing
Stock
The Company has given all shareholders an

equitable right to dividends and/or other benefits
and the right to repurchase stock. In this regard,
the Company has established a clear dividend

payment policy.
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1.2 Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

Principle

The Board of Directors realizes its duty to
protect the rights of shareholders, place importance
on fair and equal treatment of all shareholders,
and encourage the shareholders to exercise their
rights. The Board of Directors has also developed
certain measures fo prevent the directors and
management of the Company from using internal
information for their personal unlawfully benefits,

which may cause damages to the shareholders.

Best Practices

» Notice of Shareholders’ Meeting

For equitable freatment of all shareholders,
in sending the Notice of Shareholders’ Meeting,
Proxy Form A, B, and C, and instructions on how tfo
appoint authorized representatives for shareholders
who cannot aftend the meeting in person, the
Board of Directors requires that the lefter of
invitation to meeting must be disseminated both in
Thai and English languages at least 30 days prior
to the meeting date on the Company’s website
(www.stecon.co.th) and that the notice of
shareholder's meeting must be sent to the
shareholders at least 21 days before the date
scheduled for the shareholders’ meeting. In case
of a foreign shareholder, the notice of shareholders’
meeting and supporting documents in the English

language must be sent.

« Voting Right
For equitable treatment, a shareholder shall

have one vote per share.

o Agenda Proposition and Nomination of
Directors
The Company adheres to the principle of
equitable treatment of all shareholders and in order

to give all shareholders an opportunity to propose

matters fo the Board of Directors as meeting agenda
or nominate qualified persons as the Company’s
directors, the Company has established the criteria
for agenda proposition and director nomination.
Such criteria consist of qualifications of the
shareholders to propose the meeting agenda or
nominate a director, procedures for proposition of
the agenda and director nomination, matters not
fo be included as an agenda, consideration and
selection procedures, and announcement of the
consideration results. Details of such criteria are
shown on the Company’s website

(www.stecon.co.th).

o Internal Information Usage Policy
Please see Item 4 Use of Internal Information

for detail.

o Policy on Securities Trading of

Directors and Top Management of

the Company

The Board of Directors has determined a
policy on securities trading of the Company’s
directors and top management to prevent their use
of insider information that is nonpublic and essential
to change in the prices of securities (Insider Trading),

which is considered an unfair trading.

e Policy on Connected Transactions,
Related Party Transactions, and
Conflict of Interest
The Company redlizes the benefits of

shareholders and fair treatment of all shareholders.

To prevent conflict of interests and to achieve

fransparent and accountable business operations,

the Company has a clear policy on disclosure of
connected transactions, related party fransactions
and conflict of interests in order to enhance
the confidence of shareholders, investors and
stakeholders. The significant connected fransactions,
related party transactions and conflict of interests

mustbereviewedand approved by the Audit Committee



N1SNIAURANANINIS

« MsIsSauUs:guLinoruvavls:su
NSSUNISUSEN NSSUNISUSEN
lazGuSKISS=AUgY

USEsIUNITUNISUSEN  NSTHNISUSEMNNAU

a o

WUILNITUSEN  SININEUSUISSEAUEN  6aansIu

(=] ° @)

Uszyugforuynasaiuuaiivgsnduy

q

WWaSUWITD

LALDUULAZADUAIN NN OOV

$19IUNMSUS:BULHOAU
srgaunsusyyugfouinisidaissonio

Y] q
LY

dusuiingring  Jotedu  uavsuifsufifisades
Avualisg1amaseass  lasiinisdunindoyasgegn
dosasudaummnzan iinesdusedisnsasaziuy
KAYNISTUALUUULASN nstufinsedenssuns
UsnAdnsanUssgn nstuiindniudaeuannng
dnnuvefouuarnistuinuafiusepiluudas
Msrosedaian Wudu Wil srsemnsUsequiie
WUUSEMIAIWOUWSNIUN1G - Website 98901905 EN

v o & o @
m8 N www.stecon.co.th VNVlLUuﬂ’lH’ﬂVliJLLagﬂ’IH’I

g

« msihansyiioAulunisinsuiiuduwana:
anslunisSusoerRunulnausenagnuina
Ineuu

vivmle W ansungiounnsielunisldsu
Ruilunauaz/vionalselovilaquazanslunissude
VuAulagussnedraiieutu  lasusenldanivua
Wuulsurglunisietuiuwasgredaiau

1.2 msUfjuRrawioruagInInguiu

nanms : mMsujuinaunaRuagWININgunu
AMENSSUNISUSENANISU TR foviunn
1 1 a (Y} @ =3 Y a
SR INUNYNNURATIUUSSSH  suDvUnUavans
Yy v a) Y va v
vovifioiunnsie  wazlalenidlgiofuynsie
1819 ansvovaueay InvivAnenssun1susemlad
w1asn15toaiunsdinssun1suSenuasusuisly
Tayantgluienausyloviunauieeiagdulunis
Aoy FadunisiondSeunsonaliiiiannudsung

1 Ya v
FRIRIY!

1
el

nuaunUuANA

: MsURU UﬂOHUOEﬂ\]ImInUUﬂU

o HdolnUs:suwNioN

o unsUfiad e feunnsiogiaina
g el,um'sawuqﬁaua Usequeffioy  wuunis
HBUSUNEIN WUU N WUU 9 UAY WUU A SIuieAT
wuzihduselunisusudune iedusAAzaIN
uigdoud hiaunsadisaunisUssgudioauos
AMENSSNNISUSENSUa RN sIne WSl Ao 3oy
Useuifouiantunlnsnazniudunguaenin
agtey 30 Yunowiuuszyudieviu vuiultdves
USeMm  www.stecon.co.th  uazaLfiuNISTaAY
wils@atinlsyyugfoualaiiogvtoy 21 Junau
ulsegu  Tapwnidudfouarerifazdnilunisde
dwnilvAetnUsyyuuazionaisusenaunisusyguniu
aUuUNMEISIN Y

o @nSlumsavn:iuuides
e unsuitadedfedusttannfisuiu
UsEnIi AN savazumAsaiiendy wilsiude
yiaden

- mstansirgiofiulumsiauaiSouioussy
Dugs:znsUs=guillumsaourith a: ms
THHnﬁllﬂﬁlnﬂhUlaUOUOUﬂﬂanUﬂﬂJaUUﬂ
IKUN=AUNAISYANMIKUINSSUNISUSEN
vsEndanenisujuibiaogfounnsiyogg

windsuiunaziiodunisidalonaalwgeviunn
sreldilonaiauaiSouiioliauenssunisuien
forsanussydunsenisUsen  uaziauofoyana
Afiguantnganauiviinldivual ideid
GITIEIMINNSSUNISUSTN  USEmAaldnitviuaudn

st luns g fevuldunansennsusyauanioyy
foviusrantiiuaviauoioynnaiiiofaassuanana
AMANTBLANIZANNIEITIAIALNNSSUNITUS B9
u meé’ﬂmmeﬁé’\mén Usenaudisnnandfivey
iovuiiesiausinsenisseguaniyaramiinie
Laua%amﬂaLwaﬂmaﬁumﬂammmauummmuau
HANSIEUMANNTTUNISUTEN  TumeunisiaueInse

o a 4' aM 1 @
ﬂ’ﬁﬂ%‘%“]qm Lﬂm*’mn’]%“wfa]’ﬁm’lLSE]\WIVLJJ‘U%‘SQL‘IJWJ’H%

usEN Blu-Tng 15UTITESY 1DUF ADUARSATU $1AR (UKBU)
$1891UUs=9U 2558

(<}
o
c
©
c
S
)
>
)
S
o
c
©
c
)
=
©
O
c
©
=
L
o
Lot
=
o

] 2



126

Corporate Governance

and the Board of Directors. The Company will be
in strict compliance with criteria, conditions and
procedures set forth in the Nofification of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand regarding Disclosure
of Information and Practices of Listed Companies
in Connected Transactions B.E. 2546 (A.D. 2003)

or amendments thereof.

¢ Report on interests of directors and

executives

The Board of Directors and The Board
of Executive Directors will act as a director in
accordance with the Fiduciary Duties by especially
focus on making decision to both direct and indirect
of the company’s tfransaction with cautious and
honesty in order to prevent any conflict of interest
that might happen in the connected transaction
between the company and its subsidiaries. The
Board of Directors defined the best practices for
avoiding any conflict of interest by providing the
policy that every Directors, and Executives from
Senior Vice President and/or upper levels including
Executives whose position were related to
accounting and financial in Managers or division
level must report any conflict of interest that had
been made by themselves, spouses, and minor
child to the company for the acknowledgement as
accordance with The Securities and Exchange Act

B.E. 2535 and other additional regulations.

1.3 Role of Stakeholders

Principle

The Board of Directors realizes the importance
of all groups of stakeholders and promotes a
process aimed at improving cooperation between
the Company and all groups of stakeholders in
contributing to wealth, financial stability, and business
sustainability. Moreover, the Board of Directors
is aware of the importance of corporate social
and environmental responsibility for sustainable

development.

Best Practices

e Human Resources Management Policy

The Company has a clear policy on human
resources management, looks after its personnel,
provides remunerations and benefits in response
fo competitiveness and labor market, treats the
employees fairly and equitably under the
Company’s work regulations, labor laws and local
fraditions, ensures that the employees have good
quality of life and health and enjoy safe working
environment, creates a facilitating atmosphere, and
promotes teamwork. Moreover, there is a policy
to enhance employees’ knowledge and competency
with the objective to increase work efficiency
and effectiveness. The Company is determined fo

become an organization of learning.

e Occupational Health, Safety and

Environment Policy

The Company is aware that occupational
health, safety and environment are an integral part
and a key success factor of business operations.
All employees and personnel of the Company shall
be provided with safety, health and good working
environment. Human resources are the most
valuable resources of an organization so the
Company has established the occupational health,
safety and environment policy for all of its employees
and personnel to acknowledge and observe as
follows:

» The Company will promote and create
safety and environmental awareness
at work.

» The Company recognizes that all
workers are valuable resources of the
Company. Thus safety for workers is
our first priority.

» The Company will support the creation
of safety at work by providing safe

tools and a safe work environment,
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by promoting safety knowledge among
workers and motivating them to practice
safety at work.
» |t is the Company’s policy to appoint
an occupational health, safety and
environment committee to develop
health,

plans and

occupational safety and

environment effectively
implement and manage the occupational
health, safety and environment plans
and projects.

» The Company will require all supervisors
to be responsible for the safety of
their subordinates at work, ensuring
that they strictly follow the safety
procedures and rules established by
the Company.

» The Company will require all work-
ers fo be responsible for their own
safety and that of their colleagues at
work and to act in full compliance with
the safety rules established by the
Companu.

» The Company requires the employees
at all levels to be responsible for
and participate in - maintaining the

environment and control or prevent

any impacts on the environment in
accordance with provisions of laws
as well as to promote conservation
of environment in accordance with the

National Environmental Policy.

e Environmental Policy
Realizing the impacts on environment, the
Company has set up the environmental policy and
requires its employees to comply strictly with such
policy. A number of measures have been established

fo prevent and mitigate the impacts of business

operations on the environment as well as to monitor
the environmental quality in compliance with
related to environmental regulations and other
related standards defined by the environmental
organization such as The Enhancement and
Conservation of National Environmental Quality Act
2535.

The Company has strictly taken initial
measures fo reduce the impacts on environment
and monitor the quality of environment during the
construction process with an objective to minimize
any impacts on the environment and community.
There also are additional measures recommended
by specialists and relevant government agencies
to ensure that the Company’'s operation is truly
effective.

The Company is aware of the importance of
environment and has carried out a variety of activities
fo encourage the employees and relevant parties to
be aware of the impacts of business operations on
the environment through meetings, fraining sessions,
seminars and media of the Companu.

By the year 2015, the company provided the
training of “Integrating environment and developing
construction process” program for engineers to
encourage the working with environmental concerns
and to transfer knowledge to all workers. There

were about 158 engineers attending the training.

e Anti-corruption Policy

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction
Public Company Limited commit to operate with
fair, fransparent, and abide by related laws and
regulafions for business and realize that the
company should pay attention fo its stakeholders
as well. The company defined a business principle
for countering bribery against corruption as a best
practice for Directors, Executives and employees.
The company disseminated such principles to its

stakeholders.
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Anti-Corruption Policy

The Board of Directors, the Executives and
employees must do their duties with integrity and
without any act of bribery; moreover the company
shall prohibit in any form whether direct or indirect,
and must adhere to the company’s policies and

code of conduct.

Procedures
» Receiving or Offering Customary Gifts,
or other Benefits

To operate the company’s business that
related fo biddings other projects, procurement,
communicating business, or any other related
company’s business transaction in both public and
private sectors must do with fair, tfransparent and
verification. The company realized the importance
of any act that might result in improper influence
including receive or offer customary gifts or other

benefits that might cause any corruption.
In 2015,

no new year giffs giving and receiving to/from

the company has announced that

customers, business partners, government sectors,
financial institutions, and other related organizations,
to assure the commitments in operating with
fransparency, justice, fair and equal with moral
principal basis.
»  Offering Sponsorships or Charitable Con-
tributions to Public or Private Sectors
Offering sponsorships or charitable
contributions fo both public and private sectors
must strictly do with fransparent that did not
confrary to the morality, code of conduct, and
abide by laws and regulations of the company. The
offering sponsorships or charitable contributions as
the foresaid can be done after the approval of the
original affiliation.
The offering sponsorships or charitable
confributions to public or private sectors must not

be used as a subterfuge or route for conflict of

interest in both individual benefits and company’s
benefits and must not be used as a subterfuge for
bribery.

The approvals of offering sponsorships or
charitable contributions to public or private sectors
must strictly adhere to the regulations by writing
the report attached with the offering sponsorships
or charitable contributions payment for approvals
and submit all related papers to the Executives for
considering process.

» Political Participation

The company is a politically neutral
organization and does not support any political
parties or polificians including enabling the Board
of Directors, Executfives and employees not to
parficipate in any act under the name of the
company.

The company realizes that it is righteous
of its people according to the liberty and rights in
parficipating the political activities; therefore the
company encourages its people to exercise their
political rights in compliance with laws but prohibit
using employees’ status or using any company’s
assets as a subterfuge or route for any form to
political participation or political contributions in the
name of the company.

To express and giving political opinion in the
company’s office or job site area is penalty to the
company’s association.

» Whistleblowing for Business countering
Bribery

The company supports its personnel to
report any misconduct or non-compliance or
any form of action that might result bribery by
sending their enquiries to managers or other channel
that open for this matter. The company has
whistleblowing and  whistleblower protection
policy as stated in the good governance chapter. The
additional complaints channel for whistleblowing

as follows;
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Corporate Secretary Office
Address: Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company
Limited
29 FI., Sino-Thai Tower,
32/59 Asoke Road, Bangkok 10110
E-mail addess:
corporatesecretary@stecon.co.th
Telephone: +66(0)2 610 4994

» Evaluation for risk from countering
bribery

The Internal Audit of the company has
responsible for doing the evaluation of risk from
countering bribery by evaluate, analyze, follow, and
control risk that might result bribery to be acceptable
and report the evaluation result to the Audit
Committee including follow up the procedures
to prevent risk from countering bribery with the

Principles for Countering Bribery.

» Countering Bribery Awareness

The company creates countering bribery
awareness by communicating to the Board of
Directors, Executives and employees in order to
create the cognifive of countering bribery in the
company. The company enables its people who
might relate to the stakeholders to understand and
aware of countering bribery by providing course
frainings, seminars, and through other related
media of the company and disseminate fo the

company’s stakeholders as well.

» Sanction Procedures for Breaches of

the Principles
To whom it may breach of the Principles for
Countering Bribery must be penalized according fo

the company’s regulations and/or related laws.

e Non-infringement of Intellectual Property
The Board of Directors is aware of the
intellectual

importance of non-infringement  of

property and conformity with laws governing
intellectual property or copyrights; therefore, a
policy has been established and clearly
disseminated the requirement fo the management
and employees to carefully consider the products,
services, equipment, tools or information technology
to be used for business operations of the Company
to ensure that the use of such items is not an
infringement of third-party intellectual property.
The company set the best practices for
property by
monitoring and preventing the downloadable pirated

non-infringement  of intellectual

hardware and software.

e Non-violation of Human Rights

The Company is aware of the importance
of human rights of the personnel and related
partfies and respects personal rights in accordance
with applicable laws. The Company shall refrain
from any acts that are considered a violation of hu-
man rights. Policies for non-violation of human rights
have been established and specify important issues
on occupational health, safety and environment,
fair and equitable freatment of employees, and
work-related rights and freedom of the employees.

In 2015, the company provided the knowledge
of the human rights principle and concept in the
annual employees meeting and there was no

complaint of the human rights.

e Code of Conduct
The Board of Directors provided code of
conduct for Directors, Executives and employees
for being the guidelines for Directors, Executives
and employees 1o abide, furthermore, the fransaction
will be transparent, righteous and integrity for

stakeholders. The best practices as stated in
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the company’s code of conduct will lead us to
sustainability firm and it was presented in the

company’s website at www.stecon.co.th

o Policy and Best practices for Stakeholders
The Company has established best practices
foward its stakeholders, including customers,
businesspartners, competitors, governmentagencies,
employees, society and creditors. It is the duties
and responsibilities of the directors, management
and all employees to be aware of and strictly comply
with the established best practices, which are
available in the Work Regulations and Infranet of

the Companu.

Best Practices toward Clients

1. The company’s businesses are engineering
services and construction services with an
acceptable international standard at a fair price.
The company aimed to deliver construction
projects with quantity, quality, and price as
agreed upon dealing and to be responsible for
its own commitment.

2. The company must provide an adequate com-
pany’s information and company’s services
to clients.

3. The

services equally to all clients with kindness

company must freat and provide
and hospitality.
4. The company must omit to perform any acts

fo control the decisions of the clients.

Best Practices toward the Affiliates

1. The company must strictly abide to laws,
regulations and other related guidelines of
bidding and proposals.

2. The company must fairly compete with other
affiliates by omit an act of persecution to
cause rivals to lose opportunity unfairly.

3. The company must not violate other affiliates’

privacy of information.

4. Board of

employees of the company must beware of

Directors,  Executives, and
the communication between affiliates and
the affiliates’ people by omit to reveal the

confidential information of the companu.

Best Practices toward Government Organizations

1. The company must abide by laws, regulations,
and guidelines that related to the business.

2. Any acts that the company coordinates with

the governmental organizations must be

fransparent, honest, and fair including the

omission of receiving and offering customary

gifts, assets or other benefits o the officers.

3. The company encourages its employees to

support and exercise their political rights with

the governmental organizations.

Best Practices toward Employees

1. The company must treat its personnel regarding
fo the human rights by must not act any acts
that violate the human rights including human
dignity and personal information as stated in
the laws.

2. The company must treat its people equally
by providing rights and creativity in working
abides by laws and policy of the company.

3. The company must provide the reasonable
compensation like salaries, bonuses,

welfares, and provident funds including the
fraining courses for improving their abilities to
work like seminars, university education, and
frainings.

4. The company must provide the channel for
advisory or sharing any obstacles from
working for example, working atmosphere, any
acts that against the rules and regulations of
the company, or any act that leads to corrupt
and criminal. The employees can appeal and
be advised freely directly to the supervisors,

executives or through the providing channel.
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S.

The company must adhere fo the succession
policy along with the safety of its people then
defined best practices and policies on safety
and communicate fo its people by arranging
fraining courses and acknowledge good
practices for operation.

The company supports its people to perform
their duties to the best of their abilities with
integrity and fairness in accordance with the
policy, code of conduct and the company’s

regulations.

Best Practices toward Society and Environment

1.

The company must operates by having social
and responsibility awareness and adhere
to the laws, guidelines and regulations of
the business. The company coordinates
with other related organizations to create
creativities for communities.

The company must concern with the job
hiring and improving skilled labor to people
who lives in the communities where jobsites
of the company is located.

The company must support any operations
that violate human rights.

The company must strictly concern not fo
violate any intellectual properties or any
patents of other people or other businesses.
The company concerns to the importance of
natural resources and environment, therefore,
announced to every jobsites to seriously
adhere to the laws, rules and regulations
that related to the natural resources and
environment in order to prevent making an
effect to society, environment, and community.
The company also aware of natural resources
and energy usage by providing the policy and
guidelines of natural resources and energy
usage for employees to adhere strictly.

The company must force every jobsites to

operate in compliance with health, safety, and

environmental policy to ensure the employees

fo have the best and safety workplace.

Best practices toward Partners

1.

The procurement process of the company
must be fair, righteous and transparent.
The procurement process must be acted
in accordance with the procurement policy
and all vendors must be treated equally and
accurately.

The company must keep the information of its
partners confidentially and must not reveal
such information to others for benefits.
When contracting with trading partners, the
company must retain document relevant to
fairness without any act that limit the rights
of partners and relevant to contract making
between the company and partners.
Partners selection guidelines are considered
through S major terms as follows;

1) Financial standards to operate.

2) Expertise, experiences, and quality
of engineering and construction work
(in case of hiring).

3) Product specifications and quality
(in case of procurement).

4) Machine and construction tools’
efficiency for operating/services.

5) Profile that related to claimants and
legal cases of manpower or human
rights violation.

The company

regards tfoward partners

selection in order to operate the business with

professionally and

efficiently including risk

reduction.

Best practices toward Creditors

1.

The company must stringently o the contract
or the terms of guarantee between creditors
and the company both in terms of payment,

loans, interests, and other conditions.
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2. The company must report the company’s
financial position with accuracy, adequate
and punctual to credifors.

3. The company must inform creditors in
advance if terms and conditions in the

contracts/agreements cannot be observed.

1.4  Disclosure and Transparency

Principle

The Board of Directors supervises the
Company’s proper, complete, accurate, timely and
tfransparent disclosure of financial and non-financial
information through channels that can be easily
accessed in an equitable and reliable manner.
Moreover, the Board of Directors shall require
the investor relations unit to communicate the
disclosure and transparency policy to third
parties, such as shareholders, institutional investors,
general investors, analysts  and relevant
government agencies appropriately, equitably, and

fairly.
Best Practices

o Disclosure of Data and Information of the
Company
The Board of Directors has defined the
policy regarding disclosure of information on
business and operating results of the Company,
both financial and non-financial information, in
an accurate, adequate, appropriate, timely and
fransparent manner, to general public, investors
and stakeholders. Regarding such disclosure, the
Company complies with provisions of the Public
Limited Company Act, the Securities and Stock
Exchange Act, relevant regulations and notifications
of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the
Stock Exchange of Thailand, and other related

authorities.

Furthermore, the Company has disseminated
disclosure of information on its business and
operating results, both financial and non-financial
information, such as Good Corporate Governance
Policy, code of conduct, management structure,
mission and vision, annual report, financial
statements and press release, through the company’s
website at www.stecon.co.th in both Thai and
English languages as another way of
communications between the Company and related
parties.

The company discloses annual report both
in Thai and English languages on to company’s

website within 120 days after the end of fiscal year.

 Investor Relations Office
The Company has set up the Investor
Relations Office fo communicate with investors,
shareholders, analysts, relevant  government
agencies, and the general public in an appropriate
and equal manner. The Investor Relations Office

can be reached at

Investor Relations Office

Address: Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company
Limited
30" Floor, Sino-Thai Tower,
32/60, Asoke Road,
Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana,

Bangkok 10110, Thailand.
E-mail: ir@stecon.co.th
Tel: +66(0)2 610 4900 ext. 364

In 2015, the following investor relations
activities were carried out:
» 93 Company visits
» 48 Roadshows

» 83 Conference calls

v

1 Press Conference
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The company’s Executives attended at the

activities as usual.

e Dividend Payment Policy
It is the Company’s policy to pay dividend
in an amount of not less than 40% of its net
profit before its interest in subsidiary companies.
The dividend payment shall be made only if the
Company has no accumulated loss or does
not plan to make additional investment in mega

projects.

o Whistleblowing and Whistleblower

Protection Measures

To promote corporate good governance and
encourage all employees and stakeholders to
report or disclose potential corruption or violation
of laws, code of ethics or policies of the Company,
to file complaints regarding violation of rights,
or to express their opinions regarding business
operations, the Company has provided a channel

for the employees and stakeholders to report fo:

Corporate Secretary Office
Address: Sino-Thai Engineering &
Construction Public Company
Limited
29" Floor, Sino-Thai Tower,
32/59 Asoke Road, Klongtoey-Nua,
Wattana, Bangkok 10110, Thailand.
E-mail:  corporatesecretary@stecon.co.th
Tel: +66(0)2 610 4944

Information, complaints and recommendations
submitted will be considered and actions will be
taken appropriately on a case by case basis.
Names of the whistleblowers will be kept
unrevealed and all information will be ftreated
confidentially. There are whistleblower protection
measures to assure the whistleblowers or
complainants that they will not be affected by

providing such information.

o Communicate with the Board of Directors
The company provides additional channel for
stakeholders to communicate with the Board of
(without  the

acknowledgement of the company’s executives)

Directors directly to the Board

in order to receive any suggestions or opinions
including claimants such as the operation of the
Executives, the unfair practices and any other acts
that against the code of conduct.

Stakeholders can submit the document that
clearly specified name, address, the convenient

telephone number and e-mail address (if any) to:

The Audit Committee
Address:  Sino-Thai
Construction Public Company Limited
26" Floor, Sino-Thai Tower, 32/56, Asoke
Wattana, Bangkok 10110,

Engineering and

Road,
Thailand.

The Audit Committee will consider and manage

Klongton-Nua,

such matters by directly report to the Board of
Directors (without the acknowledgement of the
company’s executives) case by case. The company
assures that whistle blowers must not be harmed

according to the whistleblowing policy.
1.5 Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

Principle

The Board of Directors realizes that Corporate
Good Governance plays an essential role to business
operations of the Company. The Board is responsible
fo the shareholders and independent from the
management. The directors shall perform their
duties honestly and carefully, develop themselves
all the time, and devote enough fime fo perform
their duties and responsibilities to the fullest

extent of their competency.
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Corporate Governance

Best Practices

Composition and Qualifications of the Board of
Directors

1.

The Board of Directors shall consist of at
least five directors.

Not less than half of the total number of
directors shall domicile in the Kingdom of
Thailand

required by laws.

and possess all qualifications
The Board of Directors shall consist of
independent directors in a number of more
than 50% of the total directors and more than
66% of the members of the Board shall not
be executives of the Companu.

Chairman of the Board shall be an independent
director and not the same person with the
President.

The Board of Directors shall consist of
directors who are competent, experienced,
and skilled in different areas necessary for
management of the Company’s affairs. The
directors shall perform their dutfies in full
conformity with laws and objectives and
regulations of the Company as well as
resolutions of the shareholders’” meeting
and in good faith for utmost interests of the
Company.

Each Directors should be a Director in other
listed companies not exceeding 5 companies.
Directors who are one of the Executives can
be seated as a Director in listed companies

not exceeding 2 companies.

The Authorities and Duties of the Board of
Directors

1.

To perform their duties by utilizing their
knowledge, skills, and experiences in order
to benefit the company’s business operation.

Their duties must be in compliance with the

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

company’s objectives, regulations, the Public
Limited Companies Act B.E.2535, Securities
and Exchange Commission B.E.2535.
Consider and approve the company's vision
mission trends and strategy for operating
business that had been proposed by the
Board of Executives Directors and review it
every year.

Supervise the company to have its best
practices foward nominating qualified person
fo be a director with transparency according
fo good corporate governance.

Supervise the company to have its best
practices toward remunerafion of the Board
of Directors and other Board Committees to
be appropriate reliance with good corporate
governance.

Supervise the company to have its best
practices toward the evaluation of the Board
of Directors and other Board Committees
including the evaluation for the President in
accordance with the good corporate governance
fo stimulate the efficiency in working as a
Director.

To supervise the management and Board
Committees to effectively conduct the business
under the company’s policies and request the
management fo report the issues that has
significant affects to the company’s operation.
The Board of Directors shall assure that all
related parties’ transactions are conducted in
accordance with the regulations of the Office
of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the Stock Exchange of Thailand. In case
of necessity, the Board of Directors will
require the management to hire advisors in
order to give opinions for the management’s
decision in specialized issues which have
significant effect on the company’s operation.
To supervise the company and to set up effective

internal control, and Internal Audit system.
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Internal Audit manager shall report directly 1o
the Audit Committee.

Independent Directors shall independently
consider company’s mattersrelated to strategies,
management, appoinfing directors, and issues
that have significant affects to the Company
for the benefit of the shareholders and shall
have an access to adequate financial and

business information to perform their duties.

The Board of Directors’ Approval

1.

detach, fo the Board

Committees and President to act under the

Appoint, empower
Board of Directors.

Consult other expertise or the Assistant fo
President (if any) or outsource the Advisory
Board if necessary and all expenses shall
be borne by the company.
Approve any estfablishment, merger and
acquisition, or cease any subsidiaries.
Propose the increasing and decreasing

capital or changing par value including
amendment of the company’s associate, the
arficle of association and/or the purpose of
its business to shareholders.

Empower the Management team, Top
Executives of the Company or other people
to act under the authorization of the Board
of Directors.

The Board members have rights to call
Management team or other related employees
of the company to clarify, give opinion, or
submit the document to the Board if necessary.

Appoint and detach Corporate Secretary

Authorization and duties of Chairman of The
Board of Directors

1.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall
abide by duties as stated in the company’s

arficle of associate and the resolution of

the annual general meeting of shareholders
including laws and regulations, the Public
Company Act B.E. 2535 and the Securities
and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 and other
related regulations for Chairman of the Board
of Directors.

Act as the Chairman at the Board of Directors
meeting and ensure that the company shall
convene the Board of Directors meeting in
accordance with the Article of Association,
laws and good corporate governance policy.
Act as the Chairman of the annual general
meeting of shareholders and ensure that the
company shall convene the annual general
meeting of shareholders in accordance with
the Article of Association, laws and good
corporate governance policy.

Support, improve and ensure that the Board
their

with infegrity according to good corporate

of Directors shall perform duties

governance and code of conduct.

The Definition and qualification of Independent
Director

The Board of Directors reviews the definition

and qualifications of Independent Directors, the

regulafions of which are more stringent than

those of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) and Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET),

as committed fo good corporate governance as

follows:

1.

Holding shares no more than 0.5 % of the
total voting shares of the Company, its
parent company, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies, or a related juristic
entity with potential conflicts, including of
shares held by related personsi.

Not being an executive director2, an employee,
or acompany consultant who receives aregular

salary or a controlling person of the Company,
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itfs parent company, its subsidiaries,
its associated companies, its same-level
subsidiaries3, or a related juristic entity with
potfential conflict of interest during the period
of 2 years before the appointment.

Not being a person who has a blood or a legal
relationship of a parent, spouse, sibling, and
child including a child” spouse, to any exec-
utive management, major shareholder, a con-
trolling person, or a person whom has been
proposed to be an executive management
or a controlling person of the Company or its
subsidiaries.

Not having a business relationship and a
vested interest, whether directly or indirectly,
financially or administratively, including not
being a professional advisor to the company
such as an auditor, a client, partner, supplier,
creditor, or debtor of the parent company, its
subsidiaries, its associated companies, its
same-level subsidiaries3, or a related juristic
entity with potential conflict of interest during
the period of 2 years before the appointment.
Not being a director who has been appointed
as the representative of the Company's
director, major shareholder, or shareholder
who is related to a major shareholder of the
Company.

Not having any other characteristics that may
pofentially prevent from giving independent
opinions.

An independent director, with qualification
under Clauses 1- 6, may be assigned by the
Board of Directors fo make the collective

decisions on the operation of the Company,

associated companies, its  same-level
subsidiaries3, or a related juristic entity with

potential conflicts

The Nomination of the Board of Directors

To nominate a director, the nomination and
remuneration committee shall ensure that the
nominafion would be preceded transparently be-
fore proposing to the Board of Directors. The
nomination and remuneration committee must
propose qualified person, especially with the
missing skills and qualifications for the prevailing
Boards components and structure under the
company business strategies, and his/her biography
and other personal information to the Board in order
fo provide an adequate information to the Board
and then can be submitted to the annual general
meeting of shareholders to approve eventually.

The directors of the company shall be

appointed by the shareholders’ meeting pursuant to
the following criteria and procedures:

1. In voting for the election of each director,
each shareholder shall have one vote
per share held by him/her.

2. At the election of directors, it is
required that one director shall be
elected at a time. Each shareholder
must exercise all of his/her votes in
electing one person nominated as a
director.

3. The candidates who have the most
votes shall be elected as directors
equivalent to the number of directors
required. If two candidates have equal

votes, the Chairman of the meeting

its parent company, its subsidiaries, its shall have a casting vote.

Footnote:

1.
2.

3.

“Related Person” means a person defined under the Section 258 of Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535.
“Executive director” means any director who holds an executive position, or any director who is in charge of
any actions deemed to be taken by executives, and shall include any authorized director except where it can be
demonstrated that such authorized director, jointly with other directors, signs on transactions which have already
passed board’s approval.

“same-level subsidiary” means any two or more subsidiaries under the same parent company.
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In the case of any vacancy on the Board of
Directors for any reason other than retirement by
rotation, the Board of Directors shall elect a person
who is qualified and not prohibited by laws to
fill the vacancy at the next Board of Directors’
meeting, unless the remaining term of the former
director is less than two months. The replacement
director shall retain his/her office only for the
remaining tenure of his/her predecessor. The
resolution of the Board of Directors in respect
of appointment of the replacement director shall
represent the votes of no less than three-quarters

fourth of the remaining directors.

Term of Office
At every annual general shareholders meeting,
one-third of the directors shall retire from office. If
the number of directors to retire from office is not
a multiple of three, then the number of directors
closest to one-third shall retire. A director who
refires by rotation shall be eligible for re-election. In
addition to the retirement by rotation, the directors
shall be vacated upon:
(1) Death
(2) Resignation
(3) Disqualification or being of a forbidden
nature under Section 68 of the Public
Limited Company Act B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)
(4) Removal by resolution of the shareholders’
meeting in accordance with Sectfion 76 of
the Public Limited Company Act B.E. 2535
(A.D. 1992)

(5) Removal by order of the court

Directors’ Remuneration

A member of the Board of Directors and
other subcommittees is entitled to remuneration
from the Company, namely meeting allowances,
annual gratuity and other benefits approved by

the shareholders’ meeting. The Board of Director

has assigned the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee to establish the remuneration structure
of the Board of Directors and submit the same to
the Board of Directors for approval and presentation

to the shareholders’ meeting for final approval.

The President and Senior Management
Remuneration

The remuneration of the President and
senior management policy and guidelines is
established by the Board of Executive Directors,
which based on, such as, key performance
indicators, the remuneration of executive in the
industry, and the performance assessment in order
to provide the appropriate remuneration, fo aftract
the qualified executives and to be more competitive

in the industry.

The performance assessment of the Board of
Directors and Board Committees

The performance assessment of the Board of
Directors

The performance assessment of the Board
of Directors shall be evaluated both as in group
and individual (self-assessment) with the details

as follows:

o The performance Board assessment

The procedure to evaluate the performance of
the Board of Directors as in group has been divided
info 6 major sessions as suggested by the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, which are (1) Qualifications
and Structure of the Board (2) Roles and
Responsibilities of the Board (3) The Board's
meetings (4) The Boards fduciary (5) The
relationship between the Board and the Management
(6) Self-improvement of the Board and the

Management
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The performance assessment procedures are

as follows;

1. The performance assessment of the
Board of Directors as in group at least
once a year.

2. Corporate Secretary summarizes and
reports the result of the performance
Board assessment to the Nomination
and Remuneration Commiftee in order to
consider any guidelines to improve the
performance of the Board of Directors
efficiently.

3. The

reports the result and other additional

Nominafion and Remuneration
guidelines fo improve the efficiency of
the Board of Directors’ performance to
the Board.

o The performance assessment of individ-
ual directors (Self-assessment)

The procedure to evaluate the performance
assessment of individual directors (self-assessment)
has been divided info 6 major sessions as
suggested by the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
which are (1) Qualifications and Structure of the
Board (2) Roles and Responsibilities of the Board
(3) The Board's meetings (4) The Board’s fiduciary
(5) The relationship between the Board and the
Management (6) Self-improvement of the Board
and the Management

The performance assessment procedures are
as follows;

1. The Board of Directors has to do

self-assessment at least once a year.

2. Corporate Secretary summarizes and

reports the result of the performance
assessment of individual directors
to the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee in order to consider any
guidelines to improve the performance

of the Board of Directors efficiently.

3. The

reports the result and other additional

Nomination and Remuneration

guidelines to improve the efficiency of
the Board of Directors’ performance to
the Board.

The Performance assessment of the Board
Committees

The performance assessment of the Board
Committees, which is the Board of Executive
Directors, the Audit Committee, and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, shall be evaluated
both as in group and individual (self-assessment).
The evaluation form is included with the performance
of the Board Committees that based on the
authorities and dufies of each Board Committees

and other related guidelines.

o The performance Board Committees’
assessment

The performance assessment procedures are

as follows;

1. The performance assessment of the
Board Committees as in group at least
once a year.

2. Corporate Secretary summarizes and
reports the result of the assessment of
every Board Committees to the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee in order fo
consider any guidelines fo improve the
performance of the Board of Directors
efficiently.

3. The

reports the result and other additional

Nomination and Remuneration

guidelines to improve the efficiency of
the Board Committees’ performance to
the Board.

o The performance assessment of the
individual Directors (Self-assessment)
The performance assessment procedures are

as follows;
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1. Every Board Committees has to do
self-assessment at least once a year.

2. Corporate Secretary summarizes and
reports the result of the assessment of
every Board Committees to the Nom-
ination and Remuneration Committee
in order to consider any guidelines to
improve the performance of the Board
of Directors efficiently.

3. The

reports the result and other additional

Nomination and Remuneration
guidelines to improve the efficiency of
the Board Committees’ performance to
the Board.

The results of the performance assessment of
the Board of Directors and Board Committees
In 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee evaluated the performance Board as
followed;
» The performance assessment of the
Board of Directors (in group)
» The performance assessment of individual

directors (Self-assessment)

» The performance assessment of the
Board Committees (in group)
» The performance assessment of the

individual directors (Self-assessment)

The assessment criteria are presented in the

fable below.
Score Description
90 - 100% Excellent
80 - 89% Very Good
70 - 79% Good
60 - 69% Satisfactory
50 - 59% Pass

Lower 50 % Need improvement

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

The Board of Directors and Board Committees
assessmentingroup andindividual (self-assessment)

in details are as the following;

1. The performance assessment of the Board
of Directors (in group) and the performance
assessment of individual directors
(self-assessment)

The performance assessment of the Board of
Directors in group had 95% score, its description
is “Excellent” and the performance assessment
of individual directors (self-assessment) had 80%
score, its description is “Very Good”, the evaluation
presented that the Board of Directors had fully in
accordance with the Board’s charters adequately
and suitable. The Board of Directors is able to
supervise efficiently as the management could
operate the business in compliance with the

company’s goals, business strategy and its policy.

2.  The performance assessment of the Board
of Executive Directors (in group) and the
performance assessment of individual
directors (self-assessment)

The performance assessment of the Board
of Executive Directors in group had 91.25% score,
its description is “Excellent” and the performance
assessment of individual directors (self-assessment)
had 80% score, its description is “Very Good”, the
evaluation presented that the overall performance
of the Board of Executive Directors had fully
performed excellent adequately, appropriately,
and efficiently in accordance with good corporate
governance that complied with the Securities and

Exchange Commission.

3.  The performance assessment of the
Audit Committee (in group) and the
performance assessment of individual
directors (self-assessment)

The performance assessment of the Audit
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Committee in group had 100% score, its description
is “Excellent” and the performance assessment
of individual directors (self-assessment) had 80%
score, its description is “Very Good”, the evaluation
presented that the Audit Committee had fully
performed excellent adequately and appropriately
in accordance with good corporate governance
that complied with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Audit Committee had efficient
performing by supervising the management in
every aspect (without disturbing any routine work of
management). The Audit Committee suggested the
Internal Audit o monitor and support in business
operation for more efficiency, transparency, and

adequately for stakeholders of the company.

4.  The performance assessment of the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

(in group) and the performance

assessment of individual directors

(self-assessment)

The performance assessment of the Nomination
and Remuneration Commifttee in group had 94%
score, its description is “Excellent” and the
performance assessment of individual directors
(self-assessment) had 80% score, its description
is “Very Good”, the evaluation presented that
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had
fully performed excellent adequately and appropriately
in accordance with good corporate governance
that complied with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee had efficient performing as it can
be noticed that the procedures of recruiting an
independent director was complied with policy
either to consider the remuneration referenced by
current situations of the Board members.

The Board of Directors had its opinion
towards the Board of Directors’ performance
and other Board Committees that had continually

improved by courses training for Board members,

therefore, the Board of Directors and also to the other
Board Committees had an effective performance
that complied with international  standards
and comfortable to best practices of the Stock

Exchange of Thailand and other related organizations.

Meeting of the Board of Directors

1. The Company requires the Board of Directors
fo meet on a regular basis at least once
every three months fo consider the financial
statements, develop policies, and monitor
performance of the company. The Board of
Directors shall be ready o hold a meeting in
case of a special circumstance.

2. The Board of Directors manages the meeting
schedule annually at the beginning of the
year, then inform to the Board of Directors 1o
be acknowledged except other extraordinary
meetings.

3. Each meeting of the Board of Directors shall
be attended by more than half of the total
number of directors who are in office at the
moment.

4. To cast votes on a motion, the Board of
Directors’ meeting shall consist of not less
than two-thirds of the total number of directors
of the Company.

5. Prior to the Board of Directors’ meeting,
Chairman of the Board and the President
will jointly fix the meeting agendas and
allow the directors to propose any matters
fo be discussed at the meeting. Members
of the Board of Directors shall be notified
of the meeting in advance so they will be
able to manage time and aftend the meeting.
Appropriate and sufficient meeting documents
shall be sent to the directors at least 5 days
prior fo the meeting to enable them to make

informed decisions.
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6. The Board of Directors shall have access to
additional data and information through the
Corporate Secretary and President.

7. During the Board of Directors’ meeting,
the Chairman of the Board shall allocate
sufficient time for the meeting in order to
enable the aftendants fo consider each
agenda thoroughly.

8. The President may invite top management
fo aftend the meeting in order to give more
details or explanations on related agenda
and allow the directors fo ask questions or

request any additional information.

o New Director Orientation

The Board of Directors requires every new
director to have an orientation in order to enable
them to be aware of and understand the Company’s
business, industry, procedures, and policies as
well as the roles, duties and responsibilities of
the Board of Directors. The orientation for new
directors will be composed of documentations,
fraining, and four of various construction sites of
the Company to allow the directors to experience

the actual operations of the Company.

o Directors’ Training and Development
The Board

promotes consistent enhancement of the directors’

of Directors supports and

knowledge and skills in relation fo duties and
responsibilities of the directors or new management
procedures. This is to enable the directors to
improve their competency and performance and
appropriately use the knowledge and skills
obtained to maximize management effectiveness
and efficiency. It is required that at least one
director shall attend the skill enhancement training

or seminar each year.

Succession Plan of President and Chief
Executive Officer
The Board

importance of key management like President and

of Directors realizes the
Chief Executive Officer positions, then they have
to assure that the President and Chief Executive
Officer’s nomination process is appropriate. To prevent
the discontinuous operation due fo vacancy
positions, the Board of Executive Directors made
the succession plan of President and Chief

Executive Officer.
2.  The Board Committees
The Board of Executive Directors

Composition and Qualifications of the Board

of Executive Directors

1. The Board of Directors shall be responsible
for appointment and/or removal of the Board
of Executive Directors.

2. The Board of Executive Directors shall
consist of at least three directors. At a
minimum, the Board of Executive Directors
shall comprise the Managing Director and
the Senior Executive Vice-President of

Financial and Administration Division.

Authorities and Duties of the Board of

Executive Directors

1. To determine vision, mission, policies, and
business strategy under the supervision of
the Board of Directors including review and
approve it as least every year.

2. To supervise, consider business plan, financial
plan, budget and other management manners
proposed by the management in order fo
comply with good corporate governance.

3. To monitor, examine the operations according
fo policies, business strategies and other

management manners of the Company and
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10.

1.

12.

report the results to the Company’s Board
of Directors.

To consider and determine rules, regulations,
other

management  policies and any

businesses which will be bind to the
Company.
To provide recommendation, suggestion
and determine the scope of authorities and
duties of the

determine whether the President or his

President including to

proxy is prohibited from approving any
business activities with any persons who
have conflict of interests with the Company
or its subsidiaries.

To study feasibility, providing advice and
suggestion for entering into tender offer or
investment in new projects.

To approve the usage of the Company’s credit
facilities maintained with all banks or financial
institutions. To approve the opening and
closure of any bank accounts or apply for
credit facilities in any form with all banks or
financial institutions and report the same to
the Audit Committee for acknowledgement,
except for the mortgage or pledge of the
Company’'s properties which have to be
approved by the Board of Directors.

To evaluate the performance, determine the
remunerafion of the high level executives
from the Senior Vice President and above.
To evaluate the performance of the President
at least one time a year.

Prepare a succession plan for the President
position.

Limit a number of taking position as a Director
at other companies of President. President
can take position as a Director in other listed
companies and other non-listed companies
less than 3 places.

Ensure that the company must operate under

the good corporate governance in accordance

13.

14.

15.

with the announcement or related guidelines
derived from The Securities and Exchange
Commission and The Stock Exchange of
Thailand. The Board of Executive Directors
must support and ensure that Directors and
Management team will responsible for doing
as a company’s Directors in compliance with
good corporate governance.

Ensure that the company has risk management
policy and continually follow-up the efficiency
of the policy.

Have the power fo consider and perform other
affairs that the Board of Directors deems
fit and that should be used as policy for
business operations of the Company.

To conduct other activities according to the

policies assigned by the Board of Directors.

Term of Office

1.

Each executive director shall hold office for

a term of three years. Apart from retirement

by rotation, the executive directors shall be

vacated upon:

(1)  Death

(2) Resignation

(3) Disquadlification or being of a forbidden
nature under Section 68 of the Public
Limited Company Act B.E. 2535 (A.D.
1992)

(4)  Removal by resolution of the shareholders’
meeting in accordance with Section
76 of the Public Limited Company Act
B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)

(5) Removal by order of the court

A member of the Board of Executive Directors

who retires by rotafion may be re-elected as

the Board of Directors deems fit.
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The Audit Committee

Composition and Qualifications

1.

The Board of Directors shall consider
appoinfing and / or removing the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee shall consist of at
least three members all of which shall be

independent directors.

Authorities and Duties of the Audit Committee

1.

Review the accuracy and sufficiency of the
Company’s financial report.

Review the appropriateness and efficiency
of the internal control and the internal
audit system; consider the independence of the
Internal Audit Section including appointment,
rotation, termination for the head of the
Internal Audit Section, and any other works
related to the internal audit.

Review the Company’s operation to comply
with the Securities and Exchange Acts,
Regulations of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand, and any relevant laws.

Consider, select, and nominate an independent
person to act as the Company’s Independent
Auditor, including remuneration recommendation
and arrange a meeting for the Audit Committee
to meet with the Independent Auditor without
the presence of executive management at
least once a year.

Aftend the Audit Committee meeting with
the Auditors except the Executives at least
once a year.

Consider connected fransactions, and the
fransactions involving conflict of interest,
to ensure that they are in compliance with
the related laws and Regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand, reasonably, to

maximize the Company’s benefits.

Prepare and disclose the “Reports of

Audit Committee” approved by the Chairman

of the Audit Committee in the annual report

as follows:

©) Comments on the accuracy, completeness,
and credibility of the Company’s financial
report.

(2) Comments on the sufficiency of the
Company'’s internal control system.

(3) Comments on the Company’s business
operafions in compliance with the
Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion Act, Regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand, and other laws
relevant to the Company’s business.

(4) Comments on the suitability of the
Independent Auditor.

(5) Comments of the transactions involving
conflicts of interest.

(6) The disclosure of the number of Audit
Committee meetings and the individual

attendance of the Audit

Committee.

meeting

(7) Comments or notices that have arisen
as the Audit Committee performed its
dufies as defined in its charter.

(8)  Other concerns that should be made
available to shareholders and the
investors within the scope of duties
and responsibilities assigned by the
Board of Directors.

To undertake other assignments for the

Board of Directors, with the approval of the

Audit Committee.

Term of Office

1.

Each member of the Audit Committee shall
hold office for a term of three years. Apart
from retirement by rotation, the committee

member shall be vacated upon:
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Death

Resignation

N =
_

(3) Disquadlification or being of a
forbidden nature under Section
68 of the Public Limited Company
Act, B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)

(4) Removal by resolufion of the
shareholders” meeting in accordance
with Section 76 of the Public
Limited Company Act, B.E.
2535 (A.D. 1992)

(5) Removal by order of the court

A member of the Audit Committee who
refires by rofation may be re-elected as the

Board of Directors deems fit.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Composition and Qualifications

1.

The Board of Directors shall consider
appointing and/or removing the Board of
Executive Directors and determining their
remuneration.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
shall consist of at least three directors and
more than 50% of the committee members
shall be independent directors.

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee shall be an independent director.

Authorities and Duties of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

1.

Define policies, criteria and procedures for
recruiting new directors to substitute the
retired directors and/or fill the vacancies
and/or appointing additional directors and
propose the new or additional directors fo
the Board of Directors for approval.

Recruit, select and nominate qualified
persons fo the Board of Directors to
further present to the shareholders’ meeting for

appointment as directors of the Companu.

Define policies, criteria and procedures for
recruiting qualified persons fo substifute the
refired members of supporfing committees
and/or fill the vacancies and/or appointing
additional members of the supporting
committees and/or fulfill the other Board
Committees and propose to the Board of
Directors for approval.

Recruit, select and nominate qualified
persons to the Board of Directors’ meeting
fo consider approving them as members of
the supporting committees.

Oversee the process to select members
of the Board of Directors and supporting
committees to ensure transparency.
Establish the policies and criteria for
determining remuneration of the Board of
Directors and different supporting committees
fo include meefing allowances, annual
gratuity and other benefits. Then, submit
the said remuneration plan fo the Board of
Directors for endorsement and submission to
the shareholders’ meeting for approval.
Clarify all questions due to the annual
general meeting of shareholders about the
remuneration of the Board of Directors and
the Board Committees.

Consider the best practices, regulations,
and procedures of evaluation of the Board
of Directors, and other Board Committees
by evaluating the performance in group and
individual to improve the efficiency of the
Board.

Perform any other duties as assigned by the

Board of Directors.

Term of Office

1.

Each member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee shall hold office for
a term of three years. Apart from retirement

by rotation, the committee members shall be
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vacated upon:

() Death

(2) Resignation

(3) The chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is not the
independent director.

(4) Disqualification or being of a forbidden

Section 68 of the

Public Limited Company Act, B.E.

2535 (A.D. 1992)

(5) Removal from the Company’s Director

nature under

by resolution of the shareholders’
meeting in accordance with Section
76 of the Public Limited Company Act,
B.E. 2535 (A.D. 1992)
(6) Removal by order of the court
2. A

Remuneration Committee who retires by

member of the Nomination and
rotation may be re-elected as the Board of

Directors deems fit.

President
Authorities and Duties of the President

The authorities and duties of the President
were defined in Board of Directors meeting no.
3/2002 on May 10, 2002, which resolved that the
President shall be responsible for conducting and
supervising the company’s business operations in
accordance with the policy approved by the Board
of Directors. Furthermore, the President shall fulfill
when such actions are required by the laws, rules
and regulations of the governing agencies fo get
approval from Board of Directors’ meeting and/or
Shareholders’ meetings. The President shall have a
power to appoint other person(s) as a proxy fo act
on his behalf fo manage and conduct company’s
business. President and his proxy have no right to
approve any business activities with any persons
who have conflicts of interests with the company

and its subsidiary.

Selection of the President

In selecting the President, the Board of
Executive Directors will initially consider persons
who have all quadlifications required by the
Articles of Association of the Company, possess
the knowledge, skills, competence, and experiences
beneficial for business operations of the Company,
truly understand the Company’s business,
and are capable of managing the Company’s
affairs to achieve the objectives and goals set by
the Board of Directors. Then, a list of potential
candidates will be presented to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee for review and to be
further presented to the Board of Directors for

approval.

The Performance assessment of President

The performance assessment of the President
will be taken once a year according to the
regulations of The Stock Exchange of Thailand
(CEO Self-assessment) and it can be divided
info (1) Leadership (2) Strategy Plan (3) Action
comparison to the Strategy Plan (4) Financial
Plan and Financial performance (5) Relationship
between the Board (6) Relationship with outsiders (7)
Management and Relationship with Employees (8)
Succession Plan (9) Business Acknowledgement

(10) Personal trait (11) President improvement

The performance assessment procedures are

as follows;

1. The Board of Executive Directors evaluates
the performance of President at least once
a year.

2. Corporate Secretary summarizes and reports
the result to the Board of Executive Directors.

3. The Board of Executive Directors reports the
resultoftheperformance assessmentofPresident
to the Board of Directors and advise best

practices to improve the performance.
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The result of the performance assessment
of the President is considered as confidential
information and cannot be disclosed. The result
of the President performance assessment will be

reviewed in annual compensation.

Corporate Secretary

According to the regulations and good
corporate governance, the Board of Directors
appointed Corporate Secretary and determined the
qualifications and duties of Corporate Secretary as

follows;

Corporate Secretary Qualifications

1. Expert in laws and other related regulations
for example Public Company Limited Act,
the Securities and Exchange Act, and
other laws related to the business operation.
Corporate  Secretary shall find  various
opinions from another expertise or legal
advisors to support his/her performance as
a Corporate Secretary.

2. Understanding the good corporate governance
in compliance with other related companies.

3. Basically having knowledge and understand-
ing the company’s business.

4. Good communication skills.

Corporate Secretary’s Roles and Responsibilities

1. Preparing and keeping the following documents:
> A registration of directors;
> A notice calling director's meetings,

minutes of meeting for the Board of

Directors and the annual report of the

Company;

> A notice calling shareholder’s meeting
and the minutes of shareholders’
meetings;

> Acquisition/Disposition Form reported

by Directors or Executives

2. Filing document (as stated in item 1) properly,
disseminate useful information in accordance
with laws, regulafions, and other related
guidelines announced by The Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and The Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET).

3. Giving suggestions and supporting the Board
of Directors’ activities that related to laws,
regulations, and guidelines of good corporate
governance and sustainability development
issues.

4. Arrange the Board of Directors meetings and
other Board Commiftees meetingsincompliance
with the guidelines and laws as announced
by The Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) and The Stock Exchange of Thailand

(SET).
5. Verifythe BoardofDirectors’'minutesofmeetings
and other Board Committees’ minutes

of meetings fo be accurate and complete.

o. Verify the minutes of annual general meeting
of shareholders fo be accurate and complete
in order fo disseminate to shareholders in
accordance with laws and regulations.

7. Approve and disseminate the company’s
news in compliaonce with laws and
regulations defined by SET and ensure that
the company has disseminated news as
stated in good corporate governance.

8. Follow-up the changeable of acquisition/

disposition of Directors and Executives.

Oversight of Performance of Subsidiaries and
Associated Companies

In supervising its subsidiary, HTR Corporation
Limited, in which the Company holds 80.90% of
its shares, the Company has exercised the rights
fo nominate and appoint the directors since 2001.
The Company requires that such nomination and
appointment must be approved by the Board of

Directors. Any persons appointed as directors



N1SNIAURANANINIS

1. AMENSSUNISUSUITALHUNISUSeLdu
UszAnsn1wn1saNAUNIUIDINTSUNISE
Fan1s egtiosTay 1 Ase

2. @vunisusendsluazidusnanisusziiu
UszAnsaiwlunisaiiiueuvesnssunisy
FANITHDALULNTTUNITUSUIS

3. AMENSSUNISUSVSIAUINANISUSEIIULAY
L anen1sUulsaindseansaawnas
ANHUTUADAMENSTUNISUSEN

yinan1sUseiiunsUiamureanssunase

doms  tedudeyaowizdiypma  lannsadawe

TdFanansuseifiufizinluinsandiuuadnsidn

pauunLNsUSUTuRwdouaunssunsgsansesly

lavaunIsusen
a' v o o
walhidulyaunguunguazuuinienisinu
guaian1sia  AuenssunisuSunladiuualid
AIUNISUSEN  wionivuaAuantEiuazunu Mg

KATANSUNAYOUVDIAVIUNISUSEN 6Nl

AfUAUURAVodIaVIUMSUSEN

1. fiandifsadunguuisuazngseiiovuns
wihsevuiidifuguadifisades Wu nguane
USENNUITUIING  NgUNIYINaIEUaNnSWeE
uazaANavdnMwS  wasnguineifsndoeiu
Msafiugsiavesudtn el n1sTamAm
WangiFearny wie AvSnwngune u
druisrdnaiuannd  anudladananadng
Gl

2. farwdifsafumsinduguationsid e

Lamsesis i fuquadiisites

fanudiuguienfugsiavesusin

fAnuamnsalunisdoansi

unuINKiRIa=ANUSUEABOUVEVIAVIUMSUSEN

1. deiuasfuienasdedelul
> neideuUNsSSUNISUSEN
> wilvAolaUseguanznssuNISUSEY
F189IUNISUSEYUANUENTTUNISUSEN

LALSIENIUUSEINTVDIUSEN

a

> vilvAedaUseyuefioviu uazsigeiunis
Uszueftionu
> sagarunisildauleaidelaenssunas
USENUTORUSIS
2. dafiudeya (awde 1) egnamnzan nsida
wedayadulumunguune sefou dedudu
Mfigvoy aasasudeimuavesdtineuAuy
NSSUNISAAUUANNSNE LALAAIAUANNSWE
(n.a.6.) wazea1audnnswsualseindlng
(Ban.)
3. MAuusituazadudyuauasanenssunis
Usn  fisafunguane  ngunniuazsaidou

Uguanineades  nisiduguananisnauae

nsweauReAuadu

4. @HIUNISIAUSETYNAUENTTUNITUSENUAL
AIENITUNISYALDLENNNG VNN seilgu

0ADAIUTDA1UUAVDIANTINIIUNSTUNISAY

VANNSWOUAERANAVANNSWE  (N.8.6.) WAz
patavannsnguadsemndlne (aan.)

5. 657949US18NIUNISUSEYNAMENSTUNITIAY
s1891UNsUsEYNAENSTUNNSYAL o8 lYign
N ASUGIY uavANYSal

6. @s519d0UsIBNUNNSUsEYuTauligndag
ASUGIU  uazanysal wianandunsiUauy
dorfevuanuiingving  sudeu  detedud
ifigdevimualiagnuasenin

7. wguws aydEiunn ANSAUMAYDNUSEN 61w
finguune seifoy Jethduiifndosiivua
Tadransensa wazidugualiiog lunuimnis
NNVBINSANTURUATINTSTA

8. Aemunsidsunlasnisionsoandnndwe

VRINTTHNISUSINUAYHUSUNS

3. msifiugranIsANbuIIuVaIUSEngod

la=uSEnsoy

TunsinduquavSendes Ae USEn Loy 9
014 410 FeuSntou 80.90% Tasftiumiinig
iduaiouasldansoonidosusdayanaifiunssunas
U3 dufiunislasthedanis deudd w.a.2544
Juduly  vSendvuaivinsiausiouasl¥ansoon
\ApadnanidealdsuaydBanAuenssunisuSen

usEN Blu-Tng 15UTITESY 1DUF ADUARSATU $1AR (UKBU)
$1891UUs=9U 2558

(<}
o
c
©
c
S
)
>
)
S
o
c
©
c
)
=
©
O
c
©
=
L
o
Lot
=
o

g o7



168

Corporate Governance

in the subsidiaries or associated companies are
obliged to carry out any acts that are in the
best interest of such subsidiaries or associated
companies. The Company also required the
appointed persons fo obtain approval of the Board
of Directors before voting on any resolutions or
important transactions that should require approval
of the Board of Directors if the Company has
to perform such fransactions on its own. In this
regard, having directors as the Company’s
representatives in the subsidiaries or associated
companies is in proportion to the shares held by
the Companu.

Furthermore, in case of a subsidiary, the
Company has set up a requirement for the person
appointed by the Company to ensure that such
subsidiary has the regulations regarding connected
fransactions, acquisition or disposal of assets,
or execution of other important transactions in a
complete and accurate manner by applying the
same criteria adopted by the Company. The person
appointed by the Company shall also make sure
that the subsidiary’s data and records are kept
in a manner that can be verified and gathered by
the Company for timely preparation of consolidated

financial position statements.
4, Oversight of Internal Information

Internal Information Usage Policy

The Company has developed written
measures to prevent its directors, executives and
employees from using internal information for their
personal benefits. This is to prevent potential
conflicts of interest and disclosure or misuse
of inside informatfion. Matters on the internal
information usage are contained in the procedures
and code of conduct of the directors, management
and employees as well as Work Regulations of the

employees.

With regard to internal

information of the Company, the term “internal

regulations on

information” means information on financial matters,

investment, marketing, operations, and other
information related to the Company in accordance
with the Arficles of Associations of the Company
or laws. Protection of the internal information is
to protect shareholders’ rights and the Company’s
assets as well as interests of the Company. If
the management, employees or staff violate this
internal  information,

regulation on they shall

be subject to penalty as stfipulated in the Work

Regulations and laws. Procedures regarding
internal information are as follows:
1. The company shall inform the Board of

Directors and management as well as
their spouses and minor children on their
obligation and the auditor to provide reports
on their holding of the Company’s securities
in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations:
Preparation and disclosure of reports on
securities holding of directors, executives and
auditor of the company which shall be strictly
complied with. Moreover, the boards of directors
and management are required to nofice the
company secretary at least 1 day before
their trading of the company’s securities.
The company secretary is fo submit a
summary report on the holding and trading
of the company’s securities of the board of
directors, management, and the auditor tfo
the board of directors meeting quarterly for
acknowledgement.

2. Limit the number of persons who are aware
of the financial information to only related
executives.

3. The execufives or employees who have
knowledge of internal information shall not
be allowed to disclose such information to

the third person or unrelated individuals nor



N1SNIAURANANINIS

dre  Tasyaaai ldsuusedalnidunssunisluuien
goavisouiovsan  fwihiduiunsieUselowia
Aiqavesuiineosviousinsantuy  uasudemld
fvualvyanafldsuusdaiy  doaldsueuionn

AnENssuNMsUSInnoufieslUasud  wieldansoen
AeluSevdndnluseduideatuidesldsueyiaan
AYNTSUNISUSEN  viniunisaiiunisiasusen
1oy Wil nsdunssunisusenitedudrunmiluusen
goensausunsmeenarndulusudadlunistionu
YDNUTEN

wonani lunsahifuuseveos USEnsvua
sudouldyanadildfuudedeannuisniudoequa
Tusemgesiidoteduludownisiisionisiigale
fu  nsldusesmingludmsndau  wienisin
sronsdrdndulavesuisndanan  Iiasudaugn
gov  warldudninamildenfudundninusivasusin
saufunisindugualiiinisdaifiviaya uazns
Tuindy¥vesuivndagliusdndrunsansiadou

BAYSIUSINNITANNUNIS RSl eiusmuaaqe
4. msquaSonistioyamelu

ulsuremsigvayamelu

USENANISIANINIESNISTaNAY  NSSuNIS

U3 gusus  uaswiinew lduselanianndaya

ngluliogretarauduaisdnuaisnes wetlauiu

anudaudonnaUselenl uazioidunisilidoys
ansawnanddgnidaws wietilUhiiouselowi
dweu  lagldusenmaidussifovlfiduasseylilu
STYIUTSUFINIVOINTTUNNS HUSHIS uaswiinenu
uaza sz iyulaUuAuN1SNINILUaIwEneIuY

v
o

weilszifouisesnisaiuqudoyanisluves

o =

USEniL Joyanigly vunefe ToygaveeunIsNu ns

U

AW NM5eATa NMsU§TRNY wazdoyadulafifisades

q
Y

uusem  enudatuAulazuSaauANguuIiIuLe

wounesdnuluawuuesdionu  uazAunsws
VNUSIN  easadusnenalsyloviiuasuseniag
WINKUSIIS Wilned %59gn9189nsennAuinau
sufoull wwdavldsulnweudedudunisiney uay

fovsulnyaungrneiifeewmnlsynis  Tasiuu

v
ﬂauaua

Huaeil

R
aa

vignlaruiisadundrfifanenssunis
UV UAZHUSWNS GADATUAALSH WAryUAST
faldussalifinng  swieddeudyiveuiem
AONSIBNUNNSTOVANTSWEVDIUSEN  e1w
UsenddineuaenssunNIsiiuuannswe
wazaAtavdnnsws  13aensdaviuazidais
SILUNISTOUANNTNE  UANSTUNNSUTEN 6
USms  uavddouvnBuosusen  lasdivua
T¥nssun1susevuazusus aapaIugaNsd
wazyashaliussaianiie s gasudnd
VONUSEN FMITIENIUENNATT SINANTIENIY
nsdsunlasnisiendnniwgvoenssunis
USEN  UAZHUSYIS 0ADAIUAANSE UABYAS
figsliussaiifione  uavdasudoivesuion
AodANUNNIUANENSSUNTSANTURANNSWe LAY
HAIAUANNSWE (N.A.6.) UATANAILUISIENNU
AoAENUAILNITUSEN Woseeused
Useguanenssunisuismbuselasina vl
WulueuinguszasAvaanisdanisieanu
auiUsenainuuald uenantunds s
T¥nssunisusdnuazusuislianiiunis
WINABLAYIYNISUS BV NUDY 1 Juadeuin
Aewinnstonendnniwevosuiom Toe
wnIsusEnaziudaniiunissmusiuunas
wseAaAENssUNTUSINAD U

3 uddoyanienisiiuianizduiungd
figdes

wanlild g usnasudowdnaui ldsunsau
Tayanisludawsdayanislunnynaa
sevonuioyarai bifisates  uazlidoune
wannsweuaauien Tuwdae 1 ifiou rewdvu
NSRBI UWSADAIEITUYY
vSdniluiasnisauinwdusugusuisuay
wiineuiindeyanielusenluimsuwsudetin
T HhioUselamiduau
vsnlaiinisiissuuinaluladdarsduind
(Information Technology) uﬂ%lﬁmﬂuﬂﬁﬂmﬁ’u
nmsinivloyauasusem  wasiinisinuuadns
msidfedoyavesuion  Tuseduneglvimung
ANANANSURAYOUVONWENIULAZEUSTIS
Wusneyaea lasusuniulouisaulasass

usEN Blu-Tng 15UTITESY 1DUF ADUARSATU $1AR (UKBU)
$1891UUs=9U 2558

(<}
o
c
©
c
S
)
>
)
S
o
c
©
c
)
=
©
O
c
©
=
L
o
Lot
=
o

g ico



170

Corporate Governance

shall they sell securities of the Company
within one month prior to dissemination of
financial position statements to the public.

4. The company has a regulation on inflicting
punishment against any executives and/or
employees bringing forth internal information
for dissemination for use for their personal
interests.

5. The

technology system to prevent access to the

Company has adopted information
Company’s information and stipulated the
rights of access to the Company’s information
in various levels suitably in accordance with
the responsibilities of each executive and/or
employee. The Company had an information
technology policy that has been used since
2006. It was created to clearly define rules
for safe use of computers and information
technology of the Company, such as prevention
of problems that may arise as a result of
incorrect use of information system network,
protection of information, punishment, and

application.

Risk Management Policy

The company is committed fo achieve the
goals, objectives, and business and investment
plans. The company realized that the importance
of the changing in business environment and the
risk of uncertainty that may cause the impact on
business. To comply with good corporate governance,
the company provides the risk management policy
and the risk management practical guideline; which
consists of analysis, assessment, management,
and monitoring, in order to control risk in appropriate
level (risk appetite), prevent loss, and minimize
impact on business opportunities. All management
and employees are provided to have a good knowledge
and understanding in the risk management
policy and to be involved in the risk management
process. Therefore, the company can reach the
goals and objectives with the good corporate
governance, and add the sustainable value for the

organization.
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Internal Control

1.

Summary of Opinions of the Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee
At the 5/2015 Meeting of the Audit

Committee held on December 23, 2015, an annual

evaluation of adequacy of the internal control system

was performed in accordance with the evaluation

form published by the Securities and Exchange

Commission. The evaluation results are summarized

in five components as follows:

1. Control Environment

1.1

1.2

The Company has defined the Code of Conduct,
which require its management and employees
to perform their duties in good faith and refrain
from seeking personal gains or carrying out any
actions that may result in conflicts of interest
with business, trade partner, or stakeholder of the
Company. Any person violating such requirement
shall be subject to punishment.

The

organizational

Company has constanfly engaged in

restructuring by dividing into
clear departments/ sections/ offices to support
construction units located in Thailand and other

countries and enable them fo work more efficiently.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

1.3

14

1.5

The Company has developed policies, nofifications
and work procedures in writing to cover all kinds
of fransactions, especially financial transactions,
procurement of goods and services, and
management of works. Furthermore, a manual
on each area of work has been developed,
reviewed, and updated on a regular basis to
achieve maximum benefits and be used as a

tool and guideline to perform duties and prevent

corruption.
The Board of Directors and the Board of
Executive Directors have supervised and

determined the goals and business plans of the
Company as well as acknowledged action plans,
annual budget, and operational goals of each

department/section, which have been prepared

in writing.
The Board of Directors and the Board of
Executive  Directors have reviewed the

Company’s goals and business plans as well
as the annual budget, policies, operational goals
of each department/ section and found that the
Company’'s employees have enough knowledge

and competency required fo achieve such goals.
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Internal Control

The Boards have analyzed the incentives or
remunerafion provided to the employees and
found that they are reasonable and suitable in

accordance with the present economic situation.

2. Risk Assessment

2.1 The Company has analyzed events and factors
resulting in risks by evaluating the opportunity
for the risks. Then, the Company eliminates
risks on a case by case basis before reporting
fo the Audit Committee for utmost benefit of the
Company.

2.2 The

amended any acts that may cause

Company has monitored events and

risks,
especially by making amendments in accordance
with recommendations given in various audit
reports. Moreover, measures to prevent risks are
developed and taken to minimize damages to the
Company.

2.3 The Company has organized a management
meeting to give a report on progress, problems,
obstacles and corrective actions carried out
on a monthly basis as well as results of the
corrective actions in accordance with different
audit reports within designated period of time fo
eliminate/reduce risks and enable the Company

to achieve the milestones established.

3. Control Activities
3.1 The Company has clearly determined the scope
of authority and duties of the management as
well as maximum amounts of money that each
level of management can approve in writing.
3.2 Duties of personnel of the Company have been
clearly segregated as follows:
» A duty to approve
» A duty to record accounting items and
other information
» A duty to safeguard and clearly separate
assets for reciprocal audits under the internal

control principle

3.3 The Company has established procedures for

approving related or connected transactions.
The conflict of interest policy An audit unit is
assigned to inspect the related or connected
fransactions and report to the Audit Committee
on a regular basis.

3.4 The Company does not allow any person who
might gains benefits to approve a transaction
that may give rise to a conflict of interest.

3.5 In making a decision to execute any transactions,
the Company usually focuses on long-term

benefit. In case of any fransactions that may

give rise to a conflict of interest, it is necessary
fo submit such transactions to the Board of

Directors and the Audit Committee for approval

or endorsement.

4. Information and Communication

41 The Company has assigned the Company
Secretary to prepare documents, information and
details regarding important meeting agendas for
the Board of Directors for making a decision in
advance. If additional information is subsequently
available, the Company will send such additional
information to the Board of Directors prior to the
meeting date.

4.2 The Company has sent a notice of Board of
Directors’ meeting together with supporting
documents for the meeting to all directors at
least 7 days prior to the scheduled meeting date
in order for the directors to be clearly informed
of the matters to be discussed at the meeting.

4.3 The Company has prepared minutes of all Board
of Directors’ meetings by recording details that are
essence of the meetings. During each meeting,
there is an agenda to approve the minutes of the
previous meeting to give the Board of Directors’
an opportunity to make amendments or additions
fo the minutes of meeting freely.

4.4 The Company stores its accounting documents

and reports systematically by their categories. If
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Internal Control

the office space is not appropriate, the Company
will keep it in standard boxes and assign the
Bangpakong Center. The Company has never
been notified by any auditors of any defects on
this matter.

4.5 The Company has adopted the generally accepted
accounting principles and complied with the
most recent accounting policies. lts accounting
documents have been audited and approved by
certified public accountants of Ernst & Young
Office Co., Lid.

5. Monitoring Activities

5.1 The Company has determined and submitted the
annual goals and business plans to the Board of
Directors for consideration. A report on progress
and comparisons between operational results
and the goals is given to the Board of Directors
on a regular basis.

5.2 The Company requires each department/section/
office to monitor the performance on a daily,
weekly and monthly basis by using the key
performance indicators (KPI) and present the
progress at the management meeting and
employees meeting for acknowledgement and
correction of problems and obstacles in a timely
manner to accomplish the established goals in
the business plans.

5.3 The Company has the Internal Audit Section
fo constantly provide reasonable assurance of
internal control that:

» Operations of all units are efficient, cost-effective,
and capable of meeting the objectives.

» Financial reports are reliable and prepared on
a fimely manner.

» Operafions are in compliance with laws,
notifications, and regulations of the Company.

» Access 1o assefs, including databases in
the information system, must be permitted by
the management and/or authorized persons.

Furthermore, the Internal Audit Section will

provide advices and recommendations on

control self-assessment to related units.

5.4 The Company reqguires that the Internal Audit

Section is an independent unit reporting directly fo
the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Section is
able to operate independently in accordance with
the international audit standards and is required to
report the auditing results to the Audit Committee,

President, and the audited units.

5.5 When a material defect is detected and/or the

audit report indicates recommendations and/or
areas of improvements, the audited unit shall
carry out corrective actions and prepare and
submit a report on results of such corrective
actions fo the Infernal Audit Section within one

month from the date of receipt of the audit report.

5.6 The Company must report the progress on

57

corrective activities carried out to the Board
of Directors/ the Audit Committee. The Infernal
Audit Section will follow up the corrective
actions and collect data on such corrective
actions from the audited unit to prepare a report
regarding the follow-up of the corrective actions
and submit the same to the Audit Committee and
the President to further present to the Board of
Directors for approval.

Management of the Company is responsible
for formulating plans and procedures, managing
the Company's affairs in accordance with the
policies established by the Company, monitoring
the operations of different departments/sections,
and holding the management committee meeting
at least once or twice a month with secretary
of the management committee recording and
preparing minutes of meetings. The management
shall record problems and obstacles arising,
such as corruption, illegal acts, and unusual
practices, which may affect the Company’s
reputation and financial position. All of the
reports of the management committee shall be

presented to the management committee meeting
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Internal Control
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for acknowledgement. Furthermore, there is the

Internal Audit Section responsible for reporting

unusual circumstances (Red Flag) directly to the
Audit Committee/Board of Directors.

In addition, the external auditor, Ernst and

Young Office Co., Ltd., has aftended the meetings.

The Audit Committee has evaluated sufficiency of

the above five components of the internal control

and found that the Company has sufficient and

appropriafe internal control.

2. Opinions of the Audit Committee
Based on the evaluation of internal control
system, the Audit Committee believes that the Company

has sufficient and appropriate internal control.

3.  Internal Audit Manager is an employee
of the Company.
At the 1/2542 Audit Committee Meeting held
on 23“ June 1999, Mr. Chirapat Srivardhana was
appointed as the Internal Audit Section Manager

since he had five years of experiences in performing

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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the audits of related businesses, attended in internal
Self-
Assessment Facilitation Techniques for Auditors
IAS Endorsed
(EIAP-1), and understood the Company’s activities

audit fraining courses, such as Control

and Internal  Auditing Program
and operations. Therefore, it was agreed that he was

appropriate to serve as the Chief Internal Auditor.
4.  Dividend Payment Policy:

Company dividend payment policy;

The Company has a dividend payment policy
of not less than forty percents (40%) of net profit
before stakeholders in subsidiaries of the company

neither deficit nor other investment in mega projects.

Dividend payment policy of subsidiary
companies paid to the Company;

Board of Directors of subsidiary companies
will consider the payment of dividend in accordance
with the performance of the respective subsidiary

companies in each year.
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Report of the Board of Executive Directors

The Board of Executive Directors of Sino-Thai
Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited
consists of 3 Executive Directors and 1 Non-
Executive Director as followed accordingly;

1. Mr. Vallop
Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors
2. Mr. Pakpoom
Executive Director
3. Mr. Woraphant
Executive Director
4. Mrs. Anilrat

Executive Director

Rungkijvorasathien
Srichamni
Chontong

Nitisaroj

In 2015, the Board of Executive Directors
has performed according to the duties and
responsibilities commissioned by the Board of
Directors fo review policy, business aspects, and
business strategy including financial plan, operating
plan, and other management plan, to ensure that
the company’s operation was efficient and in
compliance with the law, and to ensure that the
company’s operation complied with good corporate
governance, and to comply with the Notification
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand including the
best practices defined by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand as well. The Board of Executive Directors
convened 13 meetings, of which main activities can

be summarized as followed;

1. Define policy, business aspects,
and business strategy

The Board of Executive Directors under
the supervision of the Chairman of the Board of
Executive Directors gave the no gift policy to
ensure that the company has operated with
fransparency and justice and proud to serve without
any giffts and other beneficial factors in return;
moreover, with our best practice by operating business
along with no gift policy, the company assures that
we will continually perform business with fair and

equal in compliance with moral principle basis.

2. Review business plan

The Board of Executive Directors supervised
and reviewed business plan, financial plan, and
management plan that proposed by the Management
fo ensure that the business plan, financial plan,
and management plan are suitable for the business
and compliance to the good corporate governance

also.

3. Monitor business policy and business
strategy

The Board of Executive Directors monitored
and reviewed the operations according to policy,
business strategy, and other management factors
as planned as usual in order to ensure that the
company’s operation will perform efficiently and
it can be reported to the Board of Directors

adequately and accurately as well.

4. Provide suggestions and recommendations

The Board of Executive Directors recommended,
suggested, and assigned the scope of business
operafions to the President including supervised
and reviewed financial plan and budget for Senior
Executive Vice President in Financial and
Administrative Department along with other related
fransaction that will be bind to the company. In
addition, the Board of Executive Directors provided
suggestions for entering into any tender offer or

investment in new projects as well.

5. Supervise financial plan and evaluate
business operations

The Board of Executive Directors supervised
and reviewed financial plan including the approval
of both opening and closing bank’s account with
the financial institutions and banks, then the
transactions will be reported to the Audit Committee
for acknowledgement, without any mortgage or
pledge of the company’s properties in the previous

year. In addition, the Board of Executive Directors
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Report of the Board of Executive Directors

evaluated the performances of business operations
fo determine remuneration for the Management in

both Senior Executive Vice President levels and

upper.

The Board of Executfive Directors has
performed its duties fully in accordance with its
charters approved by the Board of Directors and
has its opinion that the company’s performance
has implemented its good corporate governance
practice basis towards its business operations,
financial, marketing and other related management
factors with efficiency in accordance with its policy
and business strategy as planned. The company
has performed its business in compliance with
the code of conduct and rules, regulations, and
related laws, thus, in conformity with the Notification
of the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand (SET).

Yanw
_,7-

Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors
February 2016

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015



S1EJIUVOVANUZNSSUNISUSKHAS

LAZNDUMNIUUININIUNISUSUISIIULALNS
ANHAUESA  UANSTUNISKHIANIS  AADAIUNISAIiU
QUA AIUAN NUNIBUKUEAIUNISINY  JUUSZUIMLN
NSTUNISTONKIANISAIIIUNISNULAZUSUIS  ua
nmsauilugsialay) Sullwayniuusen easaIuns
AnwranuduldlduaglidSnvusedeiausuuslu

v 1 a 1
s mdsryau wienisawmululasenisiie

5. msrifuaalwunsiiunazus:ijuwa
MSANTUIU

AUENTTUNITUSUISLE ATUQUANUNIUY
uNuNISY smdiinseoulitidauarladnyden) wse
msvoldaudelusuiuudne fusuiasuieanitu
N5 NN NUUILAES 18N IUEDAUENTSHNISASITADY
s lagldiinsimswdauwresuSinlusin s1use
Tulfisun wenanil Anenssunnsudmnssaldiinig
FIMUSLHUNANTANTUNIY UAZATRUARIADULNUUDN
Hudmssedugudauadumiasienssunsianisiu
Tunee

AnznssuN1sUSIslaUGTaninfinsudau
aunginsh ldsuauiBonamenssunsuSEn uasd
AUl gdanisvesusEniinisintuguananis
fid finasgrlunisudmsdanisdrunisanfiugsia
FruNSIRL GUNNSEANE LARIIUUSVSEIUDLY Y8y
uInitiuseansnwuan iulUsnudlovnouasnagns
Aldfmuall wseinmsufiansaiulusiesssussio
sanafuaeungsudovuasdonguinefiisides
400AA NN UNANINUTA VO AITNIIUAMZNSSUNS
fUUANNSwEg  uazaatauannswg (n.8.0.) uaz
pa1audnnInguialsendlng (aan.)

il

wgdaan ufiadsiafios
UsesIUNITUNITUTIIS
NUANAUS 2559

usEN Blu-Tng 15UTITESY 1DUF ADUARSATU $1AR (UKBU)
S1gvuUS=9U 2558

<
Dl

(<}
o
c
©
c
|
)
>
)
S
©
c
©
c
)
=
©
i
c
©
=
L
o
L
=
o

g i3



RE |

Report of The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of Sino-Thai Engineering

& Construction Public Co., Ltd., consists of 3
Independent Directors as the following;
1. Mr. Chamni Janchai,

Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Police General Jate Mongkulhutthi,

Member of the Audit Committee
3. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs,

Member of the Audit Committee

In 2015, the Audit Committee has performed
the

commissioned by the Board of Directors fo review

according to duties and responsibilities
the Company’s financial reports for accuracy and
reliability, to provide adequate and suitable internal
control in compliance with the law, to ensure
Company’s operation complied with the principle
of good corporate governance, and to comply with
the Notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
on Qualifications and Rules and Responsibilities
of the Audit Committee and Best Practice
the Audit Committee issued by the
Listed Companies Division of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand; provided that the Audit Committee has

convened 5 meetings, of which main activities can

Guidelines for

be summarized, as follows:

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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1. Review of the Quarterly Financial
Statements and the Annual Financial
Statement

The Audit Committee has reviewed the

Quarterly Financial Statements and the Annual

Financial Statements 2015; and has inquired and

received the clear explanation from the management

and the Independent Auditor relating to the accuracy
and the completeness of the financial statements, and
the adequacy of information disclosure. Therefore,
the Audit Commifttee has agreed that the aforesaid
financial statements have reasonable correctness
in their essential contents in accordance with the
generally accepted accounting principles; and the
information disclosure in those financial statements

is punctually, correctly and completely.

2. Review of the Internal Control System

The Audit Committee has reviewed the
intfernal control in cooperation with the Independent
Auditor on a regular basis and has considered all
reports of infernal audit according to the approved
work plans, covering the significant work systems
of the Company, including the information security

management system. The Audit Committee has agreed
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Report of The Audit Committee

that the Company has its adequate and suitable
internal control and has its improvements in
accordance with the changing business activities,
therefore, the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries shall achieve the prescribed objectives
as stated in the COSO framework. Moreover, the
Audit Committee has also urged the management
to improve the internal control system for continuous

effectiveness.

3. Monitoring of the Internal Audit
The Audit

the work plans, scope of work, independence,

Committee has considered
manpower, and budgets of the Internal Audit
Department to be proper and in conformity with the
professional standard of internal audit practices
of the Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand
(IAT), the Information Systems Audit and Control
Association (ISACA) in Bangkok; and the internal
audit guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
(SET). The Audit Committee has agreed that the
Company’s internal audit has been carried out
confinuously on a timely and effective basis.
Moreover, the Audit Committee has realized the
significance of the internal audit and has therefore
given its regular support to the internal audit both
in terms of personnel development and guidelines
of audit to be in accordance with the prescribed

standard.

4. Compliance with the Law and the
Government Regulations

The Audit Committee has reviewed the
compliance with Rules and Regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, regulations
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the law relating
to the Company’s business operations; and has
agreed that there is no significant issue relafing to
non-compliance with the law, regulations, and other

related laws.

5. Risk Management Review

The Company has utilized the internal audit
system, the recommendations of the internal audit
report, the work procedures, and the prescribed
regulafions to supervise its business operations in
order to manage risks associated with the internal
operations of the Company. The Audit Committee
has agreed that the Company has effective and
efficient risk management, which will be developed

fo its enterprise risk management.

6. Review and Comments on Related
Transactions or those with Potential
Conflict of Interest

The Audit Committee has given its similar
comments to those of the Independent Auditor that,
according to the Regulations of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange

Commission, no significant related transactions

and/or those with potential conflict of interest was

found.

7. Self Performance Appraisal

To comply with the best practices guidelines
for the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee
should conduct the self-performance appraisal
annually. In 2015, the self-performance appraisal
result of the Audit Committee can be summarized
that the Audit Committee has performed its duties
fully according to its Charter and complied with the
best practice guidelines for the Audit Committee,
which will result in effective implementation of the

rules of good corporate governance.

8. Selection, Nomination, and Remuneration
of the Independent Auditor

The selection, nomination, and remuneration

of the Independent Auditor of 2015 shall be

proposed for the Board of Directors’ approval in

the Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2015, whereas,

the Audit Committee has considered work
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Report of The Audit Committee

performance, independence, and appropriateness of
the remuneration, which shall not be contrary to
the Notification of the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange
of Thailand governing the circulation of auditors.
Therefore, it is deemed expedient to appoint
Mr. Supphachai Panyawatthano, the certified public
accountant n0.3930; or Miss Thippawan Nananuwat,
the certified public accountant no.3459; or Miss
Siraporn Ouaanunkun, the certified public accountant
no.3844 of E Y Co., Ltd., as the Company’s
Independent Auditor of 2015, Company’s auditing
fee in 2015 is 1,750,000 Baht.

9. Audit Committee and Independent Auditor
Meeting

In 2015,

Committee Meeting with the Independent Auditor

the company arranged Audit

totaling 1 time. The meeting is held for revising
the appropriation of the provision of loss that the
company had been settled including the importance
of the International Financial Reporting Standards,
IFRS.

the accounting policy and other provisions of the

Independent Auditor clearly clarified that

company were accurate and appropriate in accordance
with generally accepted standards. Normally, if the
company is using the IFRS as the first time, there
will be some part of it that might effect to the

company.

10. Reporting of the Resolution of the Board
of Directors

Minutes of the Audit Committee’s meetings
and the internal audit appraisal result shall always
be reported to the Board of Directors, thus, in
accordance with the guidelines of best practices of
the Audit Committee.

The aforesaid best practices of the Audit
Committee presented a notification and a suggestion
internal audit,

of financial, risk management,

company performance, and safety, health and

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

environment at job sites, in case the Management
can perform and follow up all those suggestions as
well. Internal Audit has to follow and correct things
to be developed and then report it to the Board of
Directors every quarter.

the Audit Committee has

performed its duties fully in accordance with its

In summary,

Charters approved by the Board of Directors. The
Audit Committee has given the comments that the
Company has implemented its good corporate
governance its  financial

practice, prepared

statements in accordance with the generally
the

correct, complete, and adequate information in the

accepted accounting principles, disclosed
financial report, provided its appropriate internal

control, adhered to the business ethics, and
complied with the rules, regulations, and related
laws, thus, in conformity with the Notification
of the Office of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of

Thailand (SET).

Mr. Chamni Janchai,
Chairman of the Audit Committee
February 2016
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Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public
Company Limited consists of 2 Independent
Directors and 1 Executive Director as followed
accordingly;

1. Police General Jate Mongkolhutthi

Chairman of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

Independent Director and Audit Committee
2. Mr. Suchai Poopichayapongs

Member of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

Independent Director and Audit Committee
3. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

Member of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

Chairman of the Board of Executive Director

In 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has performed according to the duties
and responsibilities commissioned by the Board of
Directors to define policy, criteria and procedures
for recruiting new directors, and criteria and
procedures for determining remuneration of the
Board Committee and other related duties that
approved by the Board of Directors fo ensure
that the company’s operation was efficient and
in compliance with the law, and to ensure that
the nomination and remuneration of the company
will be complied with good corporate governance,
and to comply with the Notification of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand including the best practices
defined by the Stock Exchange of Thailand as
well. The Nominafion and Remuneration Committee
convened 4 meetings, of which main activities can

be summarized as followed;

1. Define policy, criteria and procedures for
recruiting
The Nomination and Remuneration

Committee under the supervising of the Chairman

of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had
defined policy, criteria and procedures for recruiting
new directors for Board members and Board
Committee; moreover, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee had defined policy,
criteria and procedures for the remuneration of the
Board of Directors and other Board Committee
as well. The policy was including term of office,
gualifications, composition, authorities and duties
which it had been approved by the Board of

Directors.

2. Recruit and propose qualified person to be
a new director

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
had considered and recruited qualified person for
a new director fo the annual general meeting of
shareholders for approval fo be elected as a company’s
director. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee considered qualified person in accordance
with the composition and qualifications including
the performances while being the Board members
and other related criteria as stated in the policy,
to ensure that the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has recruited qualified person in
compliance with policy, criteria and procedures
for recruiting new director for Board members and

Board Committee with transparencuy.

3. Define policy and criteria for remuneration
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
by the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee had defined policy and criteria for
remuneration of the Board of Directors and
Board Committee included meeting allowances,
annual fee, and other benefits by comparing to
related business in the same industy and the
same size, then submit the aforesaid remuneration
plan to the Board of Directors for approval and
propose to the annual general meeting of

shareholders for the final approval.
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Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

4. Provide suggestions and recommendations

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
provided suggestions and recommendations
including clarified to the annual general meeting
of shareholders towards the remuneration of the
Board of Directors and Board Committee and also
provided opinions towards recruiting a qualified

person for being a new director.

5. Evaluate the performance of Board of
Directors and Board Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
had reviewed the best practices, regulations, and
procedures of evaluation of the Board of Directors
and Board Committee by evaluating the performance
in group and individual (self-assessment) and
report the result of its evaluation to the Board of

Directors to improve the Board efficiency.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
has performed its duties fully in accordance with
its duties and fiduciary approved by the Board
of Directors and has its opinion that the Board
of Directors and Board Committee performed fully
qualiied and implemented its good corporate
governance practice basis towards its policy and
business strategy as planned. The company has
performed its business in compliance with the code
of conduct and rules, regulations, and related laws,
thus, in conformity with the Notification of the
Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET).

J. Hombothatthe

Police General Jate Mongkolhutthi
Chairman of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee
February 2016

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

1. Management Discussion and Analysis on
financial status and operating results
Upon reading the Management Discussion
and Analysis, investors ought to study
supporting document, namely, past and adjusted
consolidated financial position statements and
operating figures in brief, in conjunction with
notes to financial position statements and the

information presented in this document.

1.1 Performance Overview
The Company carries upon its businesses
of construction of the medium-scale projects

and mega projects, emphasizing the high quality

construction performances. Its highest targets

are construction performance standards of However, the economy was not grew
good quality, on-time delivery, and fair price, by much better in 2015; the performance of the
proceeding to safety, environment, and health company was continuing grew. At the end of
basis in response to customers’ satisfaction. 2015, the company had 50,336 Million Baht as

The construction business overview in its backlog where consisted of construction
2015 grew a little caused by the governmental projects from governmental sectors and
sector that faces the delaying of new project private sectors. The construction projects
disbursement and there was no new investment derived from governmental sectors were the
derived from government sector especially the mass rapid transit, roads, and highways
mega projects due to the complexity of its including large buildings. The construction
procedures including the procedure of approval projects derived from private sectors were
such as the approval of EIA and the purchasing energy and industrial projects.

of new projects that need time. Therefore, there

was few new projects launched for bidding 1.2 Construction Business and Economic

moreover, the investment from private sector Overview

was stable especially in manufacturing and real The construction overview in 2015 was
estate sectors though loan interest had been not much growth especially in the first half
reduced and the credit approval procedures of the year there was an investment in
had announced. The overview of construction consecutive projects and small size projects
business in 2015 had risks associated with of the governmental sector, for example,
gconomic  slowdown; purchasing power of the improvement of road & highway both
consumers were decreased, high living costs main route and secondary route, and the
efc. that effect to investment creditability of renovation of governmental office buildings.
both foreign investors and private investors, The consecutive projects were mainly
therefore the new investment in this sector might focused on mega projects such as MRT Blue
delay, and especially towards the investment in Line (Hualampong — Bangkhae and Bangsue -
fransportation. Tha Pra) project and MRT Red Line (Bangsue

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

1.3

— Rangsit). There was only one mega project
that launched for bidding in 2015 named, the
MRT Green Line (Mo-Chit - Saphan Mai -
Khu Khot).

The growth of construction in private sector
was stable caused by economic slowdown,
purchasing power of consumers reduced and
high living costs; moreover, the private sector
still waiting for the government to approve any
investment in infrastructure aspect, such delay
impact to the decision in investment from
many investors from private sectors.

For the second half of the year 2015,
the construction overview was betfter by the
government launched new projects for example,
the Double Track (Chachoengsao-Klong 19-
Kaengkoi) project, the Double Track (Chira-
Khon Kaen) project and the Drainage Tunnel
from Nong-Born to the Chao Phraya river, etc.

For the second half of the year 2015, the
construction overview in private sector was
stable caused by the delaying of new projects
launching by the government especially in
infrastructure.

The construction overview in 2015 can be
summarized that there was few mega project
derived from government sector because some
mega projects had to be approved through
many procedures which including EIA and
purchasing system of the governmental office

as well.

Industry Trends and Competitive Condi-
tions in the Future

In 2016, the industry of construction is
expecting to be better than the year 2015
because there should be more construction
projects especially in infrastructure-transpor-
tation aspect that valued 1.79 Trillion Baht.
In 2016-2017, there should be new projects

launching of mega projects for example;

The Mass Rapid Transit totaling 4 projects

as the following;

1. MRT Orange Line
(Cultural center — Minburi)
110,325 Million Baht

2. MRT Pink Line
(Kaerai — Minburi)

56,725 Million Baht

3. MRT Yellow Line
(Ladprao — Samrong)
54,768 Million Baht

4. MRT Purple Line - South
(Taopoon — Ratburana)
104,116 Million Baht

The Double Track, meter gauge (1.000 meter)
totaling 4 tracks as the following;

1. Double Track (Mapkabao — Chira Road)

29,853 Million Baht
2. Double Track (Nakornpathom - Hua Hin)
20,036 Million Baht

3. Double Track
(Prachaubkirikhan — Chumphorn)

17,290 Million Baht
4. Double Track (Lopburi — Paknam Poh)
24,840 Million Baht

The medium speed Double Track, standard
gauge (1.435 meter) totaling 4 tracks as the
following;

1. Double track Bangkok — Nong kai, Kaeng
koi — Map Ta Put

369,148 Million Baht
2. Double frack Bangkok - Pitsanulok -
Chaing Mai
449,473 Million Baht
3. Double track Bangkok — Hua Hin
94,673 Million Baht
4. Double track Bangkok - Rayong
155,774 Million Baht

Remark : Data from the Ministry of Transport
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In addition, the governmental sector is
going fo launch more mega projects besides
the development of mass transit for example:
1. Motorway (Pattaya — Map Ta Phut)

2. Motorway (Bang Pa In -
Nakornratchasrima)

3. Motorway (Bang Yai — Ban Pong -
Karnchanaburi)
The expansion of Suvarnabhumi phase 2
The containers distribution center at

Laemchabang Port

The construction overview in private sector
in 2016 is expecting to grow more than
the year of 2015 according to the economic
expansion in 2016, if the government is promptly
fo approve mega projects, the confidentiality
of investment will be obviously noticed by
private investors eventually.

The competition in construction market for
the last year was normal, for example, the
competition situation in mega projects derived
from the government sector was nonviolent
such as mass rapid transit project where
a consfruction company needs to have a
fechnical qualification where there was few
construction company qualified, and therefore,
the competition in such situation was not
severe. The competition in construction of power
and industrial projects e.g. power plants and
industrial plants that derived from private sectors
were also nonviolent either because the clients
mostly came from foreign EPC companies and
there were few construction companies who
qualified. On the other hand, the competition
of public construction projects both small and
medium projects were high because there were
many construction companies were qualified 1o
bid such projects. Another notice from the real
estate last year was condominiums and large
shopping centers where the competition in such

projects was not high as same as last year.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The construction market overview in 2016
is expecting to grow more than last year but
the company shall not regard related risks
and to execute the construction projects
professionally the company shall aware in
cases as followed;

1. Man power shortage especially the skilled
labor.

2. Prices of construction material that
may fluctuate in accordance with the
demand of related business especially raw
materials.

3. Trend of hiring expenses that may add
up in compliance with the hiring rate of

skilled labors.

1.4 Policy and Strategy of the Company

o The Company’s policy in 2015 was
“Think Out of The Box” in the meaning
of broaden idea in order fo achieve all
our best in profitability and strengthens

financial company.

o The Company’s strategies in

enhancing growth and profitability by

» Focus on core business -
construction business

» On time delivery with high quality
works and safety standards to our
customers

» Cost leadership

» Maintain financial strength

» Maintain excellent operation

»  Human capital development continuously

1.5 The Company business line

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction
Public Company Limited has mainly operated
construction business with the revenue from

construction of the company and its subsidiary
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Management Discussion and Analysis

companies in 2015 amounting fo 18,238 Million Baht (or 96.5% of the total revenue) compared to the
year of 2014, the revenue from construction was 21,552 Million Baht (or 98.2% of the total revenue)
which decreased 3,314 Million Baht, or 15.4% since the decreasing of constfruction projects.

In proportion of the revenue from construction categorized by public sectors and private sectors
of the company and its subsidiary companies in 2015 was 41%:59%, changed from the year of 2014
as presented 52%:48%. In 2015, the company and its subsidiary companies had the revenue from
construction from the following significant projects: MRT Purple Line (Bangsue-Bangyai) Contract
No.2, MRT Blue Line (Thapra-Lak Song) Contfract No. 4, and Supreme Court Building etc. Other
construction projects that the company had recognized its revenue from construction in 2015 were
Erection and Assembly (Package 3 Ichthys Onshore LNG), Khanom Combined Cycle Power Plant

Project and 12 Small Power Plant Projects

Revenue Structure from the Construction Classified by Customer Type
(Unit: Million Baht)

Customer Type 2015 2014 Change
Amount % Amount % Amount
Public Sector 7,403 iy 11,290 52% -3,887
(Including state enterprises)
Private Sector 10,835 59 10,262 48% 573
Total 18,238 100% 21,552 100% -3,314

Revenue Structure from the Construction Classified by Work Type
(Unit: Million Baht)

Construction Work Type 2015 2014 Change
Amount % Amount % Amount
Infrastructure 8,486 47 10,630 49% -2,144
Building 4,271 23 5,813 27% -1,542
Energy 3,308 18 3,443 16% -135
Industry 2173 12 1,666 8% 507
Total 18,238 100% 21,552 100% -3,314

When classifying the revenue by type of work in 2015, the company and its subsidiary companies
had the revenue from construction in infrastructure amounting to 8,486 Million Baht, or 47% of the
revenue from construction and the revenue came from mega projects derived by the public sectors,
for example, MRT Purple Line (Bangsue-Bangyai) Confract No.2, MRT Blue Line (Thapra-Lak Song)
Contract No.4, and Srirat Express Way.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of building projects, there was 4,271 Million Baht, or 23% as an income with the

significant projects such as Phuket Airport Development project, Supreme Court Office Building

project, Design and Build of Head Quarter and surrounding building for CAT Telecom project, New

Parliament and associated building project.

In terms of energy projects, there was 3,308 Million Baht, or 18% as an income with the

significant projects such as Khanom Combined Cycle Power Plant and 12 Small Power Plant Project.

In tferms of industrial projects, there was 2,173 Million Baht, or 12% as an income with the

significant project such as Erection and Assembly (Package 3 Ichthys Onshore LNG), DMC Polyol

project and Loy Krathong project.

The company has major projects under construction in 2015 that can be classified by the type of work as follows;

Type of Work
Infrastructure
MRT Purple Line Contract No.2
MRT Blue Line Contract No. 4
Main highway No.3 (Bangpu) — Baan Klong Krabue (Part 2)
Srirat Expressway

Ban Huag (Phayao)-Muang Khob-Muang Xiang Hone and Muang Khob-Ban

Pakkob-Ban Koneteun Road Improvement
Highway Lumphun (By Pass)
Sky Walk , Sky Bridge and Fly Over Bridge for Central West Gate
High way “Chor” route Contract 2 (Korat)
High Way # 3263 Sena-Baansalee Part 2
MRT Green Line Contract 3,4
Double-Track (Chachoengsao-Klong 19-Kaeng Khoi) Contract 1

Type of Work
Building
Medical Services Building for Mettapracharak Hospital
Development for Phuket Internafional Airport Project
Supreme Court Building
Design & Build for CAT Head Office
C.P.Leadership Development Center
The New National Parliament House
C.P.Leadership Development Center (Building System)
Rai Saeng Dao
Blu Port Resort Mall at Hua Hin
New Office Building of the Bureau of the Budget

Amount (Million Baht)

13,238
13,193
548
8,000
657

426
155
459
758
2,628
9,826

Amount (Million Baht)

755
4,810
2,360
2,279
1,567
11,477
916
346
1,550
1,511
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Type of Work Amount (Million Baht)

Energy

U Thai Power Plant Project 8,723
Khanom Combined Cycle Power Plant Project 4,381
12 Small Power Plant Projects 12,530
EPC of Water and Waste Water Pipelines, 115/22 KV Transmission Lines 3,288

and Steam Pipelines for Small Power Plants

Type of Work Amount (Million Baht)

Industrial

Erection and Assembly (Package 3 Ichthys Onshore LNG) 2,760
DMC Polyol Project 58
Loy Krathong Project 219

Type of Work Amount (Million Baht)
Environment

Sewerage Tunnel , Bung Nong Bon fo Chaophraya River 2,302

2. The Company Performance and
Profitability

The detail of management discussion and

Expenses:

The Company and its subsidiary companies
had total expense in 2015 in the amount
of 17047 Million Baht, 2,971 Million Baht

decreasing from 2014, representing 14.8%,

analysis for 2015 and the profitability of the

company and its subsidiary companies as the

followings; such decreasing came from the cost of
construction had been reduced since there
Revenue: was few construction projects in 2015. The

The Company and its subsidiary companies
had total revenue in 2015 in the amount of
18,910 Million Baht, or 3,035 Million Baht
decreasing from 2014, representing 13.8 %,
due to the decreasing of construction projects
but mostly of the revenue sfill came from
revenue from construction 18,238 Million Baht,
and sales and service income 93 Million Baht,
the interest income in the amount of 72 Million
Baht, Gain on fair value adjustments of
investment properties 448 Million Baht and
Other income 59 Million Baht

main expenses were construction costs in the
amount of 16,550 Million Baht, cost of sales
and service in the amount of 49 Million Baht and
administrative expenses in the amount of 448
Million Baht.

Profitability:

In 2015, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had the increasing profitability as
follows;

® |n 2015, the Company and its subsidiary

companies had gross profit from
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construction in the amount of 1,688 Mil-
lion Baht, representing 9.3%; meanwhile,
in 2014, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had gross profit from
construction in the amount of 2,176
Million Baht, representing 10.1%. The
decrease in the gross profit from
construction of the Company and its
subsidiary companies was due to the
fact that revenue from construction
of the Company and its subsidiary
companies had decreased. The
construction cost is also decreased
but a liftle bit less than decresing in
revenue.

In 2015, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had earning before interest
and tax in the amount of 1,880 Million
Baht, representing 9.9%; meanwhile in
2014, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had earning before interest
and tax in the amount of 1,937 Million
Baht, representing 8.8%. The increase
in the earning before interest and tax
of the Company and its subsidiary
companies was due to the fact that the
Company and its subsidiary companies
gained on fair value adjustments of
investment properties in 2015 but this
transaction had not been done for the
year of 2014.

In 2015, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had net profit in the amount
of 1,545 Million Baht, representing
8.2%; meanwhile in 2014, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had net
profit in the amount of 1,530 Million
Baht, representing 7.0%. The increase
in the net profit of the Company and its
subsidiary companies was due to the

fact that the Company and its subsidiary

Management Discussion and Analysis

companies gained on fair value
adjustments of investment properties
in 2015 but this fransaction had not
been done for the year of 2014.

Return on Assets:

In 2015, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had its return on assets ratio at the
rate of 6.8%, increasing from 2014 when had
its return on assets ratio of 6.1%. Though there
was increasing percentage of return on assets
ratio, the efficient ability of using the Company’s

assets to generate profit sfill remained.

Return on Equity:

In 2015, the Company and its subsidiary
companies its return on equity ratio at the rate of
16.3%, decreasing from 2014 which was at the
rate of 17.9%. Decrease in return on equity ratio
of the Company and its subsidiary companies
but it keeps the high level presented the
efficient ability of generating the return to the

shareholders.

3. Assets Management Ability

3.1 Consolidated Financial Positions

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had assets in the
amount of 22,661 Million Baht, liabilities in the
amount of 13,153 Million Baht, and sharehold-
ers’ equity in the amount of 9,508 Million Baht.

Assets:

as at December 31, 2015, the Company and
its subsidiary companies had the assets in the
amount of 22,661 Million Baht, or 2,342 Million
Baht decreasing from 2014, representing
9.4%, comprising the current assets in the
amount of 15,572 Million Baht, or 2,990 Million

Baht decreasing from 2014, representing
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16.1%. The current assets which significantly
decreased were cash and cash equivalents,
current investments and unbilled receivables.
The non-current assets were in the amount
of 7089 Million Baht, or 647 Million Baht
increasing from 2014, representing 10.1%, the
non-current assets that significantly increased

were investment properties.

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had the cash and
cash equivalents, and tfemporary investment
in the amount of 2,065 Million Baht, decreasing
from 2014 when had the cash and cash
equivalents, and temporary investment in the
amount of 5,565 Million Baht or had the difference
amount of 3,501 Million Baht, representing
62.9%. The Company and its subsidiary
companies invested in cash, cash at banks, bills
of exchange, promissory notes, BOT’s bonds,
financial institutions’ debt instruments, private
sector's debt instruments and investment
units. The Company and its subsidiary companies
emphasized the liquidity and investment

protection.

2. Account Recievables

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had net account
receivables in the amount of 3,079 Million
Baht, or 331 Million Baht increasing from
2014 when had net account receivables in
the amount of 2,748 Million Baht, representing
12.0%, in consequence of the fact that the
Company and its subsidiary companies account
receivable turnover longer by having 58-day
account receivable turnover period which more
than 2014 that having 47-day account receivable
furnover period. In comparison with the credit
sales period as making the contracts with
its customers (30-60 days receivable turnover

period).

Management Discussion and Analysis

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had accounts
receivable — unrelated entities in the amount of
3,044 Million Baht less allowance for doubtful
accounts in the amount of 47 Million Baht,
having accounts receivable - not yet been due in
the amount of 1,430 Million Baht, representing
47.0%, having outstanding accounts receivable not
exceeding 4 months in the amount of 491 Million
Baht, representing 16.8%, having outstanding
accounts receivable for the periods of 5-12
months in the amount of 511 Million Baht,
representing 16.8%, and having outfstanding
accounts receivable more than 12 months in the
amount of 611 Million Baht, representing 20.1%.
The stafus of the aging of accounts receivable
— unrelated entities of the Company and its
subsidiary companies was normal.

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had accounts
receivable -related entities in the amount of
112 Million Baht less allowance for doubtful
accounts in the amount of 29 Million Baht,
having accounts receivable - not yet been due
in the amount of 82 Million Baht, representing
73.2%, having unbilled receivables more than
12 months in the amount of 29 Million Baht,
representing 25.9%. The status of the age of
accounts receivable - related entities of the
Company and its subsidiary companies was
normal.

Upon estimating the allowance for doubtful
accounts, the management estimated, at their
discretion, the doubtful accounts of each
account receivable by taking into consideration
the account receivable reliability, past collection
experience, outstanding account receivable
age, and then economic situation. The Company
and its subsidiary companies believed that the
provision for allowance for doubtful accounts

was adequated.
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3. Construction Work in Progress

As at December 31, 2015, the Company and
its subsidiary companies had the construction
work in progress in the amount of 2,300 Million
Baht, or 1,113 Million Baht increasing, representing
93.8%, in comparison with in 2014, when
the construction work in progress was in the
amount of 1,187 Million Baht.

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had the property,
plant and equipment in the amount of 3,197
Million Baht, or 31 Million Baht increasing,
representing 1.0%, in comparison with in 2014,
when the property, plant and equipment were
in the amount of 3,166 Million Baht, because
the Company and its subsidiary companies
accepted more new construction works, causing
increase in the property, plant and equipment

in the normal course of business.

5. Investment Properties

As at December 31, 2015, the Company and
its subsidiary companies had the investment
properties in the amount of 3,710 Million Baht,
or 626 Million Baht increasing from 2014,
representing 20.3%, when the investment
properties were in the amount of 3,083 Million

Baht, the most of which were lands.

Liabilities:

As at December 31, 2015, the Company and
its subsidiary companies had liabilities in the
amount of 13,153 Million Baht, or 3,301 Million
Baht decreasing from 2014, representing
20.1%, being composed of current liabilities in
the amount of 12,649 Million Baht, or 3,278
Million Baht decreasing from 2014, representing
20.6%. The current liabilities as significantly
increased were the unbilled payables and

advances received from construction contracts.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The non-current liabilities were in the amount
of 505 Million Baht, or 23 Million Baht
decreasing from 2014, representing 4.4%. The
non-current liabilities significantly decreased

was financial lease payables.

1. Short-Term Loans from Financial
Institutions

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had no any
short-term loan from financial institution;
meanwhile, in 2014, the Company and its
subsidiary companies had no any short-term
loans from financial institutions neither.
The Company and its subsidiary companies
had set up debt free target in order to sustain

financial strengh of the company.

2. Account Payables

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had net account
payables and other payables in the amount
of 4,023 Million Baht, or 296 Million Baht
increasing from 2014 when had net account
payables and other trade payables in the amount
of 3,727 Million Baht, representing 7.9%.
The Company and its subsidiary companies
maintained the quantity of the account payables
and other payables in the appropriate level
despite increase in construction works, by
having 62-day performance period as slightly
increasing from that in 2014 when had 84
day performance period. The Company and its
subsidiaries companies believed that such
performance period was rather good and

suitable in the normal course of business.

3. Advances received from
construction contracts
As at December 31, 2015, the Company

and its subsidiary companies had advances
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received from construction confracts in the
amount of 4,198 Million Baht, or 1,494 Million
Baht decreasing from 2014 when had advances
received from customers under construction
contfracts in the amount of 5,692 Million Baht,
represenfing 26.2% due to some delayed
in new construction projects especially in

government sector in 2015.

Shareholders’s Equity:

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had the
shareholders’ equity in the amount of 9,508
Million Baht, or 959 Million Baht increasing
from 2014 when had the shareholders’
equity in the amount of 8,549 Million Baht,
representing 11.2%, which was caused by
increase in unappropriated retained earnings
as from 4,602 Million Baht up to 5,518 Million
Baht in 2015.

Total Assets Turnover:

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had the total
asset turnover ratio of 0.83, as slightly
decreasing from 2014 of 0.88 The Company
and its subsidiary companies had total asset

furnover at the moderate level.

4. Liquidity and Capital Adequacy
4.1 Capital Structure

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had the asset
structure by having the current assets fo
non-current assets ratio equal to 69% : 31%,
as slightly changed from that in 2014 when
had the current assets to non-current assets
ratio equal to 74% : 26%.

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had liabilities
in the amount of 13,153 Million Baht, or 3,301
Million Baht decreasing from 2014, while

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

Management Discussion and Analysis

the liabilities presented in 2014 was 16,454
Million Baht. The decreasing of total liabilities
was come from unbilled payables and advanc-
es received from construction contracts.

As at December 31, 2015, the Company and
its subsidiary companies had the shareholders’
equity in the amount of 9,508 Million Baht, or
959 Million Baht increased from 2014 which
the amount of shareholders’ equity in 2014
presented 8,549 Million Baht. The increasing
of the shareholders’ equity was come from
retained earnings.

As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had financial
structure between the fotal liabilities and
the shareholders’ equity, by having the total
liabilities to shareholders’ equity ratio equal to
58% : 42%, as significant improvement from
that in 2014 when had the total liabilities to
shareholders’ equity ratio equal to 66% : 34%.

4.2 Capital Expenditure

Upon consideration of investment in fixed
assets of the Company and its subsidiary
companies, the management would prepare
annual investment plans in fixed assets as
proposed to the Board of Executive Directors
of the Company. Upon decision made in new
investment, the Company and its subsidiary
companies made sufficient consideration in
every aspect, including return on investment.

In 2015, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had capital expenditures in
purchasing the property, plant and equipment
in the amount of 458 Million Baht, or 426
Million Baht decreasing from 2014 when the
property, plant and equipment were purchased
in the amount of 884 Million Baht, representing
48.2%, due to the fact that the Company and
its subsidiary companies decided fo invest
such a significant amount in property, plant

and equipment in 2014.
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The Company and its subsidiary companies believed that the capital expenditures, both additional
investment and replacement investment for the expired existing fixed assets, would maintain the
competitive potfentiality of the Company and its subsidiary companies, both at present and in the

future, and the fixed assets as additionally invested were utilized in their full capacities.

4.3 Liquidity
In 2015, the Company and its subsidiary companies had the current ratio at 1.23 as slightly
increasing from that in 2014 with the current ratio at 1.17 The Company and its subsidiary companies
had a good liquidity.
In 2015, the Company and its subsidiary companies had the quick ratio at 0.8 as slightly decreasing
from that in 2014 with the quick ratio at 0.9 The Company and its subsidiary companies had a good
liquidity.

4.4 Cash Flow
In 2015, the Company and its subsidiary companies increase in cash and cash equivalents in the
amount of 1,095 Million Baht, by having the cash brought forward in the amount 2,134 Million Baht,
causing the net cash at the end of the period fo be equal to 1,039 Million Baht, detailed as follows:
(Unit: Million Baht)

Sources of Cash Flow 2015 2014 2013
Operating Activities (2,363) (940) 2,034
Investing Activities 1,980 1,610 (854)
Financing Activities (812) (877) (182)
Net increase (decrease) in Cash Flow (1,095) (207) 998
Beginning Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2134 2,341 1,343
Ending Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,039 2,134 2,341

in 2014 which was at 1.9. A part of the total

liabilities of the Company and its subsidiary

4.5 Sources of Fund
As at December 31, 2015, the Company

and its subsidiary companies had sources companies resulted from advances received

of fund from totfal liabilities and shareholders’ from customers under construction contfracts

equity in the amount of 13,153 Million Baht and as provided by the customers for the Company

9,508 Million Baht, respectively. Meanwhile,
in 2014, the Company and its subsidiary
companies had the total liabilities in the amount
of 16,454 Million Baht and shareholders’
equity in the amount of 8,549 Million Baht.
As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had the Debt

to Equity Ratio at 1.4, decreasing from that

and its subsidiary companies to be used in
business operations as general practices.
Advances received from customers under
construction contracts had no any interest
payable whatsoever.

As at December 31, 2015, the items in the
total liabilities and shareholders’ equity of the
Company and its subsidiary companies which

significantly changed were as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On Liabilities ® Payable as from 1 year up to 5 years

o | H t d oth bl 12 Million Baht
nerease In deeotnt and oiner paJables Upon assessment of liquidity of the Company
296 Million Baht

® Decrease in unbilled payables
2,267 Million Baht

® Decrease in advances received from

and its subsidiary companies, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had sufficient
cash fo pay the aforementioned obligation on
liabilities.
As at December 31, 2015, the Company
and its subsidiary companies had no any
On Shareholders’ Equity off-statement of financial position obligation.
® Increase in unappropriated retain
earnings 916 Million Baht

construction contracts
1,494 Million Baht

6. Factors or events which may significantly
affect the financial position and results of

4.6 Leverage operations in the future
As at December 31, 2015, the Company

and its subsidiary companies had inferests

The External Factors impact to the Business:

According to the Nationanl Council for

ble in th t of 13 Million Baht, or 5
pagabie in fhe dmount © ion Bant. or Peace of Order had responsibility to the country,

Million Baht decreasing from 2014 when had the government focused on infrastructure

int i ble in th t of 18 Milli
interests pagable In e amount o Hon development to enhance the economic activities

Baht, due fo the reduction of hire-purchase in order to stimulate Thailand's economic for

fract and fi ial | . M hile, th
coniract an hancial fease eanwhtie, the AEC in 2015, a variety of construction projects

C d it bsidi ies had
ompany and s stbsidiary companies ha of the public sector were launched such as

the ti int t d rafi | fo 140
© fime Inierest earned ratio equal 1o fransportation projects, under the strategic

ti ignificantly i ing f 2014
imes, as significantly increasing from 20 framework for infrastructure development in
2015 - 2022 which covered the transportation

projects such as roads, mass ftransit, air

when had the time interest earned ratfio equal
to 106 times. The Company and its subsidiary

ies had effici i ing int t
companies had etficiency In pading Inferes fransportation and water transportation.

based on operating profit in the high level.
The Internal Factors impact to the Business:

. ligation on Liabiliti nd Management of
5. (Obligation o abilities and Management o The company realized that Human Capital is

Off-Statement of Financial Position Obligation )
importance, therefore, the company has always

The Company and its subsidiary companies
pdnd I Hbsididry pant find the suitable training courses to improve

de the hire- h fract and fi ial
macde 1he hire-purchase coniract and findneld the abilities of its people by providing inhouse

lease in relation to the automotive rental for . .
fraining every year, moreover, the Operation

a period of 3-5 years.  The Company and Division and the Financial and Administrative

its subsidiary companies had the minimum L .
Division are also arranged fraining courses

amount to be payable under the irrevocable
pad to help and improve employees’ skill as well.

hire-purchase contract and financial lease as
re-pu I Besides the company has also supported the

at December 31, 2015, as follows: skilled labors to take course and test their

® Payable within 1 year
10 Million Baht

abilities in accordance with the labor standards
for being their good advantages as a working

skill and tidy delivery project.
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Connected Transactions

1. Related transactions with other than joint ventures

Company Name

1. HTR Co., Ltd.

2. NOUVELLE PROPERTY
Co. Ltid.

3.WISDOM SERVICES Co.,Ltd.

4. DKK Sino-Thai
Engineering Co., Ltd.

5. STIT Co., Ltd.

6. STP&I (Public) Co., Lid.

Business

Business: Property Development

Business: Real estate

development

Business: Rental of machine

and construction equipment

Business: Design the

foundation and structure of
telecommunication fowers,
production of telecommunication
steel structure, construction and
installation of telecommunication
towers, civil works, repairs and
maintenance of telecommunication
towers, inspection, improvement,
and strengthening of

telecommunication towers

Business: Distributor and
service provider of machinery
and equipment used in the
construction and manufacturing

industry

Business: Processing of steel
structure, piping and welding,
pressured containers, heat-
exchange equipment, boilers and
process model;

Distributor and service provider
of machinery and equipment
used in the construction and

manufacturing industry;

Relationship

The Company holds 80.90% of shares in
HTR Co., Ltd.
There are 2 co-directors, including:

Mr. Woraphant Chonthong

The Company holds 99.99% of shares in
Nouvelle Property Co., Ltd

The Company holds 100.00% of shares in
Wisdom Services Co., Lid

The Company holds 35.00% of shares in
DKK' Sino-Thai Engineering Co., Ltd.
There are 3 co-directors, including:

1. Mr. Vallop Rungkijvorasathien

2. Mr. Woraphant Chonthong

3. Mr. Somchai  Wattanaweerachai

STIT Co. Ltd. is releated company, as
co-director with the Company.
There is a co-director, i.e.,

Mr. Masthawin  Charnvirakul

STP&I Public Co.,Ltd. is releated company,
as co-director with the Company.
There are 3 co-directors, including:

1. Mr. Masthawin Charnvirakul

2. Pol.Gen. Jate Mongkolhutthi

3. Mr. Chamni  Janchai
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Connected Transactions

2. Related transactions with joint ventures

Company Name

1. Sino-Thai AS Joint Venture

2. SL Joint Venture

3. SA Joint Venture

4.STEC AS 3 Joint Venture

5.8TEC AS 4 Joint Venture

6. STAS Joint Venture

Business

Business: Construction Work

Business: Construction Work

Business: Construction Work

Business: Construction Work

Business: Construction Work

Business: Construction Work

Relationship

» Joint Venture; whereas, the Company
held 58% of stakes in Sino-Thai AS Joint
Venture Associate Engineering (1964)
Limited held 42% of the stakes;

v

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company held
70% of stakes in SL Joint Venture (but
had 100% Control power) LC Transport
and Commerce Co., Ltd. held 30% of the

stakes;

v

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company held
80% of stakes in SA Joint Venture Aqua
Thai Co., Ltd. held 20% of the stakes;

v

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company
held 70% of stakes in STEC AS 3 Joint
Venture (but had 100% Control power)
Associate Engineering (1964) Limited held
30% of the stakes;

v

Joint Venture; whereas, the Company
held 60% of stakes in STEC AS 4 Joint
Venture

Associate Engineering (1964) Limited held
40% of the stakes; (but had 100% Control

power)

v

» Joint Venture; whereas, the Company held
©60% of stakes in STAS Joint Venture
Associate Engineering (1964) Limited held
40% of the stakes;

**Since September 2013, STEC has
fulfilled its promise on the part of the

Company successfully
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Connected Transactions

2. Related transactions with joint ventures (continued)

Company Name Business Relationship

7. ASST Joint Venture Business: Construction Work  » Joint Venture; whereas, the Company
held 45% of stakes in ASST Joint Venture
Associate Engineering (1964) Limited held
55% of the stakes;

**Since September 2013, STEC has
fulfilled its promise on the part of the

Company successfully

The Company has transaction with persons who may have a conflict of interest for fiscal
years 2015 and 2014 are as follows.

Related Reason for Transactions

Transactions

Gross Value (Baht)
As of
December 31, 2014

Company Name Gross Value (Baht)
As of

December 31%', 2015

1. HTR Co., Ltd. 1.1 Rental 14,468,790 14,423,400 » The building space is
Incomes from leased as the Company’s
office building office at the market price.
lease » As of December 31,2015

STEC was behind in
1.2 Trade 14,980 16,050 payment on parking
accounts and basement.
notes
payablerelated » Loan to HTR Co., Ltd was
parties due to pay principal of loan
and interest in quarterly
1.3 Loans to Opening Balance 73,000,000 totaling 20 installments.

Raising During the period - The interest can be

Decreasing during the period

related parties
calculated at MLR; minute

(73,000,000) 1 percent per year, and pay
Ending Year Balance the first installiment in July
J—' 2009.
1.4 Interest receipt 2,495,921
from loans
under
Sub-Clauses
1.3
2. Nouvelle 2.1 Loans to Opening Balance 500,000 Opening Balance - » Loans to Nouvelle Property
Property related parties Raising During the period Raising During the period Co.Ltd. at interest rate
Co., Lid. 393,260 790,500,000 of 4 percent per year and
Decreasing during the period Decreasing during the period payment of principal and
(0) (790,000,000) interest on demand.
Ending Year Balance Ending Year Balance
893,260 —500,000
2.2 Interest 29,557.99 10,042,739.73
receipt from
loans under

Sub-Clauses

2.1
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Connected Transactions

The Company has transaction with persons who may have a conflict of interest for fiscal
years 2015 and 2014 are as follows. (continued)

Company Name

3. Wisdom
Services
Co. Ltd.

4. STIT Co., Lid.

5. STP&I (Public)
Co., Lid.

Related
Transactions

3.1 Investment
on the part of
shareholders

3.2 Loans to
related parties

3.3 Inferest
receipt from
loans under
Sub-Clauses
3.2

3.4 Service
Income

3.5 Trade
accounts and
notes payable

4.1 Trade
accounts and
notes payable

4.2 Service
Income

4.3 Cost of spare
parts, fix and
maintenance

5.1 Trade
accounts and
notes
receivable

5.2 Service
Income

5.3 Advanced
received from
construction
contracts

5.4 Unbilled
receivables

Gross Value (Baht)
As of
December 31, 2015

12,726,516

Opening Balance -

Raising During the period
713,300,000

Decreasing during the period

(187,000,000)

Ending Year Balance

526,300,000

2,706,808

232,432,025

22,602,006

7,298,691

51,834,562

73,944,192.30

2,026,606,213

33,445,425

Gross Value (Baht)
As of
December 31, 2014

12,726,516

9,191,943

258,000

36,686,113

211,596,417

1,381,155,064

437,550,537

302,600,977

Reason for Transactions

» Buys ordinary shares of
Wisdom Services Co., Ltd.
fotaling 22,110,000 shares
with a par value of Baht
100 per share which the
company acquired 0.5756
Baht per share, totaling
12.7 million baht.

> Loans to Wisdom
Services Co., Ltd. at
interest rate of 0.5 percent
per year and payment of
principal and interest on
demand.

» Rental of machine and
construction equipment

» Spare parts; and repairs of
the Company’s machinery
at the market price;

» Repairing Land Plot C
Erection and Assembly at
the market price;
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Connected Transactions

The Company has transaction with persons who may have a conflict of interest

as a joint venture

Company Name Related Transactions

1. Sino-Thai AS
Joint Venture

1.1 Trade accounts and
notes receivable

2. SL Joint Venture 2.1 Trade accounts and

notes receivable

3. SA Joint Venture 3.1 Trade accounts and

notes receivable

3.2 Unbilled receivables

3.3 Service income

4. STEC AS 3 Joint 4.1 Advanced received

Venture from construction

contracts

4.2 Unbilled receivables

5. STEC AS 4 Joint 5.1 Unbilled receivables
Venture

Gross Value (Baht)
As of

Gross Value (Baht)
As of

December 31%, 2015 December 31%, 2014

3,531,266

6,039,804

21,383,967.91

23,654,911

230,802,400

16,887,957

3,454,249

Reason for
Transactions

3,531,266 *» The Company has

6,039,804 *

23,624,178 »

24,836,293

19,638,265

carried out the
construction of BMA
Mass Transit System
Project, extension of
Sukhumvit Line and
Silom Line, under
subcontract at the
market price;

The Company has
carried out the
construction of
water distribution
canal,pumping
station, elevated
bridge, including
Section 3 Building
drainge project near
Suvarnabhumi Airport
under subcontract and
at the market price;

The Company has
carried out the
construction of
waterworks system
under the Project on
solving the problem
of water shortage of
Nakhon Ratchasima
Municipality, under
subcontract and at the
market price;

The Company has
carried out the
construction of
Maintenance Centre
Building park and ride,
under subcontract at
the market price;

The Company

has carried out

the construction

of Designed along
the rail construction
under subcontract
and at the market
price;
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Connected Transactions

The Company has transactions with persons who may have conflicts of interest
as a joint venture. (continued)

6. STAS Joint 6.1 Trade - 19,438,683 »
Venture accounts
and notes

receivable

6.2 Service - -

income

7. ASST Joint 7.1 Trade accounts - 18,922,768 »
Venture and notes

receivable

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015

The Company has
carried outf the
construction of BTS,
Silom Extfension
(Taksin - Petkasem);
**Since September
2013, STEC has
fulfilled its promise
on the part of the

Company successfully

The Company has
carried out the
construction of Track
Rehabilitation Phase
6: North Eastern
Line, Buayai Junction-
Nongkay;

**Since September
2013, STEC has
fulfilled its promise
on the part of the
Company successfully
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Connected Transactions

General Policy on Related transactions of the
Company

Policy on Pricing
The value of related tfransactions shall be in
accordance with the market price or competitive

prices of non-related parties.

Reasonability of Transactions

Related transactions shall be made on the basis of
necessity and reasonability and for the maximum
benefits of the Company, and the said transactions
existed because the Company has operated its
businesses with subsidiaries, affiliated companies,
and related companies in the normal course of
businesses. Transactions include construction
service provision, purchase of equipment and
other services; conditions of related transactions
shall be prescribed in accordance with the general
commercial conditions and with the market prices

or competitive prices of non-related parties.

Procedures of Related Transaction Approval

According to the Company’s policy, the procedures
of related transactions made with parties in conflict
have to be verified and approved in conformance

with the company rule and regulation.

Policy or Trends on Related Transactions

The Company shall have its related transactions
with particular companies involved, as may be
necessary and only in accordance with the normal
course of business operations such as sale/
purchase of construction materials, constfruction
work, office building lease, etc., and such related
fransactions may exist in the future, according
fo normal course of business operafions of the
Company. The Company has its policy fo make
related transactions with parties in conflict by
comparing prices and quality of operations for the
maximum benefits of the Company, and at the most
proper price. The Company shall treat the parties
in conflict similarly to other entrepreneurs. The
Company shall prescribe the terms and conditions
of such related transactions in accordance with the
normal course of business operations; and prices
shall be compared with prices of the third parties;
moreover, it shall be considered according to the
proper procedures of approval and in accordance
with the Company’s Rules and Regulations in all

respects.
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Reports on the Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
on Financial Reports

232

The Board of Directors of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited has
carried out actions in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association on the presentation of
Balance Sheets and Income Statement ending December 31, 2015, which has already been audited by the
Auditor. These actions are in accordance with the prescribed period of twelve months cycle which was
within the period of time before the ending of the Company’s accounting period. The Company Board of
Directors hereby warrants that the financial reports expressed in the 2015 Annual Reports are true and
reasonable, having correct, complete, and adequate accounting data. The Company’s Board of Directors
has already reviewed and deemed the reports to be presentable and requested it should be submitted

expeditiously to the shareholders.

The Company’s Board of Directors is of the view that the Company has duly exercised proper
accounting procedures, kept constant practice, and has taken reasonable care in completing the Company’s
financial statements on time. The Balance Sheets ending December 31, 2015, Income Statement, Statements
of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, and Cash Flow Statements ending December 31, 2015, of both the
Company’s and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company’s Subsidiaries are reasonably correct

and completed in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The Company’s Board of Directors is confident that it has verified the Company’s important data
and information in all respects and has paid close aftention to all details regarding the financial reporting

of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Company:

aam |

(Mr. Pakpoom Srichamni)

Director and President

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Remuneration For Auditor

Office of the Auditor of the Company and subsidiaries,
EY
33" Floor, Lake Ratchada Building,
193/136-137,
New Ratchada Pisek Road,
Bangkok 10110.

Remuneration on the account audits of the Company and subsidiaries.
» Company’s auditing fee in 2015 is 1,750,000 Baht
» The Company’s subsidiaries’ auditing fee in 2015 is 515,000 Baht
» The affiliated companies of the subsidiaries’ auditing fee in 2015 is 280,000 Baht

Other expenses:

-None-

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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71,248,048 70,379,908 - -
519,961,053 142,550,043 519,961,053 142,550,043
280,319,099 463,765,894 262,935,252 442,718,428
12,648,581,762 15,926,768,589 12,400,486,466 15,725,868,151
81,730,440 101,255,880 79,024,310 101,255,880
152,644,860 140,838,521 149,477,653 137,917,807
261,467,674 280,641,951 139,325,508 161,697,664
8,775,290 4,979,677 - -
504,618,264 527,716,029 367,827,471 400,871,351
13,153,200,026 16,454,484,618 12,768,313,937 16,126,739,502
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druvasgtionu
VU OUYY
Nuaaneideu

uaniisy 1,525,106,540 vju

YaAuag 1 um
VueBNIMINSUAIISTIAN
YARUA?

vuandity 1,525,106,540 u

yaAvuay 1 um
drufiuyadiuandiy

flsdzay
adas5ud - d15auanu
ngvisne

falilddnass

o = ' va v
avAUsENoUBUYDNAIuIBNE T
AruvaEtiofuuasusEny
dwvesgiidnlaidud ldfisue

AUANTINUS ENE DY
saudruvadiiovu

SumtAunazdruvevEtovu

VU816

21

2558

1,525,106,540

2557

1,525,106,540

2558

1,525,106,540

(Mu’J?J Un)

2557

1,525,106,540

1,525,106,540

1,525,106,540

1,525,106,540

1,525,106,540

2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812
152,510,654 152,510,654 152,510,654 152,510,654
5,518,452,119 4,601,966,987 4,689,648,067 4,032,869,521
(1,364,499) (25,690,506) (959,999) (25,488,256)
9,291,760,626 8,350,949,487 8,463,361,074 7,782,054,271
216,389,618 198,286,501 = -
9,508,150,244 8,549,235,988 8,463,361,074 7,782,054,271
22,661,350,270 25,003,720,606 21,231,675,011 23,908,793,773
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(g : v
o e wrswensbers
NG 2558 2557 2558 2557

selé
saldannisnedasne 18,237,770,422 21,551,604,445 18,231,153,237 21,541,678,948
S’lﬂiﬁﬁ)’lﬂﬂ’liﬂl’lmta%ﬂ%ﬂ’ﬁ 92,881,827 100,360,795 - -
Nﬂﬁ’ﬂ‘iﬁ]’mﬂ’]iaﬁ’]ﬂﬂ

adandumsngdiienisanu

uyadgfsssu 15 447,645,994 - 334,142,268 -
578lg8u

panidesu 72,254,207 238,001,636 69,313,768 246,682,114

Wutuwasu 13.2 - - 4,199,550 4,199,550

3u 59,152,894 54,387,677 52,478,405 18,230,178
Tuseld 18,909,705,344 21,944,354,553 18,691,287,228 21,810,790,790
Algane
AUNUINUND A3 16,550,213,359 19,375,671,891 16,680,568,022 19,369,494,797
AUVLNISUIBUAZUINIS 49,225,362 59,324,552 = -
Aldanelun1susung 448,057,555 583,132,497 427,590,746 568,989,954
A 17,047,496,276 20,018,128,940 17,108,158,768 19,938,484,751
fAlsnaudiuuueinlsanluamu

Tuusdnsau

AlE918Mm1en151U

uazA a0 S8ule 1,862,209,068 1,926,225,613 1,583,128,460 1,872,306,039
dnuvvinlsanniduaayuly

USENTIN 13.2 17,405,991 11,135,762 - -
flsnouAldanenienisiu

uazA o0 S8ule 1,879,615,059 1,937,361,375 1,583,128,460 1,872,306,039
AN (13,460,020) (18,226,130) (11,033,369) (17,353,322)
finlsnouAldienBituld 1,866,155,039 1,919,135,245 1,572,095,091 1,854,952,717
Al Sule 23 (321,481,926) (389,108,925) (305,279,431) (370,929,717)
filsdmsud 1,544,673,113 1,530,026,320 1,266,815,660 1,484,023,000
nsuvatiusals
Awiifuvoediourosuiiny 1,526,522,246 1,520,507,821 1,266,815,660 1,484,023,000
Aruiiduveeidnldidonlu

§runaAIuANTBNUSEN Y 18,150,867 9,518,499

1,544,673,113 1,530,026,320

finlsdouduiugu
finlsdriiduvosforuras

USENY 1.00 1.00 0.83 0.97

wnemgUsznavsunsiiududiuniieessunsiduil
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(Mu’JFJ Un)

NULLUB) 2558 2557 2558 2557
ilsdmsud 1,544,673,113 1,530,026,320 1,266,815,660 1,484,023,000
finlsranuiaiasedu
sonsiiasligniuiinludiues

fnlsusenanulunonds
NATIAYUINNITUTZHIUNITAN

vanadinA1dnsUseiuse - (8,306,401) - (8,306,401)
wansenuvasnBduld 23 - 1,661,280 - 1,661,280
sonsiagligniufinludauvos

fnlsuSouanu

luneuds - gndanasituld - (6,645,121) - (6,645,121)
SN Tegnouiinludaues

fnlsusevanulunemnds
wanlsannisiayardiuawu

Tuvdnnsweidore 30,410,321 14,809,807 30,660,321 14,859,807
nansenuvaen1Bdule 23 (6,132,064) (2,971,961) (6,132,064) (2,971,961)
NAUSTILNISHARINIINNISUUAY

Arsunsuidutuas

ANUSEINA - (83,779) - -
SN TEgnouiinludaues

fnlsusevanu

luneovds - grsanadiduld 24,278,257 11,754,067 24,528,257 11,887,846
fnlsanuiaiadedudmsud 24,278,257 5,108,946 24,528,257 5,242,725
flsuanudaiasasindmsul 1,568,951,370 1,535,135,266 1,291,343,917 1,489,265,725
msuvsiuinlsiayuiaasason
dwiifuvosdievurosudiny 1,550,848,253 1,525,626,317 1,291,343,917 1,489,265,725

dwiduroviiduléidenlad
frunamIANIBNUS Nty

18,103,117

9,508,949

1,568,951,370

1,535,135,266
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(Wg: Un)

NSUANUAANIINAINTTUALIUIU
flsnound

Ten1svfunsenvsaaiilstounSiiutudn
$U (919) nAINSSUALTILY
flsannmsimihsadansundudiianisawu

ALAaNs1AN

fAlsannissminegunsal

YAAEFETSHUDN
a 9 - a &
A UNSWELNaNTAN WL

flsannisAuyurosusensau
anuteinlsanRuawuluudonsu

1 o a aoMia & a
flsandasuanasuindsliiiotuase

o auVia & a
(finls) aanuidelifaiuaseanns
wWasuulawyaa1iuaawudinsa

Ardias g daudeandyanTone
Ruas1819UsEIMAANYEN

o a &
msaawaﬂnmnuﬂjaﬂmamﬂwmu
dnsovualselgriiseozg1ivoawinenu

s1ldannisasmu - Rudunasu
Mniduasuluusensu

aandssu

Aldanamandy

flsannisaiiveuiaunisdsundag

v . o a

TuAunswouazniiduanfiuanu
v o a a &

Aunsnganiluanu (WuTY) anad
nutin1s@n
swldngaldldSondnsey
SuUseiunasunadsig
USERINNDAS AU AT
NUPANWIES UL
2IASYALWNDUTY
Aunswduyuioudu

Aundwd lduyuisudu

2558

1,866,155,039

2557

1,919,135,245

2558

1,572,095,091

2557

1,854,952,717

- (27,460,179) - .
494,260,548 427,291,646 399,039,713 424,910,943
(5130,139) (7766,174) (4,931,896) (4,544,559)
(447,645,994) - (334,142,268) -
- (782,002) - (698,223)

(17,405,991) (11,135,762) - -
(2,070,728) (1,761,293) (2,070,728) (1,761,293)
(2,139,200) 1,293,307 (2,139,200) 1,293,307
(3,307,282) (7,553,761) (3,307,283) (7,553,761)
377,411,004 26,466,985 377,411,004 26,466,985
13,362,339 14,234,967 13,115,846 13,805,229

- - (4,199,550) (4,199,550)
(72,254,207) (238,001,636) (69,313,768) (246,682,114)
13,460,020 18,226,130 11,033,369 17,353,322
2,214,695,409 2,112,187,473 1,952,590,330 2,073,343,003
(507,046,412) 168,642,846 (503,593,659) 144,659,492

1,067,329,536
(363,788,554)
(1,113,098,128)
406,305,556
30,615,514
11,738,220
20,964,777

winemgUsznausunsiiududiuvilesssunisiduil
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(1,452,117.792)
(218,872,707)
(68743,122)
(306,809,564)
43,012,952
66,521,570
(20,931,177)

1,037,194,098
(363,788,554)
(1,070,483,845)
415,765,556
58,468,930
12,170,906

(1,493,171,216)
(234,905,674)
(68,743,122)
(310,292,389)
55,713,353
(18,754,250)
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< o a a &
i Aua L duULWNUY (A@aN)

v

Wwilnsduasdmilau
funuissliiFondnss
RNusuanmtheaudygineas
v Auuisudu
vhaulivyuioudu
Suaaldlulufanssudniiveu
semoni
Mendiduld
Rudagnsldlulufenssusniivau

NTELANUARIINAINTTHAINU

a aa Y o a &
NUNINsUIAISAAANISEAUSEAULNLAY

NUANYUTIATIIAEAN
RuldBuszozdundusemdu
a &
(WWHTY) AnAd

SuldfSuudfenisifisadediu
(i) apa
Suandnedoiuamuluisnees
Suandrediniduamuluudingos
NUAASUIINNISAUUIBIUSENSIU

HouarUsulssndaumnFunsud
WONISANIU

NudasunnIsIe
AMNZUNSWELNONISAIN U

Hogunsal
Ruaasuannssminggunsal
Rutunasuantuasuluussnsu
aenibssy

NUAAgN5INAMNITTHAINY

(Mu’J?J Un)

2558 2557 2558 2557
296,081,594 761,192,035 346,912,559 816,633,422
(2,267,109,109) (836,030,352) (2,244,063,413) (815,458,904)
(1,493,500,803) (851,121721) (1,599,103,371) (844,014,245)
(176,488,196) 142,807,538 (176,475,893) 138,490,785
2,239,613 (10,355,402) (1,556,000) (7,338,300)
(1,871,060,983) (470,617,423) (2135,962,356) (563,838,045)
(12,591,880) (17,357,990) (11,033,369) (17,353,322)
(478,901,551) (452,301,703) (448,092,920) (429,666,109)
(2,362,554,414) (940,277116)  (2,595,088,645) (1,010,857,476)
- (15,108,010) - (15,108,010)
2,440,561,922 2,918,940,495 2,578,940,641 2,918,940,495
(100,503,528) 14,629,340 - -
1,246,449 1,087,714 (526,693,260) 72,500,000
- (11,253,625) - (12,726,516)
i - - (795,000,000)
- 698,223 - 698,223
(2,839,39) (790,000,000) (2,665,862) -
- 85,220,179 - -
(458,215,849) (883,545,651) (447,591,131) (873,751,928)
13,093,812 24,045,536 676,630,001 11,884,119
4,199,550 4,199,550 4,199,550 4,199,550
82,506,062 261,176,133 77,325,456 269,856,610
1,980,049,022 1,610,089,884 2,360,145,395 1,581,492,543
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(Mag: un)

NSELANUARINNINTTUTANINU

Frseiuimiamdyaiinte
wATAYYNTININNSINY

Nudunadng
Rudagnsldluufanssudanidu

NUAALAYSIENSIASULNIRLAGR
AAANANS

Rudauazsionsiioumniiudaaud
Nudauars1gn1siieumiiudadanst
Joyanseuaiduanaimiiuif
s10n157 Il uaa

o a & °
guUnsallin uInNnNIsindayan
I NNITIRY
Toudgusmianisidulviun
uSungos

SulpunauiadnszAnNadsa

2558 2557 2558 2557
(102,425,213) (114,468,385) (78,879,065) (114,468,385)
(610,037,114) (762,544,493) (610,037,114) (762,544,493)
(712,462,327) (877,012,878) (688,916,179) (877,012,878)
(1,094,967.719) (207,200,110) (923,859,429) (306,377,811)
2,133,798,622 2,340,998,732 1,945,097,121 2,251,474,932
1,038,830,903 2,133,798,622 1,021,237,692 1,945,097,121
74,408,916 76,533,150 74,408,916 76,533,150
- - 44,516,710 -
176,000,000 - 176,000,000 -

a ' = a &
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it i Auvaeil
AUAINIMU HAAINIINNTT P
o o " » s danlldAsi
NSouiu L 91NNsIa wasAwu  suAUszneu , . . 7
" dauifiu ) oA o p Aru Taifisuna \
7inonuay ) finlsazan YARIIUAWL NS Bu e Aueg
- yaruanioy s 2 = fioviu AIAN e
Fszuda i Tuvdnnsws  AduSuesn  vavdmves e e Hiiaviu
o 1 s YBNUSENY YPIUTEN
[DRERE! AUsend Wieviu .
gog
indssudr  dalilddnass
gomAuvAD M Uil
1 ungIAN 2557  1,525,106,540 2,097,055812 152,510,654 3,850,648780  (37,537.902) 83779 (37,454,123) 7587867663 188777552 7776,645.215
Rutluwadne
(Mungive 24) - - - (762,544,493) - - - (762,544,493) - (762,544,493)
finlsdmsul
- - - 1,520,507,821 - - - 1,520,507,821 9,518,499 1,530,026,320
flsvanuiaiass
Budmsul - - - (6,645,121) 11,847,396 (83779) 11,763,617 5,118,496 (9,550) 5,108,946
Alsvanuiaiads
sd MmUY - - - 1,513,862,700 11,847,396 (83,779) 11,763,617 1,525,626,317 9,508,949 1,535,135,266
goaANAAD o Tuil
31 6u1nAN 2557 _1,525,106,540 2,097.055812 152,510,654 _4,601,966,987 _ (25,690,506) - (25,690,506) 8,350,949,487 198,286,501 8,549,235,988
gonAnAD m Tuil
1 uns1AN 2558 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 4,601,966,987 (25,690,506) - (25,690,506) 8,350,949,487 198,286,501 8,549,235,988
Rutuwaing
(ManBLvig 24) - - - (610,037.114) - - - (610,037114) - (610,037114)
finlsdmsul
- - - 1,526,522,246 - - - 1,526,522,246 18,150,867 1,544,673,113
fnlsvanudaiase
Budmsul - - - - 24,326,007 - 24,326,007 24,326,007 (47750) 24,278,257
flsuayuiaass
mAMSUY - - - 1,526,522,246 24,326,007 - 24,326,007 1,550,848,253 18,103,117 1,568,951,370
goaANIAAD U Ju
31 §uanAn 2558 _1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654  5,518,452,119 1,364,499 - 1,364,499) 9,291,760,626 216,389,618 9,508,150,244

a ' = a &
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Yg: UM

1 uns1AY 2557 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 3,318,036,135 (37,376,102) (37,376,102) 7055,333,039
Ruiunaing (e 24) - - - (762,544,493) - - (762,544,493)
flsdmsul - - - 1,484,023,000 - - 1,484,023,000
flsanudaafadudmsud - - - (6,645121) 11,887,846 11,887,846 5242725
flsvayudaaSasmdmsud - - - 1,477377,879 11,887,846 11,887,846 1,489,265,725
HOAANLAAD U TUA

31 $uneu 2557 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 _4,032,869,521 25,488,256 25,488,256 7782,054.271

goaANLAAD U TUR

YOAANLUAD 0 TUN

1 uns1AN 2558 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 4,032,869,521 (25,488,256) (25,488,256) 7782,054,271
Nutuwaing (unoive 24) - - - (610,037.114) - - (610,037,114)
filsdmsud - - - 1,266,815,660 - - 1,266,815,660
fnlsmanudaaZadudmsud - - - - 24,528,257 24,528,257 24,528,257
fnlsvanudaiasasmdmsul - - - _1,266,815,660 24,528,257 24,528,257 1,291,343,917
HOAANLAAD U TUN

31 §unmu 2558 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 4,689,648,067 (959,999) (959,999) 8,463,361,074
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Vlll’lﬂWIG]Ui%ﬂﬂ’9‘U\1Uﬂ"l‘iNuLUuﬁ'Juﬂu\‘l"UE]\‘l\‘iUﬂ'IiL\‘iu‘u

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015



hU’]EJIhF!US:ﬂQU\lUﬂ’]SNUSOU
usEn Blu-Ing 1BUTITESY IOUA ABUANSABU $1NA (UKIBU) IIa:USBNE0Y
&MSUUAUAAIUR 31 SUNAL 2558

2.2

voyanalu

a o @ aa a [ o & o W v Qv M [ a o ¢ o o
U3 @lu-lne 18udilleSe woud moudesatu s1ia () (‘uSEny”) WuuSEnuvuiednuas
fgfidanululsemdlne  gsiaudnvosusensdenisivusnssumnnedss fegeuisanzidoures
USEMYRgAlavi 32/59-32/60 81A1SElU-Ng 11995 auugYNIn 21 wueAapuasmile e Tmun
NTINWHAIUAT

INcUrifun1s9ANIUNISINU
a v o &£ a ao o waa )
\‘I‘Uﬂ’]%’N‘uuﬁ]GWI’]‘U‘LLGI’]mJ']mig’]uﬂ’]ii’]i]\ﬂuv}’mﬂ’ﬁL\‘i%V]ﬂ’]MHGﬂMWiS%”]‘UUQJ}UGI’J“U’]%WUCU% WwW.A. 2547

< <

D

@ o

Taguanssianislusunisiiuaudadimualulsendnsuimuigsianisiiasiuil 28 fusnou 2554
panenuANUluwsEsTuaiAnIsULS w.A. 2543
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a a"l vo o & v o a v ' v a @ oA Y]
sunsiuillddaindulagliinamisiauauniuuaezldidawsdusgeduluulouionisdyd
U LUNISTRRINUNITIRIUS I

a a'(/lyu o & a a o & a a a o’ [ y
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g99”) losnaunadaasiululszmdlng dusaluil

2558 2557
Souay fosaz
USUM 109 7 815 31im Ai191A15diinau 80.90 80.90
USEN Unuiy 1598 1den 3116 Tusnissudnienans 80.90 80.90
(ﬁaijuﬁw’wuﬂ@y USHM 189 7 015 311R)
USEn Aadszansiil 911a WAL AIMNZUNSWE 80.90 80.90
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UHAUGINATY U JUAUSIUSLELLIAISIENL

6.  $19N1SSSNNUNINISTINGIVOINU

Tusewingl  uSEmyuazuSIndesiistonsssianddyiuyarauiofansifieadesiu  s19n1555i9

gunarnduluanusimeudyyn Fudsuidsdaduyananisusn lasdunsaaguladed
(Mg: a1uun)

JUNISNUSU JUNITNLaWIZAINIS
2558 2557 2558 2557
s18n1555N 9 ULSENday
(HRA9ININNIUNITIIUSINLAT)
seldannisneddia - - 17 20
aondesu - - 3 2
Andaioeinsuargunsainisieadn - - 232 -
ALYI98 - - 14 14
Fmheiadesinsuargunsainisreadna - - 708 -
sren1sgsiatuusEvniitigadoetu
s1aldannisneasna 2,030 1,381 2,030 1,381
sr8ldanfiusneilasenis 100 100 100 100

HUNUNUNDAS I 52 37 52 37
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n
fd
c
v | a o a v 1 a a a v ) o ) a —
YOAANANTEUINUIINYUATUSUNYDYUAZAINITNIALIVONAU o TUN 31 SUAu 2558 way 2557 i £
a o ]
SIUALLDEAEINLY =]
1 o #
(vithe: Wuum) wn
o e onslwaneins
o
2558 2557 2558 2557 g
4 o C
Aunswe T
anuiin1sAn - Aenisifigadoeiy (Muneie 9)
USENgoy - - 29,140 29,664
NNSSIEN 10,225 10,225 13756 13756
Ustnifleadesiu Finssunissaufiv) 101,585 276,071 100,053 276,067
574 111,810 286,296 142,949 319,487
vin: Aiflonilasdevany (29,203) (29,203) (38774) (38774)
?j‘VI% 82,607 257,093 104,175 280,713
sreldnsliléisandnsy
USEngoy - - 40,543 24,836
Ustniifedesiy @inssunissauiiv) 36,900 302,601 36,900 302,601
594 36,900 302,601 77443 327,437
RullifSuudianisifordoetu
USEngoy - - 527193 500
Uitnifiatestiu @inssunnssaniiv) 2,495 374 - -
99U 2,495 3,741 527193 500
wiilau
wiinasan - Aenisiieatoutu (Vneig 17)
USENgng - - 22,617 16
Wstnifioatesiu finssunnssaniv) 7299 9,192 7299 9,192
U 7299 9,192 29,916 9,208
Rusuanunihaudygyinaade
USenelog - - 230,802 -
SR ot (finssunssani) 180,851 437551 180,851 437551
574 180,851 437,551 411,653 437,551
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Yyva 1

Tusenined 2558 [Sulvdduunfanisifiedasiuiinisindsulmgesealuil

U

(V8: Wuun)

a a

Ruldjduunfianisiiisadouiu

ldyaraeasya Flu-lng maned  Tnssunissourdu 3,74 - (1,246) 2,495

(V8: Wuun)

Ruldjduudfanisiiigadaeiu

USW yiaa wSewwed e USHngog 500 393 - 893
USHM Ydeen wasidwa 91 USENg0Y - 713,300 (187,000) 526,300
500 713,693 (187,000) 527,193

Rulfifunndaunanaamssn Blu-Ine mMaes
USHm 199 @ 91§ 9 (109 A 919) lalidudduuniifyaraoiaisge Flulne nanes @lulne
maed) Wuswau 19 dwum Hiddasieenifoaidesar 8 doll Awmeenifouvy Flat rate

aaoangdyn1dug lasdlulng v1es svdevioutrszilududnuau 014 v wisuaenide
@ a a & A Y
WusieiGousin 134 vasuaaussouiugguy 2553

RulAfBuInuSEn danau 1sasdarsa 1A

luseningd 2558 vSEmliRuddundusom Jdeen woidwd e (Idmon) s1uaw 713 Awum B
fionsmenidefosas 0.5 aol lasidmuadrseAwiionron vsEnsmaindaliisandrseAudulidou

meluszoenadudy  duluSudaesionsiuliidudeanaidudumswg ivguisulusundaeguenis
N

Janon TaguseasdnaziniudiudenanluTodunsuaiiolflunisdniiugsin unsme 16)

AINDUINUNSSUNISIA=WUSHIS

TuseninalAugniui 31 Sunan 2558 UsInyuaruSindesialdinenalseloviszusduroenssuns

wazgusnsiduduiuty 58 a1uum (2557: 64 a1uum) (WUn1stuewizianis: 55 auum 2557:
62 A1uun)
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7.

Nuamnazs19nIsSINsUININUaR
(M8: WUUmN)

NUAALAZINUNINSUIAS 838,831 977,108 821,238 959,897
NIPAIU - 656,691 - 485,200
dauanidu 200,000 500,000 200,000 500,000
S 1,038,831 2,133,799 1,021,238 1,945,097

v 1

goamvinvasiheawmudunheawmulunawuiaasdrsuiliflianiwaseags

NUaINUBIAS)
(Wiag: WUUIN)

NulINsuIAIS 118,584 696,059 118,584 696,059
RuamlundnniwdiiodFeudns
BINYAATYEISTTH
Mli’;ﬁlﬂ\mu 604,237 672,234 465,859 672,234
Wusyassuasuidszmalng 125,688 96,311 125,688 96,311
as1A1swiTieanlasdnTunsidu - 205,704 - 205,704
Bas1ANSUBNALINTL 158,537 562,469 158,537 562,469
888,462 1,536,718 750,084 1,536,718
Ruawlundnndwsidavsfeuaas
AINYAAYHTTTH
W LN 18,800 1,198,761 18,800 1,198,761
‘J’JJJL?‘Iuﬂ\‘Wf]u‘*BL’JﬂS’I’J 1,025,846 3,431,538 887,468 3,431,538

RuawulumbhsamurssuSinsuazuSivgss 31wty 19 Awum (wunstuanizianis: 19 41u
um) YayaAdioyadgfsssulusedudud 1 FadunislidoyasianaueTeusvecdunswiuioniau
sgnuidsafilunaiafiianiwades

wazduamulunineawuudinuaruingos wavas1ansuiivasiuiuiy 888 duum (sun1sidu
lawnefians: 750 duum) dayasidioyadgfsssdluseduiud 2 Fudunsldteyaduiianunsn
dunaldvosdunswsuionian  lidesdudeyanivaswdonedon  yag@sssuveamineacmud
nandwnilagldsiayasdunsndqnsvomineamu  uazyaAgdsssuvesasatsnAwInlaeld
SasmansumnuiivsendlaganANaATAESIANTT InevSonatadu
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9.  anninsA

(V8: Wuumn)

2558 2557 2558 2557
anuiinasdn - Aanasit laifgadoetu
onguiiasdetunTufiteivuadse
fhalsifaivuadnse 1,429,730 1,183,831 1,428,461 1,183,516
AN
Tiifu 4 dou 491,601 989,963 490,802 988,830
5 - 12 1@9u 510,936 234,588 510,416 234,523
1NN 12 1Heu 611,325 129,678 575,838 94,517
ety 3,043,592 2,538,060 3,005,517 2,501,386
vin: Anfleviiaedeazdny (46,880) (46,880) (46,880) (46,880)
SgNUTNSAN - Aennsii lifieadoety, qvs 2,996,712 2,491,180 2,958,637 2,454,506
anuiinisdn - fensifisadestu (Munewme 6)
oemiiasAnatiuanTuiteivuadise
felsifieinvuadnsy 82,477 218,601 82,475 218,987
A5y
Taifiu 4 1dou - - - 698
5 - 12 \fou - - 1,154 1,819
NN 12 16au 29,333 67,695 59,320 97,983
et 111,810 286,296 142,949 319,487
vin: ;s'rn,t‘jauﬁmﬁqum (29,203) (29,203) (38,774) (38,774)
SgNUTNISAN - Aannsiifeadesdy, and 82,607 257,093 104,175 280,713
SGNUTNSAT - ans 3079319 2748273 3062812 2735219

vsnaiinisleuansisonsodlunissuiiuarauaiudyginedsaunlasinisainginsnlidusuias
Feusensansadnosuwiuannisleudnddunaniainsuiaisldemund o Juit 31 swinan 2558
fvonnundovosgnuiinisdrdmsulasinisreadieilouansifondosdunarnduimuuiu 326 du
UM (2557: 184 A1uu1n)

10.  NulAn8us=e:dunnuséndu
a v ya > I a v A a o 1 | < & a v yva o Y] %’ &
RulddBuszezduunusdnduvosuidvdesuieuiiodululidiuannisvidygrsuieangnuilen
USIviansum Fuasuiivuadseueuszeznainseyludygilesiidnsinenidesosas 9.00 - 15.00
st (2557: Seway 775 - 12.00 sat)
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1. dunSwenyuideudu
V]u'lﬂ WuU']Vl

mEduldvin w fene 133,127 58,066 118,974 57,285
3u 228,264 196,853 114,592 128,453
samAunswivyuioudu 361,391 254,919 233,566 185,738

12.  RuanuluusSBnges
Ruamuluvsingesauinaaveg lusunisSuawizianis sieavidoadeanluil

(V8: Wuumn)

VSN 1% 7 915 e 500 500 80.90 80.90 440,090 440,090
U3 YA wiowwel e 800 800 99.99 99.99 800,000 800,000
USHWM ddaou [wasidiwd 9116 2,211 2,21 100.00 100.00 12,726 12,726

s 1,252,816 1,252,816

13.  Ruavnuluusensou

13.1 $19az199AVOIUSENSIU

(ig: Wium)

U3t e Alwlng  Aedussuuaed
BudidleSe e LAYSEUUADANS ‘lng 35 35 2,800 2,800 132791 119,584
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(e WuUm)

Ut Blae Bl Aedasyuy
Ty Buddlesy  dwdaiay
ol S¥UURRAS Ing 35 35 2800 2,800 = - 2800 2800

13.2 dounuirils/vaanunazuduwasu

Tusewingd vsnusudarutsinls/ananuanmisamulusdnsidlusunsitusuuazsudidu Juna
FuanusEmsinadenanlusunisiiuawizianis duil

(Mg: Wuun)

Uswn aia dlwlne 1Budifles 10 17,406 11,136 4,200 4,200

13.3 Voyanun1siiuvedusensauniians:dAny

A7Us18N153 4N NNIT R

(I8 A1UUIN)

Aunswduyuisu 894 667
Aunswe Lo 19 20
Mﬁﬁuwguﬁyu (515) (325)
vinaulinyudou (19) (20)
Aunswg - gns 379 342
dadmluannu (Sovagy) 35 35
yar1audyFvavduldidevasionisluudsnsau 55 120

agusranisinlsuenudaiase
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<
=

14.

15.

(UI8: ATUUIN)

(2]
)
c
<5}
=
<5}
e
<
)
75}
<
(&)
c
<
=
L

s1eld 715
fnls 32
flsvanudaasasiu 32

NuavnUs:g:8199U

Ruawulundnning
Liav1e

(Mihg: Wuun)

newusWe AT UNS W

UNNDN - - 10,000 9,500 10,000 9,750 - - -
Amdnimuan
nsiasuulag
yaAduaaulumdn
ns$wdliouns (500) (250) - -
9,500 9,750 - -
Suawuiiily
uStv e il
ADUINSARN 31116 19.0 19.0 7611 76M1 761 7611
USM Aunswddaiman
Iny $1im 0.2 0.2 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
21U ) 25,094 25,694 25,642 25,642
34,305 34,305 34,253 34,253
wn: anlenisdosAves
Suadu (33,304) (33,253) (33,253) (33,253)
1,001 1,052 1,000 1,000
Ruawusyere1idu - gnb 10,501 10,802 1,000 1,000

odunisunSweiWonsaunu

yameuydaul

2,541,600

541,462

3,083,062

1,809,360

541,462 2,350,822

(Mg Wuumn)

HouarusulgsodamnIunswsiionis
AU

2,839

2,839

790,000

- 790,000
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(Mg Wuumn)

Sulewfiduiedszannead 176,000 - 176,000 -
ERUDSH - - - (57.760) - (57,760)
waflsannnsisianduyasgdisssu 369,426 78,220 447646 - - -
gammuﬁ'ﬁy%ﬂawﬂ 3,089,865 619,682 3,709,547 2,541,600 541,462 3,083,062
o lun1suszifiusian FBssuwisu FBANMTUN FBwSsuwisy  FERISAUN

SIANAA nsela S1ANBAA nseld

(Market (Income (Market (Income
Approach) Approach) Approach) Approach)

(V8: Wuun)

yaRe Uy TeuT 1,751,600 1,751,600
Fouarusulgsedamndumsngiionsasmu 2,666 -
suloufiduiednseAneadne 176,000 -
uaflsannisdisianduyadgisssu 334,142 -
yaAeuUyTlaed 2,264,408 1,751,600
tneu lun1susziiusnan Bseuiney WTsuinieu
FIA6GA16 TIAGATG
(Market Approach) (Market Approach)

Tusewined 2558 usimy ldsulouRauyadn 176 d1uum angnuiisenil ednedsednoadng
agnlsfionn Adudanandeglunmnuiudoneadrimimaisuun  Adlasenisdananegludunou
drs1vuazeanuu wadalifinsdrseedanFunsng Fediliamnsasey  wuanuAufidanuld dae
UMsIasUSEnYAaindesdinanaslineliiianaidsvnsegniansyddydeuseng

(9

dodundigrunani lunsusailiugaagdisssu agUladed

o v o v ' a a &
dnsnisldiun (fosas) 85 - 95 YAAEYBASTTHIN N
9ns1ARAR (Souay) 12 YAAEEETTHAGAN
L 1 1 1 A’ ﬂl 1 1 = 1 a QI J’
FASIANTIADNUN (UINEDANSNINASADIADY) 494 - 570 YAAYBASTTHIN NI
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<
=

(9

houiayaaceayargisssulusedudun 2 FadunislddeyaduiaunsodunaldvasBunswliinee

U U

WWudoyantmsansoniedou

U

p1asya bR Taganmsyangisssuluszauduin 3 Fadunisiddoyain liaunsadanals wu Joya

q U

NYINUNTEUE Nﬂuaummmmmiﬂismmﬁuu
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c
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=
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75}
<
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c
<
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16. NAU 91AMsIazaunsl

(Wihe: Wuun)

SR

1 Uns1AN 2557 711,161 402,764 55,573 3,887,403 337136 428,589 79,424 5,902,050
Fouiu - 875 7 294990 24142 26567 613499 960,080
$rmine - (12,027) - (243700) (11,882) (14,448) - (282058)
Tou - - 54,941 324784 - - (379725) -
31 8unAN 2557 711,161 391,612 110,521 4,263,476 349,396 440,708 313,198 6,580,072
Andousraazan

1 unsmAu 2557 - 159,013 48,355 2,535,609 232,856 276,555 - 3,252,388
Aidons1A - 12,641 996 336,641 39,641 37373 - 427292
g - (3,089) - (237402) (11,143) (14,144) - (265778)
31 sWAN 2557 - 168,565 49,351 2,634,848 261,354 299,784 - 3,413,902
yaAgnseaulnyd

31 §unAN 2557 711,161 223,047 61,170 1,628,628 88,042 140,924 313,198 3,166,170
Andousradm$ud

2557 (402 & sauagludunu duiivdesiuoglualiinelumsuivs) 427292

UsBn Blu-Tng 15UF1083 I0US ADUARSATU 1A (UMBU) I
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(Wihe: WuuIn)

SR

1 uns1AN 2558 711,161 391,612 110,521 4,263,476 349,396 440,708 313,198 6,580,072
Touiin - - 945 240,396 47,404 22,514 221,366 532,625
$rmine - (165) - (M1314)  (52.946) (6,819) - (171,244)
Tou - 7,469 (3382) 78,033 3,351 (8316) (77,155) =
31 funaAn 2558 711,161 398,916 108,084 4,470,591 347205 448,087 457,409 6,941,453
Andousraazan

1 uns1AN 2558 - 168,565 49,351 2,634,848 261,354 299,784 - 3,413,902
Andousan - 10,162 6,058 401,581 38,388 38,072 - 494,261
$rmine - (165) - (104135) (52,190) (6,790) - (163,280)
31 funAn 2558 - 178,562 55,409 2,932,294 247552 331,066 - 3,744,883
yargnsa

31 funaAn 2558 711,161 220,354 52,675 1,538,297 99,653 117,021 457,409 3,196,570
Andousradmdud

2558 (462 dwum swegludunu dwiiviosimogludidinglumsuims) 494,261

(ihe: Wuun)

SR

1 uns1AN 2557 711,161 254,439 55,573 3,887,403 296,369 423127 79,424 5,707,496
Toriin - 875 7 294,990 20,948 26,567 606,898 950,285
g - - - (243701) (10,660) (14,448) - (268,809
Tou - - 54,941 324,784 - - (379,725) =
31 8uAN 2557 711,161 255,314 110,521 4,263,476 306,657 435,246 306,597 6,388,972
Andousranazan

1 uns1AN 2557 - 156,145 48,355 2,535,609 198,124 271,414 - 3,209,647
Andousian - 12,420 996 336,641 37,804 37,050 - 424,91
ving - - - (237.402) (9,923) (14,144) - (261,469)
31 surAu 2557 - 168,565 49,351 2,634,848 226,005 294,320 - 3,373,089
yargnsa

31 §unAu 2557 711,161 86,749 61,170 1,628,628 80,652 140,926 306,597 3,015,883
Andousradmdud

2557 (401 dwum sawogludunu duivdosuegludldirslunsuims) 424,911
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<
=

(7]
e
c
[<b]
(e Wuum) =
[<b]
e
e
e
(V5]
<
(& ]
o
1MUY
° c
1 unNs1AN 2558 711,161 255,314 110,521 4,263,476 306,657 435,246 306,597 6,388,972 L
%@Lﬁ.ll - - 945 240,396 30,178 22,514 227967 522,000
e - (165) - (M314)  (33,902) (6,819) - (152,200)
Fhegliuiusdndes
(AADBNINNNUNT
Wusuua)
(VnBve 6) - (8,451) - (118161) (5144)  (42320)  (57.596) (1,231,672)
Tou - 7469 (3,382) 78,033 3,351 (8,316) (77.155) -
31 suAN 2558 711,161 254,167 108,084 3,352,430 301,140 400,305 399,813 5,527,100
Andousiaazan
1 4NsIAN 2558 - 168,565 49,351 2,634,848 226,005 294,320 - 3,373,089
ﬁi’]LéEJJJS’lﬂ’l - 10,162 6,058 312,835 35,785 34,199 - 399,039
g - (165) - (104,135) (33,184) (6790) - (144,274)
SmngldunuSenges
(fRDDNIINNUNIST
RUSIUUAT)
(VNgvie) 6) - (6.,166) - (496,840 (1,519)  (18,858) - (523383)
31 §uAN 2558 - 172,396 55,409 2,346,708 227,087 302,871 - 3,104,471
yargnseuvyd
31 §uAN 2558 711,161 81,771 52,675 1,005,722 74,053 97,434 399,813 2,422,629

Andausimdmsud

2558 (369 Auum sameglludunu a’auﬁmﬁaﬂmagﬂuﬁiﬂ%ﬁhﬂumsﬁmi) 399,039

luseningd 2558 usEnslddmmneiniesins wargunsaifoasdliuduionsesiamie sandudtuu
Su 708 d1uum wisuiuleunseuiAuau A n1anisiiuresdunswdaenaniiiuniusan 45
druvm Wuduisnees Feudemdosdandnldinediseiiuadunswg ansan msevilauaudyngn
WanensiSuliuiussneas vty

o fufl 31 $unau 2558 UsEmuaruTEnsesioasuargUnsiduuwiviedaAdousiamuaud
wadildauey  yadeusydtourinandousiadzauvesdunsuddunanidnnuiulssana 1729
AU (2557: 1,841 A1UU) (NUNSIRUAWIAINTS: 1,693 a1uun 2557: 1,805 A1UUMN)

o Uit 31 funeu 2558 uSEnanarustnsesigunsoilazanuwiuzadldunnielddynyvTeouay
Ayqrmienisiiu lesilyaagnseudyfidusiuiulszunm 254 duun (2557: 291 41uum) (NU
N15NWawIEA9N1S: 193 a1UUn 2557: 291 a1uun)
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17.

18.

iFmdinisamazIintisu

(U8 WUUIN)

LIIUHUNISAN - NANISANBITBNTY

(MuBLG 6) 7,299 9,192 29,916 9,208
Buiinisén - Aanisi ldifeadoiv 3,932,440 3,597,622 3,914,191 3,551,966
AYINEANIeY 83,612 120,456 66,214 102,234
s miinsduazimiau 4,023,351 3,727,270 4,010,321 3,663,408

lntndyyIBTGonazanyrysINNISiU

(M8 WUUIN)

EuilenudyayinTouasdoynaiginistu 172,635 202,490 151,083 202,490
wn: eenibesnesedasving (9,752) (11,590) (9,170) (11,590)
U 162,883 190,900 141,913 190,900
vin: druidvimuadnszansluniied (81153)  (89,644)  (62,889)  (89,644)
Wi dn g Touasduavinisitu -

ansandiitimuadnsenieluniid 81,730 101,256 79,024 101,256

ustnsuaruIsneosldinduninTouasdymitinisiSutuuiinaataiowgunsaiuazeuwue
14 lunssnfiveueasiianislasiidmuanisdrseansndusiodion  angrasdygiiiszoznailasiode
Uszuu 4 U

USHNIUATUTEN siaslﬁmsw”nﬁuﬁ%ﬁméﬂwi'n,‘*fi'ﬁTurirmmﬁfyfuﬂL%ﬂ%’va uATAYITINISIN UGN

(M8 A1UUn)

NATINVDNINUIUNUTUANADIIN N AUR LAY QYT 87 86 173
manL‘GEJm’mé’fyfy’lLﬂ'ﬁ%/lﬂhmsL?iusamsrff@ﬁ’fy% (6) (4) (10)
1aA1U90UI0N UM UIUATNA DI 1TIN AUA T ATYy 19 81 82 163
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19.

(M8: AUUN)

NASINVONTIIVNUTUAN G NIV AUB N AL 96 106 202
manLﬁiJmmé’fcyfyﬂLsffﬁa/m'ﬂn'ﬁL'\“nusan'lsrﬁfmﬁ’fy%’ (6) (5) (11)
yaAUa3Uur0v I uutulud1ndaN I onaduaudy gy 90 101 191

(W28: AUUN)

NASINYDNTIIUNUTUAN G DIV AUE N YL 68 83 151
mmLﬁiJm'mﬁfy,gy'lL*r'f'l%a/m'hn’lsL?msamséf@ﬁ’fy% (5) (4) (9)
1aA1U990Ur09 I UIMSUI LA NG BN AUA N ATy y 197 63 79 142

(M28: AUUN)

NASINYONTIIUNUIUAN GBIV AU Y17 96 106 202
manLﬁﬂm'mé’ffyfg'lL%ﬂ%a/l,‘iﬂ'lmsL?‘iusan'lsrﬁfmﬁ'fg% (6) (5) (11)
1aA1U990Ur0uIUWIMSUT LA NG N1 YIN AUA N ATy Y17 90 101 191

Rufguna:neniUeng
Juddudenarnfududinanyananiouenvosudinseslusudrdundiiufiasuinruadisyauie
nwow lasfidaseonidodonar 1.5 6ol
usdnsgesldanituamivdenssudnievavatenasyaiionevosuisneos FuliyadaudyFivingu
289 awum Wundndseiunisgdudunann
Lﬁmmnu%ﬁmiadlsimmsﬂﬂﬁﬂ’amuﬁcycyﬁLﬁuﬁuaeﬁmucy'lﬂszﬁﬂwuauﬂaum']ﬁlﬁ deiuluwdou
weEMAN 2555 AadeidddiidwinuudeduaigiiunisSansndinuesdunanaiievienaanaia
waztiduudsenll Jagtiuaglusenininisdnfiunisveaiwineuteduai

Tusening Sudfuuazaonifodinsfinsiadenlwdedeluil

(Mg WUUN)

RudBunazaonifodieing 70,380 868 - 71,248
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20. disavwaus:losus:g=g19vouwlniu
$runkudnsenalseloriisrezgvsaniinaudadudurasewineuiisoonaneunazidus1eia
msufviuasuimuasteviiaandladail

(Vithe): Wuun)

Arsovnalselyviisearg11upawiingIy

Gud 113,735 101,030 27104 24,605 140,839 125,635
dwiisulusuinlsvanu:
funuusnislutiaqgiu 7184 7051 924 1,496 8108 8547
GUunUaDN e 4,965 4,685 289 1,003 5,254 5,688

dwiisulusuinlsvanuibaiasa:

VIANUINNITUTEHIUNISATUAN
AdleANdnsUsEiude
Andifinannswasuulasdoduud

sulszrnsAdas - 529 - - - 529
dnfiiaannswasuasdoduus
NNNIS N - (3,578) - - - (3,578)
Aruiiinnnisusudsenn
Uszaunisal - 6,588 - - - 6588
naUselgifianglussningd (1,556)  (7.337) - - (1,556) (7,337)
d1sounauselovisrazanivaawineiu
Uangd 124,328 113,735 28,317 27104 152,645 140,839
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(Ve Wuun)

Arsovuadselyviiseare11uaawiingIy

Gt 111255 98928 26663 24216 137918 123144
dauﬁ%’uigﬂluwﬁﬂwmvgu:
funuusnislutiagiu 7022 6771 943 1461 7965 8232
dunuaonids 4858 4,587 293 986 5151 5573

'
' =~

Awisug lusuinlsvanudaase:
YIANUIINNNTUTEIIUNITENAN

AdlnANdnsUsEiude
diiiaannswasundasdoauus
sulszrnsAdns - 529 - - - 529
dniiiaanmsWasundasdoduus
NINITINU - (3,578) - - - (3,578)
Aruiiinannisusulsennuseaunisel - 6,588 - - - 6,588
uaUsvlggainenelusenined (1,556) (7,337) - - (1,556) (7.337)
d1sounalseleviszazanivaawiineu
Uaret 121,579 111,255 27899 26,663 149,478 137918

[

Aldaaifsaiuualselonissaravowwiineusiueg lusuriilsinanuuanaldevil

(e Wuun)

funuusnislutiagiu 8,108 8,547 7,965 8,232
dunuasnide 5,254 5,688 5,151 5,573
saualdIeisuflusudlsvanu

Fe5uflualddnslunisuing 13,362 14,235 13,116 13,805

USnanazuSEngosa1andzdngdnsenalselovisyozantvaawiineunigly 1 Udendn Wuduau
Usgunnl 6 41UV (NUNSIRUaNIZAaNIS: 314U 6 A1UUN)

o Sufl 31 A 2558 sreziianedgoituinlunsingdnsualseloviisrarantveanineiuey
USENYLarusEngasUssunn 17 U (sunisiuanizianis: 17 ¥)
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Y o

dundgundrdglunisssununiseuvdnademdasisyiude w Sulssifivagdldev

9nS1AGAG 4.4 4.4
Sasnstududouluowaa (ﬁuﬁuﬁa\imq) 3.0-75 3.0-75
Fosnsasuutadlustuundnau 2.0 - 18.0 2.0 -18.0

o

wansynuvsunisilasunlavdundgiunddyseyaaitagiureeniseyniunalsylaviszore11vos

1
v

wilnaw o Juid 31 Sunau 2558 aguladeil

(MUE: ANUun)

SRS 1ARAR (14) 17 (14) 16
SasnsTududon 17 (15) 17 (14)

21.  d1soununnKuUIg
neldundyalBveanins 116 uianwses1vdygfuSenuvnyuinda w.a. 2535 uSenudevdndssinls
ansuseitdnmililiduudrsodiiioaninfosay 5 veuinlsaniuseintindrosonmanuazansn
11 (f1) auninudrsevieriidnulitosninfesar 10 vewuaanaiion drsoseunguuedanann
Tdamnsatlyaeduiunals lutlagiuusinglddnassdrsovmungmunaliasudiuugn

22.  AlGdrenuanum:
s18n15AIFINsuUNELANYME UsenauaiesienisAldinenddudessly

=D,

(UI8: WUUMN)

LTmLﬁauLLaw'nLsta\iwﬁnmuLLas@nﬁ'\ﬁarsﬁ'n 3,448,569 3,803,324 3,439,998 3,795,130

Adousan 494,261 427292 399,039 424,911
ANTIIIETUAYYITIANTUITY 990,137 789,670 990,137 789,670
ANTARNDASINUATAIT NESULNIYIN 10,463,312 13,639,527 10,604,092 13,629,726
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<
=

23. minula
Al Bitulddmusuddudatuil 31 Sunau 2558 uay 2557 aguldeeil

(U8 WUUIN)

(2]
]
c
[<b)
=
[<b)
=]
<
et
75}
<
(&)
c
<
=
L

mBkulddaqiu:
mtuldidypradmsud 318,157 394,250 305,152 372,381
mBuldsenisdadnd:
8duldsenisdavyInnisifianauansig

%ﬂsnmaamsné’mwmswaLl,mnr;'n\*i%ﬂ'i'n 3,325 (5,141) 127 (1,451)
AldirenEduldinaavaglusurinlsvayu 321,482 389109 305279 370,930

JwunBduldfifedosivdlsenavlusuinlsranudaiadednsutaugaiui 31 Sunau 2558
waz 2557 dguladeil
(U8: WUUIN)

mdduldsensdadnidniiodoiunamanu

NN1sUsEUIUNISNNUANANaA1dasUseiusie - (1,661) - (1,661)
mduldsensdaduiifeadoutusils

nnmsiayaatuaslundnnswsidoune 6,132 2972 6,132 2972

$18N15NSENULDATIWINRUTEINA T8 Skuldiunaguuositlsneiydfudasin 8 I4dmsy
YAudatui 31 SunAn 2558 waz 2557 @mnsoudaalacil

(M8 WUUIN)

fnlsmedgineunstulaidyaaa 1,866,155  1,919135 1,572,095 1,854,953
dasn8uldifyana 20% 20% 20% 20%
Alsmetndneundituldifynraqusnsind 373231 383827 314419 370991

MayunnBngniduselapiludldagiu

o

ua lipesusiudunswdndituldsadaiod (23,581) - 2 -

1A

v 2 @

anunnBdmsulvosuisngesi i ldcusindu

Aunswdndduldsonisdndid 3780 4,652 - -
tuindunswsnBiduldsensdadniisdlisudvodnou  (27824) - - -
Usudgamiidun@ituldsonsaatniainnislou

AunswduardyidmenmsSuliudusondes - - (4,994) -
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(Mg WUUN)

] ! ! aM [
WNANIENUNINATBUDN El\lg]ll,l,ﬂzﬂ’]sl‘%‘ﬂ'l EWI\IJJGB Wu

srelduazAldineniens (4,124) 630 (4,146) (61)
AnldinenBituldinanseglusuinlsuanu 321,482 389109 305279 370,930

dutsznavrovdunsndnBiluldsenisdatnluasuidunBituldsenisdatod o fuid 31 funau
2558 uay 2557 Usznaudissignisaeasluil

(U8 WUUIN)

Y

Aundwanisdulasanisdady®

1A

Aflonsdesrvoaiiuaau 480 480 480 480
éﬁsaqwam’lmnumaﬂﬂwn’ls 103,992 28,510 103,992 28,510
dsounaUsyloviiseuranveawiineu 30,529 26,506 29,895 25,922
NAYIAYUIINNITUTENIUNITOTURAAN

pdlaAAnsUsEiusy - 1,661 - 1,661
wavanun1an1Bnealalald 27824 - - -
3u 9 1,000 - 1,000 -
574 163,825 57157 135,367 56,573
niaun1Bduldsonisdadnyd
uvacshzgassa“ma\‘laﬁ\‘im%uw%’wsﬁﬁ‘amsamu 386,763 296,749 244,049 177221
fnlsiigalifatuannsidsuyadSuawu 421 3,565 421 3,565
HANSENUANNNISARALAaNs 1A T Tuas

nanSvavdundwanielddoyguginisidu 38,109 35,974 30,223 35,974
3u - 1,511 - 1,511
574 425,293 337,799 274,693 218,271
sumilaundiuldsonsdado? - ans 261,468 280,642 139,326 161,698

u U 31 funan 2558 vsEngesivianunienBasalilald squau 217 dwuan (2557: 474
Auun) Ausengesldldvuindunswdniduldsenisdavnd
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24,

25.

26.

27.

Nuduwa

Nutluwalsyinl 2556 fiseuantoyior

dlotuit 18 wwisu 2557 763 0.50 BB 2557
samNutuwadned 2557 763
Nutlunalszit 2557 fiseqguantoytoru

dlofuit 22 wwnou 2558 610 040  wQunIAN 2558
saNudunadnet 2558 610

dryrywus:nonunoasy

o Juit 31 Sunau 2558 UltmeuazuIEndosiiduyunisieaseiiiatulsulsedadinlsudenanu
fisudauatiagtiudmsudygrausenivdeadradudulseuna 80263 duuwm (2557: 64,090
A1UUTM) (NUNSIuanIianIs: 80,197 41uUan 2557: 64,090 41uun) wariisnuauluiusened
ansisunsevandinivdnsununeastaiudiuaulssunn 7592 auum (2557: 7,493 A1uuin)
(NUNISNULaWIEAINIS: 7,526 a1UUM 2557: 7,493 a1UU)

VayanumsRuIMUNAEIUNIU
Yoyadrunuduiinnuiinaueiieaadostusioaunglurosisnuuasuidnges  nssunsgianis
Fadugfinsuedadilaguaadunisdniivenldsunardaeunusgvainanaiioldlunsdaaulslu
Msdnassnswensivitudnanunazseiiunanisaniivaurnsdiuau
UsnunaruSindasaiuisnisludineundn Ae nsSumunnedse nskinonasdndneiunig
Tuaziadavinsuarzgunsainoasny uagniswautedaniundwe uazdniusshadnilnluduay
ngiiaansnglulsema loenluseningd 2558 uaz 2557 UisnyuazuIsmeeslifiionssud
\uansedndnludannunislfignonaisdrtineu nislidiaiesdnsuazgunsaideadne uagniswann
adamnTundwd deiu Fdlifinisuansdoyainuunaudiminugsio s1eld lsannsdniiveu uay
Aunswinauaiudavoglwunsidu Feioidunssmenuanudueudiivnuiazuagimdasid
Tuseningl 2558 UsnguazusEndessuiseldanedsivaingnimsiglug i 7 s1e Wudwu
SUaAY 12,084 &uun (2557: anAs1glugisuau 8 51 Husuawduiedu 16,708 d1uum)

NOINUEASOVIALITW

UStny  U3wsesuazwiinauldsmdudadnomudisendsdniunumsesiygiinomudiseadss
B w.A. 2530 lapuSeng uSendesuaswinawansaunudnewwluseidoulusnsfosas 3-5 vov
Ruidieu newmudrseuded@wivimslasuivmmdnninddansnasmusia fdld 9100 wazazanslviug
wiinemuilewiineutusananauaussifisuhdonewuesitnasuiengos  lusewigd 2558
Uy wavuSingessusiiudunusenarnduamldinedwulu 22 duum (2557: 20 Swum)
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28. ms:ynWula:riaunenviinvu

28.1 NMS:WNWUINGINUATYTYIIBIANTUIIU
vsunglgidindyudisniiueuiifeidosiunsiisasud engrevdygiiiszesvinan 3-5 T uieny
f31uuduiuaidesinglusmaandunglddoymyussniuauivenanlils dail

(MUg: a1UUn)

U5
selu 1Y 10 12
1nni1 1 Y ualiifiu 5 9 12 16

28.2 msAUs:nu
U Tuf 31 SUNAN 2558 uar 2557 WikAomUseiudeennlagsuiaisitunuSenIuasusenges o
Wgdaviunszynwunvlieusdsenisenudnissna Isneazdancail

(Mg aUun)

nilvAdoAUseiudyan 9,898 9,104 9,617 9,104
nil@eAUsenuiliusvanminuaziiulseiunaeu 8,771 8,452 8,406 8,452
wilvdodnUseiudu 1692 3,106 1692 3,106
$7u 20,361 20,662 19,715 20,662

28.3 ARWouSaY
uSnagnilasdesdniund TasfiygauinnisilesdevAafuiuniusssunatoo wum  (2557:
198 &1uum) Teadesdoudunay dnlunfsuiosiunisfivisnugnnaniminuienaiadoynysng
lurnuziiadsiegluseninnisfisuvesaa  houdmsuasivinsmnguunovesuisnyiansan
wduiuindeednanazlideliiianadovsegeiansyddydeuseng datuialaifinsdednses
dwsumiiauliludn®
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a T a L c
uanus18nN1suazn1samsdoyadmsuinsoviion1n1sky’ Usenaueig ]
Aunswinunisiiu WUAUNINNISINY ™
> NUAALAYSIUNISIRLUININUAR > 9MENISAMATLIINUTDY
> (uANUEIAS) > dunuindaldiSondise
> gnuiinisaAn » WmilenudinTouardyndinienisidu
> swlangeldlfisendnsy > WRuddu

» RuUsgiunauNedsg
> [Sulvigdu
»  [ulnsuiAnsninseA1Useiy

o 1 a

USEYuazUSEngas a1 daeiiigadoeiuiasovilonienisudenatsnazdulsuiglunisusnns

a

AHLALNGEINT

AJUIFEINUAUIED
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USinyuazusSing oafinudadunisiiaudedilug ifealieeiugnuiladeaseuazduliddu
ag1dlsfnn 1lovanusinyuazusvngdesiiulouiglunisiiAudeisednse i gnuilaneasiednlug)
Wunasgurauasinisdiamunissudnseiiuaingnaiesdlnada  sauteiinisiiasieignuenienisidu
vovgnuilegedidue  duluusenguazusindesaaineelilésuanudsmenduaisedrdgan
nsiiunilangnuitiivanil
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Usnnazustndesianudsendasiaenids ilewnfitudnduaotunsidu Sulvden Sud
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(28: ATUUN)

Aunswdnenisiiu
RUAALAZS19NSIASUININUAR 0.75 - 3.80 200 - 830 9 1,039
Huawuiins1 0.37 - 470 284 - 119 623 1,026
ANUTN1SAN - - - - 3,079 3,079
solgrsslildiFondsy - - - - 5,299 5,299
Nuvseiunaaunaasia - - - - 1,096 1,096
JulvidEuszosdunduieniu wuugg 10 101 - - - 101
SulwdBuunianisiifioadoriu WUNELE 6 - 3 - - 3
SurnsunmsiiinnseAUseiu 0.85 - - 15 - 15
585 3 964 10,106 11,658
UHAUNINNITIIU
BuinsAuagiimiiou - - - - 4,023 4,023
funuidaliiFondnse . - - - 3,474 3,474
ey dnTonardynn
NN 435 - 5.38 81 82 - - 163
Qudunaraenidodeing wungLue 19 - 7 - - 71
81 153 - 7497 7731
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AunswenansiSu
NUAALAZSIENIS IS UMNIINLER 013 - 270 500 - 967 667 2,134
Huawuiins1 013 - 8.88 864 - 696 1,871 3,431
ANUTN1SAN - - - - 2748 2748
s1eldigslllgSondnsy - - - - 6,367 6,367
NuUsiunaduNadsg - - - - 733 733
SulwPuszarduuduiondu wuuELUe 10 1 - - - 1
JulvdBuuifanisiifoadoetu WHNELUG) 6 - 4 - - 4
SudnsnAsATinsEAUseiy 1.40 - - 15 - 15
1,365 4 1,678 12,380 15,433
niAUN1NN1SIU
S miinsAuaz iy - - - - 3727 3727
funuiigaliiFoninse - - - - 5741 5,741
Bvileu deysyanTouasdoynn
NN 435 -538 Q0 101 - - 191
Qudunazaenidodeing g6 19 - 70 - - 70
90 171 - 9,468 9,729
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Aunswdnenisiiu
Nudauazs1onsiiounitudn 075 - 3.80 200 - 812 9 1,021
Huawuians1 0.37 - 470 284 - 119 485 888
ANUTNISAN - - - - 3,063 3,063
srolgAsslildiFondrsy - - - - 5,269 5,269
Nuvseiunasunaasia - - - - 1,096 1,096
JulvigBuudfenisiifioadotu nieLwig 6 527 - - - 527
Ruthnsuasiiiniseuseiu 0.85 - - 15 - 15
1,011 - 946 9,922 11,879
UHAUNINNITIIU
BvlinsAuaviimiiou - - - - 4,010 4,010
dunuiicaliiFoninse - - - - 3,467 3,467
e dyninTonardyun
1IN INNIT N 435 - 5.38 63 79 - - 142
63 79 - 7477 7619
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NUAALAZSIENIS IS UMIINLER 0.13 - 2.70 - - 1,935 10 1,945
Ruasnudins 013 - 8.88 864 - 696 1,871 3,431
anuiinisén - - - - 2735 2,735
s1elgAgalaldiSundnse - - - - 6,306 6,306
RuUseiunadunadsig - - - - 733 733
JulwdBuunianisiiiioadoiu WUNELE 6 1 - - - 1
RunnsuAnsAiinnseasyiy 1.40 - - 15 - 15
865 - 2,646 11,655 15,166
wilAuN1eNISIU
NS ALz TEY - - - - 3,663 3,663
GunuiissliiZondnse - - - - 5711 5,711
Bvilaudy g Touas oo
LN INNIS L 435 - 538 90 101 - - 191
90 101 - 9,374 9,565
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sino-Thai Engineering and
Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Sino-Thai

Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited for the same period.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparafion and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted
my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my

audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and
of Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2015, and their financial

performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Thai Financial Reporfing Standards.

(g .0z

Supachai  Phanyawattano

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 3930
EY Office Limited

Bangkok: 17 February 2016



Statement of financial position

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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 Consolidated fnancial statements. 5
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Assets o
c

Current assets S
c

Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,038,830,903 2,133,798,622 1,021,237,692 1,945,097,121 L

Current investments 8 1,025,846,402 3,431,538,075 887,467,682 3,431,538,075

Trade accounts receivable 6,9 3,079,319,199 2,748,272,786 3,062,812,380 2,735,218,720

Unbilled receivables 6 5,299,205,491 6,366,535,027 5,268,863,033 6,306,057,131

Retention receivables 1,096,451,769 732,663,215 1,096,451,769 732,663,215

Construction in progress 2,299,849,275 1,186,751,147 2,257,234,992 1,186,751,147

Advances to subcontractors 917,856,857 1,324,162,412 900,452,424 1,316,217,980

Short-term loans to other companies 10 101,341,152 837,625 = -

Current portion of loans to related parties 6 1,428,349 1,246,449 = -

Condominium units for sales 19 350,392,562 381,008,076 - -

Other current assets 11 361,391,030 254,919,135 233,566,413 185,737,761

Total current assets 15,571,912,989 18,561,732,569 14,728,086,385 17,839,281,150

Non-current assets

Restricted bank deposits 15,108,010 15,108,010 15,108,010 15,108,010

Investments in subsidiaries 12 = - 1,252,816,121 1,252,816,121

Investment in associate 13.1 132,790,697 119,584,256 2,799,700 2,799,700

Other long-term investments 14 10,501,254 10,802,004 1,000,000 1,000,000

Loans to related parties - net of current

portion 6 1,066,369 2,494,718 527,193,260 500,000

Investment properties 15 3,709,547,141 3,083,061,755 2,264,408,130 1,751,600,000

Property, plant and equipment 16 3,196,570,256 3,166,169,713 2,422,628,665 3,015,883,146

Other non-current assets 23,853,554 44,767,581 17,634,740 29,805,646

Total non-current assets 7,089,437,281 6,441,988,037 6,503,588,626 6,069,512,623

Total assets 22,661,350,270 25,003,720,606 21,231,675,011 23,908,793,773

usEn Blu-Tng 1BUTITYSY DU AOUARSABU 1AM (UMBU)
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Statement of financial position (Continued)

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2015

(Unit: Baht)

Note 2015 2014 2015 2014

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6,17 4,023,351,325 3,727,269,732 4,010,320,862 3,663,408,303
Unbilled payables 3,474,167,314 5,741,276,429 3,467,046,682 5,711,110,101
Advances received from construction
contracts 6 4,198,381,945 5,691,882,748 4,077,334,070 5,676,437,441
Current portion of hire purchase creditors

and financial lease payables 18 81,152,978 89,043,835 62,888,547 89,643,835
Loan and interest payable 19 71,248,048 70,379,908 - -
Provision for loss of project 519,961,053 142,550,043 519,961,053 142,550,043
Other current liabilities 280,319,099 463,765,894 262,935,252 442,718,428
Total current liabilities 12,648,581,762 15,926,768,589  12,400,486,466 15,725,868,151
Non-current liabilities
Hire purchase creditors and

financial lease payables - net of

current portion 18 81,730,440 101,255,880 79,024,310 101,255,880
Provision for long-term employee benefits 20 152,644,860 140,838,521 149,477,653 137,917,807
Deferred tax liabilities 23 261,467,674 280,641,951 139,325,508 161,697,664
Other non-current liabilities 8,775,290 4,979,677 = -
Total non-current liabilities 504,618,264 527,716,029 367,827,471 400,871,351
Total liabilities 13,153,200,026 16,454,484,618 12,768,313,937 16,126,739,502

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015



Statement of financial position (Continued)

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2015

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

Registered
1,525,106,540 ordinary shares of
Baht 1 each

Issued and fully paid
1,525,106,540 ordinary shares of
Baht 1 each

Share premium

Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory reserve
Unappropriated

Other components of shareholders’ equity
Equity aftributable to owners of

the Company
Non-controlling interests of the

subsidiaries

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Lot

1,525,106,540

1,525,106,540

1,525,106,540

(Unit: Baht)

1,525,106,540

1,525,106,540

1,525,106,540

1,525,106,540

1,525,106,540

2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812 2,097,055,812
152,510,654 152,510,654 152,510,654 152,510,654
5,518,452,119 4,601,966,987 4,689,648,067 4,032,869,521
(1,364,499) (25,690,506) (959,999) (25,488,256)
9,291,760,626 8,350,949,487 8,463,361,074 7,782,054,271
216,389,618 198,286,501 = -
9,508,150,244 8,549,235,988 8,463,361,074 7,782,054,271
22,661,350,270  25,003,720,606 21,231,675,011 23,908,793,773

Director

UsBn Blu-Tng 15UF1083 I0US ADUARSATU 1A (UMBU)
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Income statement

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Unit: Baht)

Note 2015 2014 2015 2014

Revenues
Construction income 18,237,770,422 21,551,604,445 18,231,153,237 21,541,678,948
Sales and services income 92,881,827 100,360,795 - -
Gain from fair value adjustment of

investment properties 15 447,645,994 - 334,142,268 -
Other income

Interest income 72,254,207 238,001,636 69,313,768 246,682,114

Dividend income 13.2 = - 4,199,550 4,199,550

Others 59,152,894 54,387,677 52,478,405 18,230,178
Total revenues 18,909,705,344  21,944,354,553 18,691,287,228 21,810,790,790
Expenses
Cost of construction 16,550,213,359 19,375,671,891 16,680,568,022 19,369,494,797
Cost of sales and services 49,225,362 59,324,552 = -
Administrative expenses 448,057,555 583,132,497 427,590,746 568,989,954
Total expenses 17,047,496,276 20,018,128,940 17,108,158,768 19,938,484,751

Profit before share of profit from investment
in associate, finance cost and
income tax expenses

Share of profit from investment in

associate 13.2

1,862,209,068

17,405,991

1,926,225,613

11,135,762

1,583,128,460

1,872,306,039

Profit before finance cost and income

tax expenses

Finance cost

1,879,615,059
(13,460,020)

1,937,361,375
(18,226,130)

1,583,128,460
(11,033,369)

1,872,306,039
(17,353,322)

Profit before income tax expenses

Income tax expenses 23

1,866,155,039
(321,481,926)

1,919,135,245
(389,108,925)

1,572,095,091
(305,279,431)

1,854,952,717
(370,929,717)

Profit for the year

1,544,673,113

1,530,026,320

1,266,815,660

1,484,023,000

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries

1,526,522,246
18,150,867

1,520,507,821
9,518,499

1,266,815,660

1,484,023,000

1,544,673,113

1,530,026,320

Basic earnings per share

Profit aftributable to equity holders of the Company

1.00

1.00

0.83

0.97

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015



Statement of Comprehensive Income

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015
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(Unit: Baht)

Profit for the year 1,544,673,113 1,530,026,320 1,266,815,660 1,484,023,000
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Other comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods

Actuarial loss = (8,306,401) = (8,306,401)
Income tax effect 23 = 1,661,280 = 1,661,280

Other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods - net of income tax = (6,645,121) = (6,645,121)

Other comprehensive income fo be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Gain on change in value of

available-for-sale investments 30,410,321 14,809,807 30,660,321 14,859,807
Income tax effect 23 (6,132,064) (2,971,961) (6,132,064) (2,971,961)

Reversal of translation of financial

statements in foreign currency = (83,779) = -

Other comprehensive income to be

reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods - net of income tax 24,278,257 11,754,067 24,528,257 11,887,846
Other comprehensive income for the year 24,278,257 5,108,946 24,528,257 5,242,725
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,568,951,370 1,535,135,266 1,291,343,917 1,489,265,725

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 1,550,848,253 1,525,626,317 1,291,343,917 1,489,265,725

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries 18,103,117 9,508,949

1,568,951,370 1,535,135,266

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash flow statement

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before fax
Adjustments fo reconcile profit before tax
to net cash provided by (paid from)

operating activities:

1,866,155,039

1,919,135,245

1,572,095,091

(Unit: Baht)
2015 2014 2015 2014

1,854,952,717

Gain on sales of investment property = (27,460,179) = -
Depreciation 494,260,548 427,291,646 399,039,713 424,910,943
Gain from disposal of equipment (5,130,139) (7,766,174) (4,931,896) (4,544,559)
Increase in fair value of investment

properties (447,645,994) - (334,142,268) -
Gain from return of capital of associate = (782,002) = (698,223)
Shares of profit from investments in

associates (17,405,991) (11,135,762) = -
Unrealised gain on exchange (2,070,728) (1,761,293) (2,070,728) (1,761,293)
Unrealised (gain) loss on valuation of

current investments (2,139,200) 1,293,307 (2,139,200) 1,293,307
Amortisation of premium of forward

contract (3,307,282) (7,553,761) (3,307,283) (7,553,761)
Increase in provision for loss of project 377,411,004 26,466,985 377,411,004 26,466,985
Provision for long-term employee benefits 13,362,339 14,234,967 13,115,846 13,805,229
Income from investment - dividend received

from investment in associate - - (4,199,550) (4,199,550)
Interest income (72,254,207) (238,001,636) (69,313,768) (246,682,114)
Interest expenses 13,460,020 18,226,130 11,033,369 17,353,322
Profit from operating activities before

changes in operating assets and

liabilities 2,214,695,409 2,112,187,473 1,952,590,330 2,073,343,003
Operating assets (increase) decrease

Trade accounts receivable (507,046,412) 168,642,846 (503,593,659) 144,659,492

Unbilled receivables

1,067,329,536

(1,452,117.792)

1,037,194,098

(1,493,171,216)

Retention receivables (363,788,554) (218,872,707) (363,788,554) (234,905,674)
Construction in progress (1,113,098,128) (68,743,122) (1,070,483,845) (68,743,122)
Advances to subcontractors 406,305,556 (306,809,564) 415,765,556 (310,292,389)
Condominium units for sales 30,615,514 43,012,952 = -
Other current assets 11,738,220 66,521,570 58,468,930 55,713,353
Other non-current assets 20,964,777 (20,931,177) 12,170,906 (18,754,250)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015



Cash flow statement (continued)

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Operating liabilities increase (decrease)
Trade and other payables
Unbilled payables

Advances received from construction

confracts

Other current liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Cash used in operating activities

Cash paid for interest expenses

Cash paid for corporate income tax

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Increase in restricted bank deposits

Decrease in current investments

(Increase) decrease in short-term loans
to other companies

(Increase) decrease in loans fo related
parties

Cash paid for acquisition of investment in
subsidiary

Cash paid for additional investments in
subsidiary

Cash received from return of capital of

associate
Acquisition of investment property
Proceeds from sales of investment
property
Aquisition of equipment
Proceeds from sales of equipment

Dividend received from investment

in associate
Interest income

Net cash from investing activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit: Baht)

296,081,594 761,192,035 346,912,559 816,633,422
(2,267409,109)  (836,030,352)  (2,244,063,413) (815,458,904)
(1,493,500,803) (851,121721)  (1,599,103,371) (844,014,245)
(176,488,196) 142,807,538 (176,475,893) 138,490,785
2,239,613 (10,355,402) (1,556,000) (7,338,300)
(1,871,060,983) (470,617,423)  (2135962,356)  (563,838,045)
(12,591,880) (17,357,990) (11,033,369) (17,353,322)
(478,901,551) (452,301,703)  (448,092,920) (429,666,109)
(2,362,554,414) (940,277116)  (2,595,088,645)  (1,010,857,476)
- (15,108,010) - (15,108,010)
2440561922  2,918940,495  2,578940,641  2,918,940,495
(100,503,528) 14,629,340 - -
1,246,449 1087714 (526,693,260) 72,500,000

- (11,253,625) - (12,726,516)

i - - (795,000,000)

- 698,223 - 698,223

(2,839,39) (790,000,000) (2,665,862) -

- 85,220,179 - -
(458,215,849)  (883,545,651) (447,591,131) (873,751,928)
13,093,812 24,045,536 676,630,001 11,884,119
4,199,550 4,199,550 4,199,550 4,199,550
82,506,062 261,176,133 77,325,456 269,856,610
1,980,049,022 1,610,089,884  2,360,145,395 1,581,492,543
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Cash flow statement (continued)

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of hire purchase creditors and
financial lease payables

Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplement cash flows information
Non-cash items
Increase of equipments from hire purchase
and financial lease agreements
Transfers of financial lease agreements
to subsidiary
Land transferred as consideration for

construction work

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited

Annual Report 2015

(Unit: Baht)

(102,425,213) (114,468,385) (78,879,065) (114,468,385)
(610,037114)  (762,544,493) (610,037114)  (762,544,493)
(712,462,327) (877,012,878) (688,916,179) (877,012,878)
(1,094,967.719) (207.200,110)  (923,859,429) (306,377,811)
2133798622  2,340,998732 1945097121  2,251,474,932
1,038,830,903 2133798622 1,021,237,692 1,945,097,121
74,408,916 76,533,150 74,408,916 76,533,150

- - 44,516,710 -

176,000,000 - 176,000,000 -



Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Exchange

Deficit on g Equity
changes in ' eren?s on Total other Total equity aftributable
Issued and . . translation of ) Total
. Share Retained earnings value of i components of  attributable to fo non- )
fully paid . ) financial , 3 shareholders’
5 premium available- shareholders’ owners of controlling )
share capital statements ) ) equity
for-sale i Geein equity the Company inferests of
Appropriated  Unappropriated invesiments currency fhe subsidiaries

Balance as at 1
January 2014 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654  3,850,648,780 (37,537,902) 83,779 (37,454,123) 7,587,867,663 188,777,552 7776,645,215
Dividend paid
(Note 24) - - - (762,544,493) - - - (762,544,493) - (762,544,493)
Profit for the year - - - 1,520,507,821 - - - 1,520,507,821 9,518,499 1,530,026,320
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - (6,645,121) 11,847,396 (83,779) 11,763,617 5,118,496 (9,550) 5,108,946
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 1,513,862,700 11,847,396 (83,779) 11,763,617 1,525,626,317 9,508,949 1,535,135,266
Balance as at 31
December 2014 1,525106,540 _2,097,055,812 152,510,654 4,601,966,987 (25,690,506 - (25,690,506) 8,350,949,487 198,286,501 8,549,235,988
Balance as at 1
January 2015 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654  4,601,966,987 (25,690,506) - (25,690,506) 8,350,949,487 198,286,501 8,549,235,988
Dividend paid
(Note 24) - - - (610,037,114) - - - (610,037,114) - (610,037,114)
Profit for the year - - - 1526,522,246 - - - 1,526,522,246 18,150,867 1,544,673,113
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 24,326,007 - 24,326,007 24,326,007 (47.750) 24,278,257
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 1526,522,246 24,326,007 - 24,326,007 1,550,848,253 18,103,117 _1,568,951,370
Balance as at 31
December 2015 1,525,106,540 _2,097,055,812 152,510,654 5518452119 (1,364,499) - (1,364,499) 9,291760,626 216,389,618 9,508,150,244

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

UsBn Blu-Tng 15UF1083 I0US ADUARSATU 1A (UMBU)
$1891uUs=91U 2558

<
=

(2]
)
c
<5}
=
<5}
e
<
)
75}
©
(&)
c
<
=
L

| 295



296 |

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity (continued)

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Unit: Baht

Retained earnings Deficit on Total other
Issued and changes components Total
fully paid  Share premium in value of of shareholders’
share capital Appropriated  Unappropriated  qyqijlgble-for-sale  shareholders’ equity
investments equity

Balance as at
1 January 2014 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654  3,318,036,135 (37376,102)  (37,376,102) 7,055,333,039
Dividend paid (Note 24) - - - (762,544,493) - - (762,544,493)
Profit for the year - - - 1,484,023,000 - - 1,484,023,000
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - - (6,645,121) 11,887,846 11,887,846 5,242,725
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 1477377879 11,887,846 11,887,846 1,489,265,725

Balance as at

31 December 2014 1,525106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 4,032,869,521 (25,488,256)  (25,488,256)  7782,054,271

Balance as at

1 January 2015 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654  4,032,869,521 (25,488,256)  (25,488,256)  7,782,054,271
Dividend paid (Note 24) - - - (610,037,114) - - (610,037,114)
Profit for the year - - - 1,266,815,660 - - 1,266,815,660
Other comprehensive

income for the year = - N = 24,528,257 24,528,257 24,528,257
Total comprehensive

income for the year - - - 1,266,815,660 24,528,257 24,528,257 1,291,343,917
Balance as at

31 December 2015 1,525,106,540 2,097,055,812 152,510,654 4,689,648,067 (959,999) (959,999) 8,463,361.074

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015



Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

2.2

General information

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public
company incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged in the
provision of construction services. The registered office of the Company is 32/59-32/60, Sino-Thai

Tower, Sukhumvit 21 Road, Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana, Bangkok.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards
enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made
in compliance with the stipulations of the Notfification of the Department of Business Development
dated 28 September 2011, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the
Company. The financial statements in English language have been franslated from the Thai language
financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise
disclosed in the accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Sino-Thai Engineering

and Construction Public Company Limited (“the Company”) and the following subsidiaries and joint

ventures (“the Subsidiaries”) which are all incorporated in Thailand:

HTR Corporation Limited Office building rental 80.90 80.90

Patumwan Real Estate Company Limited Provision of document 80.90 80.90
(Wholly owned by HTR Corporation Limited) storage service

Kijpracha Tanee Company Limited Real estate development 80.90 80.90
(Wholly owned by HTR Corporation Limited)

Nouvelle Property Company Limited Real estate development 99.99 99.99

Wisdom Services Company Limited Rental of machinery and 100.00 100.00
(Formerly known as Susco Lubricants construction equipment

Company Limited)

S.L. Joint Venture Construction 70.00 70.00
(ceased its operation)
S.A. Joint Venture Construction 80.00 80.00

(ceased its operation)
STEC - AS - 3 Joint Venture Construction 70.00 -
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

b)

2.3

The Company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiary or joint venture if it has
rights, or is exposed, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and it has the ability
to direct the activities that affect the amount of its returns.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtfains control, and
confinue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using the same significant accounting
policies as the Companu.

Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated
from the consolidated financial statements.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries
that are not held by the Company and are presented separately in the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

The separate financial statements present investments in subsidiaries and associate under the cost
method.

New Financial Reporting Standards
Below is a summary of financial reporting standards that became effective in the current accounting

year and those that will become effective in the future.

Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries have adopted the revised (revised 2014) and new financial
reporting standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions which became effective for
fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2015. These financial reporting standards were aimed
at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards, with most of the
changes directed towards revision of wording and terminology, and provision of interpretations and
accounting guidance to users of standards. The adoption of these financial reporting standards did
not have any significant impact on the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

However, some of these standards involve changes to key principles, which are listed below:

Accounting Standard:

TAS 19 (revised 2014) Employee Benefits
Financial Reporting Standards:
TFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
TFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
TFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement



Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2015

b)

4.1

The above accounting standard and financial reporting standards do not have any significant impact

on the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Financial reporting standards that will become effective in the future

During the current year, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of the revised
(revised 2015) and new financial reporting standards and accounting freatment guidance which is
effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2016. These financial reporting standards
were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards. The
management of the Company and its subsidiaries believe that the revised and new financial
reporting standards and accounting treatment guidance will not have any significant impact on the

financial statements when they are initially applied.
Significant accounting policies

Revenues and expenses recognition

a) Revenues

Revenues from construction

Revenues from construction are recognised on a percentage of complefion basis based on the
assessment of engineers of the Company and its subsidiaries. The recognised revenue which
is not yet due per the contracts is presented under the caption of “Unbilled receivables” in the

statement of financial position.

Revenues from sales of condominium units
Revenues from sales of condominium units are recognised as revenue when the ownership is

transferred to the buyer.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised over the period of the lease agreement.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

4.2

4.3

4.4

b) Expenses

Costs of construction

Costs of construction are recognised in accordance with the percentage of work completed based
on total estimated costs. Provision for anficipated losses on construction projects is made in the
accounts in full when the possibility of loss is ascertained. Differences between the estimated
costs and the actual costs are recognised as current assets or current liabilities in the statement

of financial position.

Cost of sales of condominium units

In determining the cost of condominium units sold, the anticipated total development costs (after
recognising the costs incurred to date) are aftributed to units already sold on the basis of the
salable area and then recognised as costs in the income statement according to the recorded sales.
Development costs of condominium units for sales are stated at cost, consisting of the cost of

land, construction costs, interest and other related costs.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and cash at banks and all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance

is generally based on collection experience and analysis of debt aging.

Investments

a) Investments in unit trusts of open-ended fund are stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the carrying amounts of unit trusts are included in the income statement.

b) Investments in securities held for trading are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value
of these securities are recorded in the income statement.

c) Investments in debt securities, both due within one year and expected to be held fo maturity,
are recorded at amortised cost. The preminum/discount on debt securities is amortised/
accreted by the effective rate method with the amortised/accreted amount presented as an
adjustment fo the interest income.

d) Investments in available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value
of these securities are recorded as a separate item in other comprehensive income, and will

be recorded in the income statement when the securities are sold.



Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4.5

4.6

e) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company and its subsidiaries
classify as other investments, are stated at cost net of allowance for impairment loss (if any).

f) Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method.

g) Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for in the separate financial

statements using the cost method net of allowance for impairment loss (if any).

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the latest bid price of the last working day of
the year. The fair value of debt instruments is determined based on yield rates quoted by the Thai
Bond Market Association or yield rate of government bond adjusted by an appropriate risk factor,
as the case may be. The fair value of unit frusts is determined from their net asset value.

The weighted average method is used for computation of the cost of investments.

In the event the Company and its subsidiaries reclassify investments from one type to another, such
investments will be readjusted to their fair value as at the reclassification date. The difference
between the carrying amount of the investments and the fair value on the date of reclassification
is recorded in the income statement or recorded as other components of shareholders’ equity,
depending on the fype of investment that is reclassified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the investment is recognised as income or expenses in the income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes
in the value of investment properties are recognised in the income statement when incurred.

On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset is recognised in the income statement in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Building and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Depreciation of building and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-line

basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and building improvements - 20 years
Leasehold improvements - 10 years
Mock up room - 5 years
Machinery and equipment - 5-30 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - 3-S5 wyears
Motor vehicles - 5-10 years
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

4.7

4.8

4.9

410

Depreciation is included in the income statement.

No depreciation is provided on land, land improvements and assets under construction.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset

is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company
and its subsidiaries, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the
Company and its subsidiaries.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting
interest in the Company and its subsidiaries that give them significant influence over the Company
and its subsidiaries, key management personnel, directors, and officers with authority in the

planning and direction of the operation of Company and its subsidiaries.

Long-term leases

Leases of equipment which fransfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables, while the interest
element is charged fo the income statement over the lease period. The assets acquired under
finance leases are depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

Leases of building and equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an

expense in the income statement on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the
Company’s functional currency. ltems of each entity included in the consolidated financial statements
are measured using the functional currency of that entity.

Transactions in foreign currencies are franslated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in the income statement.

Impairment of assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries perform impairment reviews
in respect of the property, plant and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable



Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4.11

412

413

amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use, is less than the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses

when incurred.

Post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund.
The fund is monthly contributed by employees and by the Company and its subsidiaries. The fund’s
assets are held in a separate trust fund and the contributions of the Company and its subsidiaries

are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The Company and its subsidiaries have obligations in respect of the severance payments they
must make to employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company and its subsidiaries freat
these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan. In addition, the Company and its
subsidiaries provide other long-term employee benefit plan, namely long service awards.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plans is
determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using
the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised immediately in
other comprehensive income and actuarial gains and losses arising from other long-term employee

benefits are recognised immediately in the income statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiaries have a present obligation as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

414

4.15

Current tax
Current income fax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected fo be paid to the taxation

authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted
at the end of the reporting period.

The Company and its subsidiaries recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary
differences while they recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and
tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.
At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiaries review and reduce the carrying amount
of deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Company and its subsidiaries record deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity if the tax

relates to items that are recorded directly to shareholders’ equity.

Derivatives

Forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the
rates of exchange ruling at the end of reporting period. Unrecognised gains and losses from the
franslation are included in the income statement. Premiums or discounts on forward exchange

contracts are amortised on a straight-line basis over the contract periods.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement date. The
Company and its subsidiaries apply a quoted market price in an active market to measure their
assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a guoted
market price is not available, the Company and its subsidiaries measure fair value using valuation
technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximises the use of relevant observable
inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on categorise of input to be
used in fair value measurement as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly
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Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows
At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiaries determine whether transfers
have occurred between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the

end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
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5.  Significant accounting judgments and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times
requires management to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are
inherently uncertain. These judgments and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures;
and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgments and esfimates are as

follows:

Estimated of revenues from construction and construction project costs

In estimation of revenues from construction, management are required to make judgement based on
their best knowledge of the current events and arrangements and their experience of the business
in order to estimate the percentage of completion, based on information from the engineers/project
managers.

The Company and its subsidiaries estimate costs of construction projects based on details of the
construction work, taking into account the volume and value of construction materials to be used
in the project, labour costs and other miscellaneous costs to be incurred to completion of service,
taking intfo account the direction of the movement in these costs. Estimates are reviewed regularly

or whenever actual costs differ significantly from the figures used in the original estimates.

Provision for losses on construction projects

Management applied judgment in estimating the loss they expect to be realised on each construction
projects, based on estimates of anticipated costs that take into account the progress of the project
and actual costs incurred to date, together with fluctuations in costs of construction materials,

labour and the current situation.

Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease,
the management is required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, faking info consideration terms and conditions

of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtful accounts
In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and

estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts

and the prevailing economic condition.
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Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial position
that are not actively fraded and for which quoted market prices are not readily available, the
management exercise judgement, using a variety of valuation techniques and models. The input to
these models is taken from observable markets, and includes consideration of credit risk (bank and
counterparty, both) liquidity, correlation and longer-term volatfility of financial instruments. Change in
assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value recognised in the statement of financial

position and disclosures of fair value hierarchy.

Impairment of investments

The Company and its subsidiaries treat available-for-sale investments and other investments as
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost
or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant”

or “prolonged” requires judgment of the management.

Investment properties

The Company and its subsidiary present investment properties at the fair value estimated by
an independent appraiser, and recognise changes in the fair value in the income statement. The
independent appraiser valued an investment property using the income approach, because there is
no market price that could be used to apply a comparative approach. The key assumptions used
in estimating the fair value include yield rate, inflation rate, long-term vacancy rate and long-term

growth in real rental rates.

Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates
of the useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment of the Company and its subsidiaries
and to review estimated useful lives and residual values when there are any changes.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on
an annual basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable amount
is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues

and expenses relafing to the assets subject to the review.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level

of estimate future taxable profits.



Notes to consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits
The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plans is determined
based on actuarial technigues. Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including

discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
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Litigation
The Company and its subsidiaries have contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The management
has used judgment to assess of the results of the litigation and believe that no loss will result.

Therefore no contingent liabilities are recorded as at the end of reporting period.

6. Related party transactions
During the years, the Company and its subsidiaries had significant business transactions with

related parties. These fransactions have been concluded at contract prices which can be comparable

to the prices charged to unrelated parties. Below is a summary of those transactions.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Transactions with subsidiary companies

(eliminated from the consolidated financial

statements)

Construction income = - 17 20
Interest income = - 3 2
Rental of machinery and construction equipment = - 232 -
Rental expenses = - 14 14
Sale of machinery and construction equipment = - 708 -

Transactions with related companies

Construction income 2,030 1,381 2,030 1,381
Project consulting income 100 100 100 100
Cost of construction 52 37 52 37
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As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the balance of the accounts between the Company and its

subsidiaries and those related companies were as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2015 2014 2015 2014
Assets
Trade receivables - related parties (Note 9)
Subsidiaries = - 29,140 29,664
Joint ventures 10,225 10,225 13,756 13,756
Related companies (related by common director) 101,585 276,071 100,053 276,067
Total 111,810 286,296 142,949 319,487
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (29,203) (29,203) (38,774) (38,774)
Net 82,607 257093 104,175 280,713
Unbilled receivables
Subsidiary = - 40,543 24,836
Related companies (related by common director) 36,900 302,601 36,900 302,601
Total 36,900 302,601 77443 327437
Loans to related parties
Subsidiaries = - 527193 500
Related companies (related by common director) 2,495 3,741 = -
Total 2,495 3,74 527193 500
Liabilities
Trade payables - related parties (Note 17)
Subsidiaries = - 22,617 16
Related companies (related by common director) 7299 9,192 7299 9,192
Total 7299 9,192 29,916 9,208
Advances received from construction coniracts
Subsidiaries = - 230,802 -
Related companies (related by common director) 180,851 437551 180,851 437,551
Total 180,851 437,551 411,653 437,551

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015



Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

<
=

(%)
)
c
[<7)
During 2015, movements of loans to related parties were as follows: e
(7]
(Unit: Thousand Baht) E
(7]
I
o
c
«©
=
Loan to related party i
Sino-Thai Tower Related by
Condominium Juristic common
Person director 3,741 - (1,246) 2,495

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Loan to related parties

Nouvelle Property

Company Limited Subsidiary 500 393 - 893

Wisdom Services
Company Limited Subsidiary = 713,300  (187,000) 526,300
500 713,693  (187,000) 527193

Loan to Sino-Thai Tower Condominium Juristic Person

HTR Corporation Limited (HTR) granted a loan of Baht 19 million to Sino-Thai Tower Condominium
Juristic Person (Sino-Thai Tower). The loan carries flat interest rate at 8 percent per annum for the
whole contract period. Sino-Thai Tower is to make 134 monthly installments of Baht 0.14 million

each only for principal together with interest, commencing as from September 2010.

Loan to Wisdom Services Company Limited

During the year 2015, the Company granted a loan of Baht 713 million to Wisdom Services
Company Limited (Wisdom). The loan is subject to interest at the rate of 0.5 percent per annum
and is due at call. However, the Company does not expect to call the loan in the foreseeable future
and therefore presents this loan as a non-current asset in the statement of financial position.

Wisdom used the loan to purchase assets being used in its operations (Note 16).

Directors and management’s benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company and its subsidiaries had short-term
employee benefits of their directors and management totaling Baht 58 million (2014: Baht 64 million)
(Separate financial statements: Baht 55 million, 2014: Baht 62 million).
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7.  Cash and cash equivalents

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Cash and bank deposits 838,831 977108 821,238 959,897
Unit trusts = 656,691 = 485,200
Bills of exchange 200,000 500,000 200,000 500,000
Total 1,038,831 2,133,799 1,021,238 1,945,097

Unit frusts are in open-ended, fixed-income fund which is highly liquid.

Current investments
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Bank deposits 118,584 696,059 118,584 696,059

Investments in trading securities

at fair value

Unit trusts 604,237 672,234 465,859 672,234
Bank of Thailand bonds 125,688 96,311 125,688 96,311
Financial institution debt securities = 205,704 = 205,704
Private sector debt securities 158,537 562,469 158,537 562,469

888,462 1,536,718 750,084 1,536,718

Investments in available-for-sales

securities at fair value

Unit trusts 18,800 1,198,761 18,800 1,198,761
Total current investments 1,025,846 3,431,538 887,468 3,431,538

Investments in unit trusts of the Company and its subsidiaries amounting to Baht 19 million
(Separate financial statements: Baht 19 million) are stated at fair value using inputs of Level 1
which is use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities.
And investments in unit trusts of the Company and its subsidiaries and debt instruments amounting
to Baht 888 million (Separate financial statements: Baht 750 million) are stated at fair value using
inputs of Level 2 which is use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether
directly or indirectly. Such fair value of investments in unit trusts has been determined by using
the net asset value and fair value of investments in debt instruments has been determined by using

the yield curve as announced by the Thai Bond Market Association or by other relevant bodies.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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9.

10.

Trade accounts receivables

Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Not yet due 1,429,730 1,183,831 1,428,461 1,183,516
Past due
Up to 4 months 491,601 989,963 490,802 988,830
5 - 12 months 510,936 234,588 510,416 234,523
Over 12 months 611,325 129,678 575,838 94,517
Total 3,043,592 2,538,060 3,005,517 2,501,386
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (46,880) (46,880)  (46,880) (46,880)
Total trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties, net 2,996,712 2,491,180 2,958,637 2,454,506
Trade accounts receivable - related parties (Note 6)
Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due 82,477 218,601 82,475 218,987
Past due
Up to 4 months - - = 698
5 - 12 months - - 1,154 1,819
Over 12 months 29,333 67,695 59,320 97,983
Total 111,810 286,296 142,949 319,487
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (29,203) (29,203) (38,774) (38,774)
Total trade accounts receivable - related parties, net 82,607 257093 104,175 280,713
Total trade accounts receivable - net 3,079,319 2,748,273 3,062,812 2,735,219

The Company has fransferred the right of its claim over collections from certain construction

contracts to a bank. The Company can still withdraw from this claim as usual. As at 31 December

2015, the balance of the trade accounts receivable under the right transfer agreement was Baht

326 million (2014: Baht 184 million).

Short-term loans to other companies

The balances represent factoring receivables from an unrelated companies which are due for

repayment on the date as stipulated in the agreements. This loans carrying interest rate at the rate

from 9.00 to 15.00 percent per annum (2014: 7.75 to 12.00 percent per annum).
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11.  Other current assets
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Withholding income tax 133,127 58,066 118,974 57,285
Others 228,264 196,853 114,592 128,453
Total other current assets 361,391 254,919 233,566 185,738

12. Investments in subsidiaries
Details of investments in subsidiaries as presented in separate financial statements are as follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

HTR Corporation Limited 500 500 80.90 80.90 440,090 440,090
Nouvelle Property Company Limited 800 800 99.99 99.99 800,000 800,000
Wisdom Services Company Limited 2,211 2,211 100.00 100.00 12,726 12,726
Total 1,252,816 1,252,816

13. Investment in associate

13.1 Details of associate:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

DKK' Sino-Thai Telecommunication  Thailand
Engineering and transmission
Company Limited line installation 35 35 2,800 2,800 132791 119,584

I Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

DKK Sino-Thai Telecommunication  Thailand
Engineering and transmission
Company Limited lines installation 35 35 2800 2,800 - - 2800 2,800

13.2 Share of profit/loss and dividend received
During the year, the Company has recognised its share of profit/loss from investment in associate
company in the consolidated financial statements and dividend received in the separate financial
statements as follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

DKK' Sino-Thai Engineering Company
Limited 17,406 11,136 4,200 4,200

13.3 Summarised financial information about material associate
Summarised information about financial position
(Unit: Million Baht)

Current assets 894 667
Non-current assets 19 20
Current liabilities (515) (325)
Non-current liabilities (19) (20)
Net assets 379 342
Shareholding percentage (%) 35 35
Carrying amounts of associate based on equity method 133 120
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Summarised information about comprehensive income

(Unit: Million Baht)

Revenue 759 715
Profit 50 32
Total comprehensive income 50 32

14. Other long-term investments

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Investments in
available-for-sale
securities

Bangkok Commercial
Property Fund = - 10,000 9,500 10,000 9,750 = = - -

Revaluation deficit
on changes in
value available-
for-sale security (500) (250) - -

9,500 9,750 = -

Other investments

Thai Maintenance
Contracting

Company Limited 19.0 19.0 7,611 7,611 7,611 761

Thai Contractors
Asset Co., Ltd. 0.2 0.2 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Others 25,694 25,694 25,642 25,642
34,305 34,305 34,253 34,253

Less: Allowance for
impairment of
investments (33,304) (33,253) (33,253) (33,253)

1,001 1,052 1,000 1,000

Other long-term
investments-net 10,501 10,802 1,000 1,000

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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15.

Investment properties
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Balance at beginning of year 2,541,600 541,462 3,083,062 1,809,360 541,462 2,350,822
Acquisition and renovation of

investment properties 2,839 - 2,839 790,000 - 790,000
Acquisition of land for

Construction repayment 176,000 - 176,000 - - -
Disposal = = = (57,760) - (57,760)
Gain from fair value

adjustment 369,426 78,220 447646 - - -
Balance at end of year 3,089,865 619,682 3,709,547 2,541,600 541,462 3,083,062

Market Income Market Income

Basis of valuation Approach Approach Approach Approach

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Balance at beginning of year 1,751,600 1,751,600
Acquisition and renovation of investment properties 2,666 -
Acquisition of land for Construction repayment 176,000 -
Gain from fair value adjustment 334,142 -
Balance at end of year 2,264,408 1,751,600
Basis of valuation Market Approach Market Approach

In 2015, a debtor transferred land valued at Baht 176 million to the Company as consideration
for construction work, but the land is situated within the boundaries of land to be expropriated
for a rural highway construction project. However, clear boundaries have not yet been set as the
construction project is still at the survey and design stage, and a property survey has not been
carried out for this purpose. Therefore, the management expects that this matter will not result in

material loss to the Company.
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16.

Key assumptions used in the valuation are summarised below:

Occupancy rate (%) 85 - 95 Increase in fair value
Discount rate (%) 12 Decrease in fair value
Rental rate (Baht per square metre per month) 494 - 570 Increase in fair value

Land is stated at fair value using input of Level 2 which is use of other observable inputs for such
assets, whether directly or indirectly.
Condominium for rent is stated at fair value using inputs of level 3 which is use of unobservable

inputs such as estimates of future cash flows.

Property, plant and equipment

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Cost:

1 January 2014 711,161 402,764 55,573 3,887,403 337136 428,589 79,424 5,902,050
Additions - 875 7 294,990 24142 26,567 613,499 960,080
Disposals - (12,027) - (243,701) (11,882) (14,448) - (282,058)
Transfers - - 54,941 324,784 - - (379,725) -
31 December 2014 711,161 391,612 110,521 4,263,476 349,396 440,708 313,198 6,580,072

Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2014 - 159,013 48355 2,535,609 232,856 276,555 - 3252388
Depreciation - 12,641 9% 336,641 39,641 37373 - 427292
Disposals - (3089) - (237402) (11,143) (14,144) - (265778)
31 December 2014 - 168,565 49351 2634848 261,354 299784 - 3413902

Net book value:
31 December 2014 711,161 223,047 61,170 1,628,628 88,042 140,924 313,198 3,166,170

Depreciation for the year

2014 (Baht 402 million included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 427292

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Annual Report 2015
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Cost: c

1 January 2015 71,161 391,612 10521 4,263,476 349,396 440708 313198 6,580,072 L
Additions - - 945 240,39 47404 22,514 221366 532625
Disposals - (165) - (111,314) (52,946) (6,819) - (171,244)
Transfers - 7,469 (3,382) 78,033 3,351 (8,316) (77155) -
31 December 2015 71,161 398916 108084 4,470,591 347205 448,087 457409 6941453

Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2015 - 168,565 49351 2,634,848 261,354 299784 - 3413902
Depreciation - 10,162 6,058 401,581 38,388 38072 - 494,261
Disposals - (165) - (104135) (52,190) (6;790) - (163.280)
31 December 2015 - 178,562 55409 2,932,294 247552 331,066 - 3744883

Net book value:
31 December 2015 711,161 220,354 52,675 1,538,297 99,653 117,021 457409 3,196,570

Depreciation for the year

2015 (Baht 462 million included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 494,261

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Cost:

1 January 2014 711,161 254,439 55,573 3,887,403 296,369 423,127 79,424 5,707,496
Additions - 875 7 294,990 20,948 26,567 606,898 950,285
Disposals - - - (243,701) (10,660) (14,448) - (268,809)
Transfers - - 54,941 324,784 - - (379,725) -
31 December 2014 711,161 255,314 110,521 4,263,476 306,657 435,246 306,597 6,388,972

Accumulated depreciation:

1 January 2014 - 156,145 48355 2,535,609 198,124 271,414 - 3,209,647
Depreciation - 12,420 996 336,641 37,804 37,050 - 42491
Disposals - - - (237.402) (9,923) (14,144) - (261,469)
31 December 2014 - 168,565 49351 2,634,848 226,005 294,320 - 3,373,089

Net book value:
31 December 2014 711,161 86,749 61,170 1,628,628 80,652 140,926 306,597 3,015,883

Depreciation for the year:

2014 (Baht 401 million included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 424,911
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Furniture,
Buildings Machinery fixtures Assets

Land and land  and building Leasehold and and office Motor under

improvements  improvements  improvements equipment  equipment  vehicles  construction Total
Cost:
1 January 2015 711,161 255,314 110,521 4,263,476 306,657 435,246 306,597 6,388,972
Additions - - 945 240,396 30,178 22,514 227967 522,000
Disposals - (165) - (111,314) (33,902) (6,819) - (152,200)
Disposals to

subsidiary

(eliminated from

the consolidated

financial

statement)

(Note 6) - (8,451) - (1,118,161) (5,144) (42,320) (57,596) (1,231,672)

Transfers - 7,469 (3,382) 78,033 3,351 (8,316) (77155) -
31 December 2015 711,161 254,167 108,084 3,352,430 301,140 400,305 399,813 5,527,100
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2015 - 168,565 49,351 2,634,848 226,005 294,320 - 3,373,089
Depreciation - 10,162 6,058 312,835 35,785 34,199 - 399,039
Disposals - (165) - (104,135) (33,184) (6,790) - (144,274)
Disposals to

subsidiary

(eliminated from

the consolidated

financial

statement)

(Note 6) - (6,166) - (496,840) (1,519) (18,858) - (523,383)
31 December 2015 - 172,396 55,409 2,346,708 227,087 302,871 - 3,104,471
Net book value:

31 December 2015 711,161 81,771 52,675 1,005,722 74,053 97,434 399,813 2,422,629
Depreciation for the year:
2015 (Baht 369 million included in cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 399,039

During the year 2015, the Company sold machinery and construction equipment fo a subsidiary
company, totaling Baht 708 million, and also transferred liabilities totaling Baht 45 million under
the financial lease agreements for these assets fo the subsidiary. The subsidiary already made full
payment for the assets, net of the liabilities under the financial lease agreements.

As at 31 December 2015 certain plant and equipment items had been fully depreciated but
were still in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation of those
assets amounted to approximately Baht 1,729 million (2014: Baht 1,841 million) (Separate financial
statements: Baht 1,693 million 2014: Baht 1,805 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the Company and subsidiaries had equipment and vehicles acquired under
hire purchase and financial lease agreements, with net book value amounting to approximately Baht
254 million (2014: Baht 291 million).(Separate financial statement: Baht 193 million 2014: Baht 291

million)

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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17. Trade and other payables

18.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Trade payables - related parties (Note 6) 7,299 9192 29,916 9,208
Trade payables - unrelated parties 3,932,440 3,597,622 3,914,191 3,551,966
Accrued expenses 83,612 120,456 66,214 102,234
Total trade and other payables 4,023,351 3,727,270 4,010,321 3,663,408

Hire purchase creditors and finance lease payables

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Hire purchase creditors and financial lease

payables 172,635
Less: Deferred interest expenses (9,752)
Total 162,883
Less: Portion due within one year (81,153)
Hire purchase creditors and financial lease

payables - net of current portion 81,730

202,490 151,083 202,490
(11,590) (9,170) (11,590)
190,900 141,913 190,900
(89,644) (62,889) (89,644)
101,256 79,024 101,256

The Company and its subsidiary has entered into the hire purchase and finance lease agreements with

leasing companies for rental of equipment and motor vehicles for use in its operation, whereby it is

committed to pay rental on a monthly basis. The terms of the agreements are generally 4 years.

Future minimum lease payments required under the hire purchase and finance lease agreements

are as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

87 86 173
(6) (4) (10)

Future minimum lease payments

Deferred interest expenses

Present value of future minimum lease payments

81 82 163
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2015

19.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Future minimum lease payments

Deferred interest expenses (6) (5) (1)

Present value of future minimum lease payments a0 101 191

(Unit: Million Baht)

Future minimum lease payments 68 83 151
Deferred inferest expenses (5) (4) (9)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 63 79 142

(Unit: Million Baht)

Future minimum lease payments

Deferred interest expenses (6) (5) (1)

Present value of future minimum lease payments a0 101 191

Loan and interest payable

The balance represents a loan from other person of a subsidiary in form of promissory nofes
repayable at call. This loan carries interest at a rate of 1.5 percent per annum.

The subsidiary has mortgaged its ownership of condominium units for sales with book values
amounting to Baht 289 million as collaterals for such loan.

However, the subsidiary has been unable to comply with the terms of the debt composition
agreement. As a result, in May 2012, the court ordered the Executing Officer to seize the collateral
for sale at auction, and use the proceeds to settle the debt. The court order is currently being

enforced.

Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)
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Loan and interest payable 70,380 868 - 71,248

20. Provision for long-term employee benefits
Provision for long-term employee benefits which is compensations on employees’ retirement and
long service awards, are as follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Provision for long-term employee

benefits of beginning of year 113,735 101,030 27104 24,605 140,839 125,635
Included in the income statements:
Current service cost 7184 7,031 924 1,496 8,108 8,547
Interest cost 4,965 4,685 289 1,003 5,254 5,688

Included in the statements of

comprehensive income:

Actuarial loss arising from

Demographic assumptions changes = 5,296 = - = 5,296
Financial assumptions changes - (3,578) = - - (3,578)
Experience adjustments = 6,588 = - = 6,588
Benefits paid during the year (1,556)  (7,337) = - (1,556) (7,337)
Provision for long-term employee
benefits at end of year 124,328 113,735 28,317 27104 152,645 140,839
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Provision for long-term employee

benefits of beginning of year 111,255 98,928 26,663 24,216 137918 123,144
Included in the income statements:
Current service cost 7022 6,771 943 1,461 7,965 8,232
Interest cost 4,858 4,587 293 986 5,151 5,573

Included in the statements of

comprehensive income:

Actuarial loss arising from

Demographic assumptions changes = 5,296 = - = 5,296
Financial assumptions changes - (3,578) = - - (3,578)
Experience adjustments = 6,588 = - = 6,588
Benefits paid during the year (1,556)  (7,337) = - (1,556)  (7,337)
Provision for long-term employee
benefits at end of year 121,579 111,255 27899 26,663 149,478 137918

Long-term employee benefit expenses included in the income statement are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Current service cost 8,108 8,547 7,965 8,232
Interest cost 5,254 5,688 5,151 5,573

Total expense recognised in the income
statement under the caption of
administration expenses 13,362 14,235 13,116 13,805

The Company and its subsidiaries expect to pay Baht 6 million of long-term employee benefits
during the next year (Separate financial statements: Baht 6 million)
As at 31 December 2015, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term employee

benefit of the Company and its subsidiaries are 17 years (Separate financial statements: 17 years)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

21.

22.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date are as follows:

Discount rafe 4.4 4.4
Future salary increase rate (depending on age) 3.0-75 3.0-75
Staff turnover rate 2.0 - 18.0 2.0-18.0

The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of the
long-term employee benefit obligation as at 31 December 2015 are summarised below:

(Unit: million Baht)

Discount rate (14)
Salary increase rate 17 (15) 17 (14)

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required
to set aside to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated
deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the registered capital. The
statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution. At present, the statutory reserve has

fully been set aside.

Expenses by nature
Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Salary and wages 3,448,569 3,803,324 3,439,998 3,795,130
Depreciation 494,261 427,292 399,039 424,911
Rental expenses from operating lease

agreements 990,137 789,670 990,137 789,670

Construction materials and subcontractors 10,463,312 13,639,527 10,604,092 13,629,726
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

23. Income tax
Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are made up as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Current income tax charge 318,157 394,250 305,152 372,381

Current income tax:

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of

temporary differences 3,325 (5,141) 127 (1,451)
Income tax expense reported in the
statement of income 321,482 389,109 305,279 370,930

The amounts of income tax relating to each component in the statements of comprehensive income

for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follows:
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Deferred tax relating to actuarial loss (1,661) (1,661)
Deferred tax relating to gain on change in value
of available-for-sale investments 6,132 2,972 6,132 2,972

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the
applicable tax rates for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Accounting profit before tax 1,866,155 1,919,135 1,572,095 1,854,953
Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20%
Accounting profit before tax multiplied by

applicable tax rate 373,231 383,827 314,419 370,991
Utilisation of pervious unrecognised fax losses

as deferred tax assets (23,581) - = -
Tax loss of subsidiaries which not recorded as

deferred tax assets 3,780 4,652 - -
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Recognised of deferred tax assets of previous
years (27824)

Deferred tax liabilities adjustment relating

fo tfransfer of assets and financial lease

agreements to subsidiary =
Tax effect of income and expense that are

not taxable income or not deductible in

determining taxable profit (4124)

Income tax expenses reported in the statement
of income 321,482

- (4,994)
630 (4,146) (61)
389,109 305,279 370,930

The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and

2014 are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Deferred tax assets

Impairment of investments 480 480 480 480
Provision for loss of project 103,992 28,510 103,992 28,510
Provision for long-term employee
benefits 30,529 26,506 29,895 25,922
Actuarial loss = 1,661 = 1,661
Unused tax loss 27824 - = -
Other 1,000 - 1,000 -
Total 163,825 57157 135,367 56,573
Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value of investment properties 386,763 296,749 244,049 177221
Unrealised gain on change in value
of investments 421 3,565 421 3,565
Difference depreciation between
tax and accounting purpose
from assets under finance lease
agreements 38,109 35,974 30,223 35,974
Others = 1,511 = 1,511
Total 425,293 337799 274,693 218,271
Total deferred tax liabilities - net 261,468 280,642 139,326 161,698
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

As at 31 December 2015 a subsidiary had unused tax losses totaling Baht 217 million (2014: Baht

474 million) and no deferred tax assets have been recognised on this amount.

24. Dividends

(Million Baht) (Baht)
Dividends for 2013  Annual General Meeting of

the shareholders on 18 April 2014 763 0.50 April 2014
Total dividends for 2014 763
Dividends for 2014  Annual General Meeting of

the shareholders on 22 April 2015 610 0.40 May 2015
Total dividends for 2015 610

25. Contracts in progress
As at 31 December 2015, the Company and its subsidiary had aggregate amount of construction
cost incurred and recognised profits or losses to date for contracts in progress was approximately
Baht 80,263 million (2014: Baht 64,090 million) (Separate financial statements: Baht 80,197 million
2014: Baht 64,090 million) and had gross amounts due from customers for contracts in progress
was approximately Baht 7,592 million (2014: Baht 7,493 million) (Separafe financial statements:
Baht 7,526 million 2014: Baht 7,493 million).

26. Segment information
Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports of the
Company and its subsidiaries that are regularly reviewed by the Managing Director who is the
chief operating decision maker in order fo make decisions about the allocation of resources to the
segment and assess its performance.
The operations of the Company and its subsidiaries principally involve construction contracting,
office building rental, machinery and construction equipment rental and property development, and
are mostly carried on in the single geographic area of Thailand. During the years 2015 and 2014
there were no material activities pertaining to the office building rental, machinery and construction
equipment rental and property development segments. For this reason, financial information has
not been presented by industry segment. All of the revenues, operating profits and assets as
reflected in these financial statements pertain to the aforementioned reportable operating segment
and geographical area.
During the year 2015, the Company and its subsidiaries recognised construction income from seven
major customers in total amount of Baht 12,084 million (2014: eight major customers in total amount
of Baht 16,708 million).
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

27.

28.

28.1

28.2

Provident fund

The Company, its subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund in
accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The Company, its subsidiaries and employees
contributed to the fund on a monthly basis at the rate of 3-5 percent of basic salaries. The fund,
which is managed by Tisco Asset Management Company Limited, will be paid fo employees upon
termination in accordance with the fund rules. The contributions for the year 2015 amounting to
approximately Baht 22 million (2014: Baht 20 million) were recognised as expenses.

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Operating lease commitments
The Company has entered into lease agreements in respect of the leases of motor vehicles. The
terms of the agreements are 3-5 years.
Future minimum lease payments required under these non-cancellable operating lease contracts
were as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Payable:

In up to 1 year 10 12

In over 1 year and up to 5 years 12 16
Guarantees

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were outstanding bank guarantees issued by banks on

behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries in respect of certain performance bonds as detail below.

(Unit: Million Baht)

Performance bonds 9,898 9,104 9,617 9,104
Advance and refention bonds 8,771 8,452 8,406 8,452
Others 1,692 3,106 1,692 3,106
Total 20,361 20,662 19,715 20,662
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

28.3 Litigation

29.

29.1

The Company was sued for compensation totaling approximately Baht 190 million (2014: Baht 198
million). In most of such cases the Company is accused of breaches of hire of work contracts. The
cases are still being considered by the court. The Company’s management and the Company’s legal
advisors believe that the outcome of these cases will be favorable to the Company and therefore

no provision for liability has been set aside in the accounts.
Financial instruments

Financial risk management
The Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard
No. 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise as follow.
. Finoncalassets  Fioncial lobilties

» Cash and cash equivalents » Trade and other payables

» Current investments » Unbilled payables

» Trade accounts receivable » Hire purchase creditors and financial lease payables

> Unbilled receivables » Loans from

» Retenfion receivables

» Loans fo

» Restricted bank deposits

The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are managed is

described below.

Credit risk

The Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to construction
receivables and loans. However, due fo their prudent credit policy, most of their customers being
government agencies, and their close follow up of debt, analysing financial position on an ongoing
basis, the Company and its subsidiaries do not anticipate material losses from their debt collection

in excess of those for which provision has already been set aside.

Interest rate risk

The Company and its subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks,
loans to, long-term loans, hire purchase creditfors and financial lease payables which are subject fo
interest. However, since most of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial assets and liabilities bear
floating interest rates which fluctuate in line with market interest rates or fixed interest rates which

will be due within a short period, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.
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Significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are summarised in

the table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further

classified based on maturity, or the repricing date, if this occures before the maturity date.
(Unit: Million Baht)
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Total

Interest rate 1 year 1 year interest rate bearing
(% p.a.)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.75 - 3.80 200 - 830 9 1,039
Current investments 0.37 - 470 284 - 19 623 1,026
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 3,079 3,079
Unbilled receivables - - - - 5,299 5,299
Retention receivables - - - - 1,096 1,096
Short-term loans to other Note 10 101 - - - 101
companies
Short-term loans to related party Note 6 - 3 - - 3
Restricted bank deposits 0.85 - - 15 - 15
585 3 964 10,106 11,658
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - - 4,023 4,023
Unbilled payables - - - - 3,474 3,474
Hire purchase creditors and 435 - 5.38 81 82 - - 163
financial lease payables
Loan and inferest payable Note 19 - 71 - - 71
81 153 - 7,497 7,731
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(Unit: Million Baht)

Inferest rate 1 year 1 year inferest rate bearing Total
(% p.a.)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 013 - 2.70 500 - 967 667 2,134
Current investments 0.13 - 8.88 864 - 696 1,871 3,431
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 2,748 2,748
Unbilled receivables - - - - 6,367 6,367
Retention receivables - - - - 733 733
Short-term loans fo other Note 10 1 - - - 1
companies
Short-term loans to related party Note 6 - 4 - - 4
Restricted bank deposits 1.40 - - 15 - 15
1,365 4 1,678 12,386 15,433
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - - 3,727 3,727
Unbilled payables - - - - 5741 5,741
Hire purchase creditors and 435 - 5.38 Q0 101 - - 191
financial lease payables
Loan and interest payable Note 19 - 70 - - 70
90 171 - 9,468 9,729
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Current investments

Trade accounts receivable
Unbilled receivables
Retention receivables

Loan to related party

Restricted bank deposits

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unbilled payables

Hire purchase creditors and
financial

lease payables

Inferest rate
(% p.a.)

0.75 - 3.80
0.37 - 470

Note 6
0.85

435 - 5.38

(Unit: Million Baht)

1 year 1 year interest rafe bearing Total
200 - 812 9 1,021
284 - 119 485 888

- - - 3,063 3,063

- - - 5,269 5,269

- - - 1,096 1,096
527 - - - 527
- - 15 - 15
1,011 - 946 9,922 11,879
- - - 4,010 4,010

- - - 3,467 3,467
63 79 - - 142
63 79 - 7477 7,619
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Unit: Million Baht)

Interest rate 1 year 1 year inferest rafe bearing Total
(% p.a.)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 013 - 2.70 - - 1,935 10 1,945
Current investments 0.13 - 8.88 864 - 696 1,871 3,431
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 2,735 2,735
Unbilled receivables - - - - 6,306 6,306
Retention receivables - - - - 733 733
Loan to related party Note 6 1 - - - 1
Restricted bank deposits 1.40 - - 15 - 15
865 - 2,646 11,655 15,166
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - - 3,663 3,663
Unbilled payables - - - - 5,711 5,71
Hire purchase creditors and
financial
lease payables 435 - 538 Q0 101 - - 191
90 101 - 9,374 9,565

Foreign currency risk

The Company exposures to foreign currency risk arises mainly from investments in oversea. As at
31 December 2015, the Company had the net assets demonindted in foreign currency amounting to
USD 0.3 million.
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Sino-Thai Engineering and Construction Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2015

29.2 Fair value of financial instruments

30.

31.

Since the majority of the Company and its subsidiaries’ financial instruments are short-term in
nature. Loans given to and loans from others mostly bear floating interest rates. Majority of loans
bear fixed interest rate are going fo due within 1 year. Fair value is not expected to be materially

different from the amounts presented in the statements of financial position.

Capital management
The primary objectives of the Company and its subsidiaries’ capital management is to ensure that
it has an appropriate financing structure and preserves the ability to continue its business as a

going concern.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 1.38:1 (2014: 1.92:1) and the
Company’s was 1.51:1 (2014: 2.07:1).

Approval of financial statements
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s authorised director on 17
February 2016.
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Sino-Thai Engineering & Construction Public Company Limited
Construction

0107536001001 (Bor Mor Jor 174)

32/59-60, 29"-30" Floor, Sino-Thai Tower, Asoke Road,
Klongtoey-Nua, Wattana, Bangkok 10110
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1,525,106,540 Baht

1,525,106,540 Baht (as at December 31, 2015)

Common Share (STEC) 1,525,106,540 shares

Investors can find more information in the Annual Report (56-1)
and on websites
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